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THE YEAR'S HIGHLIGHTS REFEfHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars except number (REITRE RRHEREIAH

of shares issued, shareholders and personnel) NG DA KB 7R )
2017 2016
—ZE—+F —E—REF
Revenue ($'000) WA (F7T) 565,785 541,427
Profit for the year ($'000) FEAF(Fx) 15,219 6,705
Earnings per share — Basic (cents) AR & F| —F 7R (1) 3 2
Taxes paid, including beer tax ($'000) THIBEEAR (FT) 13,432 10,494
Taxes paid per share (cents) FARFLIE (1) 4 3
Non-current tangible assets ($'000) FneBEREE (FT) 576,388 584,806
Net worth ($'000) FE (F7T) 584,811 558,084
Salaries, wages and other benefits ($'000) e TEREMERN(Fr) 121,606 116,014
Number of shares issued BITARER 373,570,560 373,570,560
Number of shareholders = 2,009 2,053
Number of personnel BETA#H 516 539
[
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Ramon S. Ang £
Chairman =&

To our shareholders,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group registered a consolidated profit of HK$15.2 million in 2017, 127.0%
higher than the HK$6.7 million posted in 2016. As a result, net profit attributable
to equity shareholders for 2017 reached HK$12.5 million, up 44.2% from the
HK$8.7 million registered the previous year.

The Group's consolidated revenue was HK$565.8 million, 4.5% higher than the
same period in 2016. Gross profit reached HK$251.6 million, 5.6% better than the
HK$238.3 million in 2016, with a gross profit margin of 44.5%.

As of 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits amounted
t0 HK$169.3 million (HK$157.7 million as of 31 December 2016).

Loans as of 31 December 2017 totaled HK$166.7 million, 12.7% lower than the
HK$190.9 million debt reported the prior year. Total net assets stood at HK$584.8
million (HK$558.1 million as of 31 December 2016), with a loan-to-equity ratio of
0.29 (31 December 2016: 0.34).
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DIVIDENDS

No final dividends will be declared for the year ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW
HONG KONG OPERATIONS

Our Hong Kong operations turned the corner and decisively moved from 10ss to
profit in 2017. The turnaround is attributable to higher sales revenues and gross
contribution, and the continuous effect of the cost restructuring implemented in
the last two years.

Currently, we are seeing a shift in market conditions and consumer preference.
While the Hong Kong economy gained considerably in 2017, beer industry volume
growth was at a modest 1%. Despite a slight industry volume increase, growth in
terms of sales value was higher, brought about by price inflation and a consumer
shift from the lower-priced segment to higher-priced, premium, specialty and
craft beers. As such, our portfolio of premium, specialty, and craft beers did well,
registering double-digit growth compared to the same period in the previous year.

In line with our key strategy of maintaining a diversified portfolio of brands that
serve different market segments, we entered into an agreement with Wm.
Magner Limited in June which covers the exclusive distribution of cider products
under the brand “Magners Irish Cider” throughout Hong Kong and Macau.

Meanwhile, San Mig Light grew by double-digits in both the on-premise and
off-premise segments in Hong Kong. We followed up our “Life. Best Served Light”
campaign--which featured Japanese model-actor Ren Ishikawa--with a brand new
execution called “Night & Day”. The new thematic advertising focuses on group
consumption and enjoyment, a theme that resonates well with San Mig Light's
target market. In September, San Mig Light also sponsored the Road to Ultra, a
popular electronic dance music festival.

For flagship San Miguel Pale Pilsen, we maintained the brand’s strong association
with some of Hong Kong's most iconic festivals and events. At the start of the
year, the brand launched a seasonal packaging design to celebrate the Chinese
Year of the Rooster. Seasonal packaging designs were also released for the
Dragon Boat Festival and our exclusive beer sponsorship of the 2017 Hong Kong
Dragon Boat Carnival. The San Miguel BeerFest, part of the Hong Kong Dragon
Boat Carnival organized by the Hong Kong Tourism Board, was by far the biggest
we've done and also proved to be a huge success. All these were complemented
by various promotions at on- and off-premise channels. Highlighting the brand’s
“Friendship” campaign, San Miguel also launched the “San Miguel House Party”
market-wide promotion in the fourth quarter, with very satisfactory results.

Blue Ice Beer performed strongly in the lower-priced segment, which accounts for
about 30% of industry volumes. We launched a brand new campaign, “Real Cool”,
featuring Hong Kong Cantopop recording artist, songwriter, and actor Louis
Cheung. The campaign, making use of primarily online video advertising, was also
extended to point-of-sales visibility activities, off-premise promotions, online
communications, and public relations campaigns.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS

More significantly, our South China operations once again achieved strong
operating profit growth, owing primarily to a 12% sales volume growth, a 13%
sales revenue growth, and lower cost of sales. Profitability improved
quarter-on-quarter resulting to a robust year-end performance.

Sales volumes and sales revenues of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company
Limited ("GSMB") grew by double-digits in 2017. In terms of volumes, growth was
seen across all San Miguel, Dragon and Guang's brand groups.

To enhance brand pull and visibility of San Miguel Pale Pilsen, we launched a
strategic merchandising and promotion campaign that focused on Chinese
restaurants, supermarkets, and convenience stores. The campaign’s theme,
"Heritage and Quality”, underscored aspects of the brand that was relevant to the
target market. This was reinforced by a series of market-wide promotions that
maximized brand awareness.

We also released the “Life. Best Served Light” campaign for San Mig Light in South
China, capitalizing on its success in Hong Kong and the rest of Asia, and
consumers’ familiarity with Ren Ishikawa. This, along with a parallel point-of-sales
campaign, improved consumer awareness of the brand.

The success of Dragon Qingchun in 500ml cans in 2016 led us to launching a
330ml can variant in January, and a 500ml bottle variant in July, in order to meet
demand. As a result, the brand was able to build on its momentum and has since
become the best-selling Dragon beer variant. Meanwhile, we also redesigned the
packaging for Dragon Gold in December to reinvigorate the brand.

In the premium and specialty segment, imported brands San Miguel Cerveza
Negra and Red Horse Beer delivered 32% and 30% volume growth respectively,
compared to the previous year.

Meanwhile, San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited (“SMGB"), which
serves as a production source of San Miguel Brewing International’s export
business, delivered an 8% growth in total exports volume.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

At the Company, social responsibility is an important part of how we do business.
We go beyond complying with legal or regulatory requirements and genuinely
work towards making a positive impact on the welfare of our employees and their
families, our business partners, our local communities, and the environment.

Since 2015, we have published an Environment, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report to provide the public an appreciation of how we perform and respond to
different ESG issues. The Company's 2017 ESG Report will be available on our
website within three months from the publication of the Company’s annual
report.
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COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We also actively promote responsible drinking. We continue to sponsor and
support charitable organizations and suitable NGOs through financial and product
support, as well as by sharing with them our time, experience, and expertise.

We are also committed to protecting the environment and ensuring that
environmental standards set by the government are met or exceeded.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company has always recognized the role its workforce plays to achieve
success in the market. As such, we continue to invest in our people by ensuring
that they are equipped with the knowledge, skills, and experiences that keep
them motivated and allow them to reach their full potential. We invest in training,
seminars, and mentorship and team-building activities to develop their personal
growth and foster harmony in the organization.

We continue to offer competitive remuneration packages commensurate with
industry standards and to provide attractive fringe benefits, including medical and
insurance coverage and numerous paid leaves, on top of legal requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company continued to apply the principles of the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the year, with the exception of Code Provision A.4.1, which
states that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. At present, all of the non-executive directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years, and re-election at the Annual General
Meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS

Since we published our interim report on 5 September 2017, Mr. Takeshi Wada
has resigned as a non-executive director of the Company, effective 1 October
2017. Mr. Tomoki Yamauchi has been appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company, effective 27 October 2017.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES

For 2018, the Company has outlined the following objectives:

o In Hong Kong, we will sustain profitability and work to increase our share
of the market through a stronger focus in the San Miguel brand. We will
increase both the breadth and depth of our distribution by working closely
with our wholesalers.

. In South China, we intend to build on what we have achieved and improve
profitability by strengthening our dealer and wholesaler network in all of
our markets and enhancing the productivity of our sales force. We will
strengthen the brand equity of the San Miguel and Dragon brands. We will
also maintain our export business and aim to improve margins and
rationalize costs.

In pursuit of the abovementioned objectives for 2018, we will be responsive to the
following risks that we have identified:

o The cost of diesel and carton are rising, and this will have an effect on our
overall production and distribution costs.

o The tightening of emission standards will see the upgrade of distribution-
related vehicles which will affect operational costs of the industry.

. Furthermore, the Hong Kong government will be imposing a recycling levy
on glass beverage containers. When this measure is put in place, prices
for our products in glass bottles may be affected, which will in turn impact
consumption.

° The Chinese economy is expected to soften gradually in 2018 due to
cooling investment activity as credit and fiscal spending growth slows.

Looking ahead, we reiterate our commitment to maximizing shareholder value
and enhancing and strengthening our brands. We are confident that we will be
able to build on our strong 2017 performance with the strategies and plans we
have in place. We will strive to ensure that our beer brands are ever more
relevant to our consumers and customers, regardless the occasion, their location,
and lifestyle. We are also implementing new guidelines, systems, and policies to
ensure efficient and effective cost management, sustainable environmental
management, and responsible social engagement.

Lastly, we would like to convey our sincere gratitude to our Board of Directors for
their guidance. We also wish to thank our employees for their dedication and hard
work, and most of all, our shareholders, customers, and consumers for their
continued support.

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

28 February 2018
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT &€ iR 4%

To be presented at the Fifty-fifth Annual General Meeting of shareholders to be
held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hong Kong, Two Pacific Place,
Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on 13 April 2018 at 3:00 p.m.

The directors submit their Annual Report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek
Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and distribution of
bottled, canned and draught beers. The principal activities and other particulars of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The segment analysis of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
financial year is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to the
major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the year is as follows:

BHREBR —_ZT-NFOA+T=BTF=HIER
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BERAVBFEARRREMBAR (AEE])
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FEEFRRHUER
ATHBARFEEERP REMEEHAEAE
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Percentage of the Group’s total

HEEE
The largest customer BRAEF 35.31%
Five largest customers in aggregate BAKREFAR 61.47%
The largest supplier RAMHER 9.81%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate BRAHERER 27.87%

One of the five largest suppliers and one of the five largest customers was San
Miguel Corporation (“SMC") and its associates (collectively the “San Miguel
Group”) in which Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr. Ramon G.
Torralba, Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Takashi Hayashi***** Mr. Roberto N.
Huang, Mr. Katsuhiko Matsumoto, Mr. Fumiaki Ozawa, Mr. Reynato S. Puno,
Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, Takeshi Wada and Mr. Tomoki Yamauchi have beneficial
interests to the extent that they have/had equity interests in and/or are/were
directors and/or officers of the San Miguel Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year have the directors, their
associates, or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers or suppliers.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDENDS

The directors have resolved that no final dividend be declared for the year ended
31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group's business during the year, including the analysis using
financial key performance indicators, and the outlook of the Group’s business are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement section from pages 7 to 11 of this Annual
Report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties which faced the Group
in 2017 can be found in the Chairman’s Statement, including the financial risks
mentioned in note 23 to the financial statements. There were no important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2017.

The Company defines stakeholders as all those who affect, and/or are affected
by, its business. It embraces both internal and external stakeholders, ranging from
employees, trade partners, shareholders, suppliers, government and local
communities. The Company believes that engaging stakeholders is crucial for the
sustainability of its business, as this does not just help the Company understand
the possible risks and opportunities to its business, but also makes possible the
actual mitigation of the risks and the full comprehension of the opportunities to
its business. The Company also communicates with them through various
channels to ensure that its stakeholders are made aware of and understand its
business and/or products.

The Company endeavors to protect the environment in which it operates its
business. During the year ended 31 December 2017 (“the year under review"),
there was no material non-compliance in relation to air and greenhouse gas
emission, discharges into water and land; and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes. The Company endeavors to continually improve the
management of its operations to prevent pollution and minimize waste. The
Company also endeavors to continually improve the proper management and
usage of the different Company resources, and the management of its operations
to prevent pollution and minimize waste, and is committed to continuously train
and encourage all its employees to be more environmentally conscious.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)

During the year under review, no material non-compliance of the laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company was noted. In addition,
discussion on the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code") is included in the Corporate Governance Report and discussion on
the Company's financial statements’ compliance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) are included in note 1 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE AND OTHER DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$30,738 (2016: HK$53,938).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 22(b) to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report are set out on
page 2 of the Annual Report.

With the exception of Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta who was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 24 February 2017, and Mr. Fumiaki Ozawa and
Mr. Tomoki Yamauchi who were appointed as non-executive directors on 28 April
2017 and 27 October 2017 respectively, all of the directors served as such for the
full year.

Mr. Ng Wai Sun resigned as independent non-executive director on 24 February
2017 due to the needs of his family and his other business engagements which
require more of his time and attention. Mr. Katsuhiko Matsumoto and Mr. Takeshi
Wada resigned as non-executive directors on 1 April 2017 and 1 October 2017
respectively due to their new assignments in the Kirin group of companies which
will require more of their time.

Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Ms. May (Michelle) W.M. Chan, Mr. Roberto N.
Huang and Mr. Ramon G. Torralba, retire by rotation in accordance with Article
105 of the Company's Articles of Association at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Tomoki Yamauchi who was appointed as director after the last Annual
General Meeting, retires from the office of director in accordance with Article 96
of the Company’s Articles of Association, and offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES BATESE

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of HREZE-—Z—+E+-_A=+—BItEEKH =
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 or during the period from ZE—N&FE— A —BZEAWME H 88 - AER
1 January 2018 to the date of this report are available on the Company’s website, #MBAQAFMEA T EETENESHLZEH A LA T
info.sanmiguel.com.hk. #uk - MUk Binfo.sanmiguel.com.hk -

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS EFEzRER

The directors of the Company as of 31 December 2017 had the following personal 12 (&4 R E S EH) F352E R TR F 2 £ F 1
interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies, subsidiaries and &R EsEmsE R —+E+=-_A=+—
other associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures HZ AQAREERNEABEARR) - LB AF -
Ordinance (“SFO") at that date as recorded in the register of directors” interests B AT R EMBE AT (THER(BEAF LI ER

required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO: BINEEITRAZBEREZIOT ¢
(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (1) SBITRAZER

Number of ordinary shares in the Company
AT ZEBRZROEE

Number of % of total
shares held issued shares

HEBRTRG
FREE BYZED

David K. P. Li 12,000,000 3.21%

Number of common shares

of 1 Philippine peso each in
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.

BREE1FERSE
BRERZEBRZBROHAE
Total
Direct Indirect number of % of total
ownership ownership shares held issued shares
HERITRA
HEESR EESE BREEEH B CETHE
Ramon S. Ang BREX 75,887 86,658,351 86,734,238 25.907003%
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SER - 364 364 0.000109%
Roberto N. Huang H=AR - 3,039 3,039 0.000908%
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno - 500 500 0.000149%
Carmelo L. Santiago i) 500 - 500 0.000149%
Ramon G. Torralba T EEE - 260 260 0.000078%
[ ]
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% of total
issued shares

HEBRTRM
RBzEDL

9.728527%
0.000095%
0.000259%
0.001100%
0.000130%
0.000130%

0.000067%

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (Continued) EEZER»n)
(1)  INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued) (1) eRITREAzZERE)
Number of shares in San Miguel Corporation
EHBRATRZRBEE
Par Value
Types of (Philippine Number of
Shares shares held
i 2= 38 Bl (GEEEHRR) BERHA
Ramon S. Ang 235978 Common 5.00 374,969,225*
Tim
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SLEE R common 5.00 3,645%*
Tim
Preferred 5.00 10,000%*
=5
Roberto N. Huang =AR Ccommon 5.00 42,397**
gl
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno common 5.00 5,000%*
gl
Carmelo L. Santiago i 3= common 5.00 5,000%*
gl
Ramon G. Torralba T EEE common 5.00 2,600%*
gl
* No. of shares in SMC held as direct ownership: 1,345,429 shares

RENBRAREZEFE ZRMEE - 1,345,429
No. of shares in SMC held as indirect ownership: 373,623,796 shares
RENBAREERE ZRHEE : 373,623,796
i Held directly
HERA

Number of common shares
of 1 Philippine peso each in
San Miguel Brewery Inc.
ENEERATNEREEIFEERER

TERZROE
Number of
shares held
BREE
Ramon S. Ang (29258 5,000%**
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SR 5,000%**
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta 10,000% ***
Takashi Hayashi INEE 5,000%**
Roberto N. Huang B2ER 5,000***
Carmelo L. Santiago ik i3] 5,000%***
Tomoki Yamauchi Ly 7 5 A 5,000%**
*oxk Corporate interest

NEfER
*okkk Held directly
BEERE

=

% of total
issued shares

HE #®TRM
BB AT

0.000033%
0.000033%
0.000065%
0.000033%
0.000033%
0.000033%
0.000033%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued) ERZER®
(2) INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (2) REBROzZER
Certain directors of the Company have been granted stock options to AKRARETESIRIEBEAE HBE R R ZBKRE
subscribe for common shares in SMC under SMC's stock option scheme. SEERBEREAZEBEEHAARIZ TR
Particulars of stock options in SMC held by directors during the year and Rty - REREMR-_ZE—+F+ A
as at 31 December 2017 are as follows: ST BREEHBAENBRRAT CBIRE
HBEHT

Stock options in San Miguel Corporation
ENARTZERE

Number Number
of options of options Number Number
outstanding granted/ of options of options
Exercise at the (exercised) (lapsed) outstanding
Exercise price beginning during during at the end
Date granted  period up to per option of the year the year the year of the year

(Philippine pesos)
ERiRL/
EYRERTE (B ErE%AR%) EERERTE
BLTRERS RfE ZBRERE ZBREMA BREHR BREYA

=)

Common (par value R

of 5 Philippine (BREES

pesos each); FRERE):
Ramon S. Ang EEY 25/06/2009 25/06/2017 58.05 587,556 - (587,55) -
Carlos Antonio M. Berba ~~ SEES 16/12/2010 16/12/2018 12033 41,55 - - 41,55
Ramon G. Torralba HER 1611212010 16/12/2018 12033 8991 - - 8991
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DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS (Continued)

(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations are
long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other associated
corporations, as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
adopted by the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, directors shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office
or elsewhere in relation thereto, provided that its provisions are not avoided by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Such provisions were in force during the
year ended 31 December 2017 and remained in force as of the date of this report.

EEZEZ @
(2) REBRGODZERE

AT HERAGE - ME A E R H i
BRA ARG RAER D ST E LT

PEN

=

B EXFTSN - ARE - REERAE M
JB A B o B At B 88 X ) FE AN F 2 AE fa] B )
NI ELZHARREEBEARNRA S HEM
RAZ B EENERERE

RIBEAR R BZCGE 5 KB 50 $3521%
MARFZERM  XRBELTRARESE
TEHFXZHNEETRIMAEARARF 2L
B BREXRERIIN BEF - HEBX
HIBmN T2 FREGERERARBREAE
R AR HEBARREMBERRZ
Bt - HABERR I R EREE 2 SRR ©

BHFMBEMAGEX

BREARRNER

MAREABERRIZ BB RBEERREFUARAT]

EFRATREHAERE

ZEEFERZBERE HARERETERSE
BAARHROID ZHRE - RS HRXNEBE_F— L
FT-A=1T-BLEFEHRMEY  IRAHE
BHEEE S -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the Company’s
issued shares at 31 December 2017 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary
shares in issue:

ubstantial shareholders

Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.

San Miguel Corporation (note 1) & HEna (MisE)
Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (note 1) BB AR AR = = 4t (B EET)
San Miguel Brewery Inc. (note 1) A R mR A R (FEaET)

San Miguel Brewing International Limited

N EEBRER AR (FHRET)

(note 1)

Neptunia Corporation Limited (note 1)
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (note 2)
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (note 2)

Notes:

M

M A R AR ()
FRIMREXAR AR (HiE2)

Top Frontier, the ultimate holding company, SMC, Kirin Holdings Company,
Limited ("Kirin") (a principal shareholder of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (“SMB")),
SMB, and San Miguel Brewing International Limited (“SMBIL") are all deemed to
hold the above disclosed interest indirectly through Neptunia Corporation
Limited (“Neptunia”) in the Company because each of Top Frontier, SMC and
Kirin holds more than one third of the voting power of SMB. SMB has a
controlling interest in SMBIL and SMBIL has a controlling interest in Neptunia.

Conroy Assets Limited, which holds 13,624,600 shares of the Company, and
Hamstar Profits Limited, which holds 10,078,400 shares of the Company, are
indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH")
and CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CK Hutchison”).

By virtue of the SFO, CKH and CK Hutchison are deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by Conroy Assets Limited and Hamstar Profits
Limited.

FEBRRREOHRERMBRMDZER
R-F—tF+-A=+—8 KAAEETI

EARARBITEBBRZSPHA LHARARH
TR -

Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (Kt3E2)

i

M

ﬁ“F

Ordinary shares

ZiER R0

Number of
ordinary % of total
shares held issued shares
HERTRA
FrFEEREE B C2EIHE
245,720,000 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%

A Top Frontier * A&ELIER AT - £ 148
AR BB TR e (TRBD (BEND
EEm AR ([ENEER]) 2 EBRE) &
BRAENEBHR =12 U LR
ENEERBEEHEBEERER AR ([£
FEE BB |) 2 AR A S I A ) 1R B R
B MBRAE ([ZmF]) 2 iER#ER -
Utk Top Frontier ~ £ D48 A R) ~ BEEE - £ 5
N T IR K A D M E PR AR B R B RN
HABERARRAZEEZMA L ERE
Mz e

Conroy Assets Limitedf 5B 42~ 7]13,624,600
B A% 3 K Hamstar Profits Limited# & AR &)
10,078,4000% & 17 - # % & Cheung Kong
(Holdings) Limited ([CKH ) & & T M2 & %
BRAR ([RM)) zHE2EREHBRR -

RBECEF LG G » CKHERMIGHKE

&% A mcConroy Assets Limited Hamstar
Profits Limited# 8 2 R A AR 1D 2 #E ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company are
long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in the
register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 June 1963, Neptunia provides technical and
advisory services to the Company and may be paid a General Managers'
commission. General Managers' commission has not been paid by the Company
or charged by Neptunia since the 1995 financial year.

Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr. Ramon G. Torralba,
Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Takashi Hayashi***** Mr. Roberto N. Huang,
Mr. Katsuhiko Matsumoto, Mr. Fumiaki Ozawa, Mr. Reynato S. Puno, Mr. Carmelo
L. Santiago, Mr. Takeshi Wada and Mr. Tomoki Yamauchi are interested parties to
the above contract and to the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions below to the extent that they have/had equity interests in and/or
are/were directors and/or officers of SMB, SMBIL, SMC and Top Frontier, the
ultimate holding company of Neptunia.

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations was a party, and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest (other than Mr. Ramon S. Ang
who has a substantial interest in the shares of Top Frontier and SMC as disclosed
in the section “Directors Interests” in this report, and who accordingly abstained
from the voting on the Company's entering into of these transactions), subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Our portfolio of premium,
specialty, and craft beers

did well, registering double-
digit growth compared to the
same period in the previous
year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1

24

RMEXHREBEREXS

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED (1) EBEEHEEESEFBENBFERERS
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group REE S$HEFENER
In order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company entered into an ABHEELETRA - ARBEEHBERARR
agreement with SMC on 4 February 2016 (the "Agreement”) with a view to —E-RFE-AWNHI Y HinaEE (%
renewing the agreement to carry out the trade-related continuing ZENDMMEFHEARA_ZE—tF—F—
connected transactions from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 under BE-_ZT—h&E+_A=+—H#EETEHZ
the same terms and conditions as those under the agreements entered SEBNEEBHES S  ZHE2BGRTR
into by SMC and the Company dated 6 December 2007, 11 May 2009, 15 BHEENR_ET+F+_HAXRE  ZEF
October 2010 and 7 March 2013 in respect of such trade-related NFRA+—H ZZE—ZFTF+A+AHH
continuing connected transactions. ;FZTE—=F=ZRAtHHBRARAHENE
RAGIVZHE S BEHANISERER IO
R o
The Agreement, including the trade-related continuing connected WEE(RERBESEANEERES S
transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was approved by MIEEZXSER)ER-_ZE—XRFHNA
independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the “HABRARANBRRERN XS NEE
Company held on 29 April 2016. SRR LA o
Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group entered into the following RAEAFERN REBREBEHREZETIUT
trade-related continuing connected transactions during the year. HESBEBANFERERS -
2017 2017
—=2—+tF —T—+fF
Actual Cap
B8 LR
Continuing connected transactions BFEBERS HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BET T BEETIT
Purchase of packaging materials by the Group ~ A& B[4 HEE
from the San Miguel Group EEREMR 5,690 36,000
Purchase of packaged beer by the Group KEEMAENEES
from the San Miguel Group BEEDBEEA 1,828 5,700
Sales of packaged beer and non-alcoholic AEBMENEEBEE
beverage products by the Group BB ER & IEB AR
to the San Miguel Group, provided Em ZEMTERIEREHEE
that such sales or distribution of (& BB A R S EBRAN)
packaged beer shall not be carried
out in the Philippines, unless through SMB 199,787 258,000
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Q)]

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
(Continued)

Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
these continuing connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

- entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

- conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are on
normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

- in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with
reference to Practice Note 740, Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 24 to
25 of the Annual Report in accordance with the Listing Rule 14A.56. A
copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB”) is an equity
joint venture formed between San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited (“SMG")
and Guangzhou Brewery (“GB") and is held as to 70% by SMG and as to
30% by GB. SMG is a 92.989%-owned subsidiary of the Company and GB
is a connected person of the Company by virtue of its substantial
shareholding in GSMB. To facilitate the business operations of GSMB, San
Miguel International Limited (“SMIL") (@ member of the San Miguel Group)
and GB have each granted GSMB a licence to use their respective
trademarks upon establishment of GSMB (the “SMIL Trademark Licensing
Agreement” and the “"GB Trademark Licensing Agreement”, respectively).

Apart from the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Group has also
entered into other licence agreements with certain other members of the
San Miguel Group: (i) the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement entered into
between the Company and Neptunia (an indirect subsidiary of SMC) and
(i) the SMBIL Sub-licence Agreement entered into between SMGB and
SMBIL (an indirect subsidiary of SMC).

The directors (including the non-executive directors) consider that the
terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Neptunia
Sublicense Agreement, the SMBIL Sub-license Agreement (collectively, the
“San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements”) and the GB Trademark
Licensing Agreement, including their respective tenures which are for
more than three years, are on normal commercial terms, fair and
reasonable, and that the transactions contemplated under such
agreements are in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as
a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The transactions under the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements
(which have been aggregated as a single transaction for purposes of the
Listing Rules) and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34(1) of the Listing
Rules. The annual royalties payable by the Group under each of (i) the San
Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (i) the GB Trademark Licensing
Agreement shall be less than HK$10 million for the year ended 31
December 2007 and each of the financial years during the remaining term
of the relevant licence/sub-licence agreements. Based on this proposed
cap, the transactions under each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing
Agreements and (i) the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement are only
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements and are exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement.

An announcement was made by the Company on 19 September 2007 in
this respect.

In relation to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the Neptunia
Sub-licence Agreement, as per the payment instructions of SMC dated 18
December 2000, all royalties receivable from GSMB and the Company
have been assigned and transferred to SMBIL effective 1 January 2000
until further notice.

On 1 April 2010, a Deed of Assignment was entered into between SMIL,
SMBIL and GSMB pursuant to which SMIL agreed to assign, transfer and
convey in favour of SMBIL all of SMIL's rights, title and interest over the
SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. Both SMBIL and GSMB consented
to such assignment pursuant to the Deed of Assignment.

After the assignment, SMBIL became the licensor of the trademarks
licensed to GSMB under the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. All
other terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned to
SMBIL remain unchanged. The transaction contemplated under the SMIL
Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned to SMBIL continues to
constitute a continuing connected transaction for the Company under the
Listing Rules.

An announcement was made by the Company on 1 April 2010 in this
respect.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The amount of royalties paid to GB and the San Miguel Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 were HK$1,851,000 and HK$169,000
respectively (2016: HK$1,702,000 and HK$157,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
these continuing connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

- entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

- conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are on
normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

- in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders and as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with
reference to Practice Note 740, Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 26 to
28 of the Annual Report in accordance with the Listing Rule 14A.56. A
copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement on
1 January 2018, an Extension Letter was signed by Neptunia and by the
Company on 27 October 2017 to extend the term of the Neptunia
Sub-licence Agreement for one year from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018 at nil consideration. Save for such extension, all other terms of the
Neptunia Sub-license Agreement remain unchanged.

An announcement was made by the Company on 27 October 2017 in this
respect.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE
SAN MIGUEL GROUP

The Group purchased brewing materials and other materials from the San
Miguel Group during the year, which amounted to HK$29,000 (2016:
HK$193,000). The Group also sold raw materials and packaging materials
to subsidiaries of SMC during the year, which amounted to HK$5,000
(2016: HK$13,000). These transactions are exempt from all the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
according to Chapter 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules (De minimis
transactions). Also, as set out in note 25(a) to the financial statements,
interest expense of HK$6,181,000 (2016: HK$5,454,000) was paid for the
loan from an intermediate holding company and advertising and
promotion subsidy of HK$16,084,000 (2016: HK$21,038,000) was received
from an intermediate holding company for promotion of certain brands in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). These transactions are also
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement according to the Chapter 14A.90 of
the Listing Rules.

The Group has complied with the requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions and connected
transactions stated above.
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In Hong Kong, we will
sustain profitability and
work to increase our share
of the market through a
stronger focus in the San
Miguel brand.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have sponsored a
non-contributory defined benefit scheme, The San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong
Limited Retirement Fund (the “Fund”), which covers local permanent employees,
and was registered in September 1995 under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance. The Fund's assets are held in trust and administered by a
trustee. The members’ benefits are determined based on the employees’ final
remuneration and length of service. Contributions to the Fund are made in
accordance with the recommendations of independent actuaries who value the
retirement scheme at regular intervals, usually triennially.

The Fund was granted exemption from the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
regulations by the MPF Scheme Authority on 24 July 2000, following modifications
to the Fund benefits which comply with MPF regulations.

The latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was carried out as at 1 January 2018
and the results were as follows:

(1 the latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was prepared by independent
qualified staff of Willis Towers Watson. In the actuarial valuation, the
attained age method was used. Other major assumptions used in the
valuation were: investment return of 4% per annum; long-term salary
escalation of 5% per annum; mortality rates under the 2016 Hong Kong
Life Tables; normal retirement age of 60 years; and early retirement rates
allowed between the ages 55 to 60 years.

2) the unaudited market value of the Fund assets was HK$95,499,000 as at 1
January 2018.

(3) the minimum level of funding as recommended by the actuary of the
Fund was 8.9% of salaries for 2018, 2019 and 2020.

(4) the solvency surplus was HK$9,712,000, i.e. the obligation under the Fund
was 111% covered by the Fund’s assets, as at 1 January 2018.

Particulars of the employee retirement plans of the Company and the Group are
set out in note 20 to the financial statements.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s working capital at 31 December 2017 was net current assets of
HK$128,905,000 compared with HK$154,362,000 as at 31 December 2016.

The Group's cash and bank deposits (excluding pledged deposits) as at 31
December 2017 were HK$169,343,000 (2016: HK$157,719,000) and are sufficient
to fund working capital requirements and capital expenditure in 2018.

LOANS

The Group has a loan from an intermediate holding company. Total borrowings at
31 December 2017 for the Group were HK$166,706,000 (2016: HK$190,858,000).

Particulars of the loan from an intermediate holding company of the Company
and the Group as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 19 to the financial
Statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 140 of the Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in
the Corporate Governance section on pages 36 to 52 of the Annual Report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE EREmI

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive directors 1R 4% iR BI 3. 13K FTE A5 3| - TR B 3E
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules  #{TEE AR QA a RN ARFEE 2B % - K
and considers all the independent non-executive directors to be independent. NEIRBFBBYIENTESTHEBEILAL

AUDITORS &% ByEm

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution EE5E @t EEMERSESETEET - F
for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at BIEIEE S & st ST EE AR D AL EED 2

the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. RERHNEERRAFERAE LIEZ -
By order of the board REEED

L L

Ramon S. Ang *E
Chairman BEX
Hong Kong, 28 February 2018 &8 —E—)\FE-_A=-+N\H

*xxx%  Mr. Takashi Hayashi has tendered his resignation as director of the — ***** MELEEERBERRAES BB

Company with effect from 29 March 2018. Mr. Kenji Uchiyama was EVR_ZZE-NF=ZRA=ZTABER - ALY
nominated to fill in the vacated office of Mr. Takashi Hayashi at the BOSEBRENEBMRESE S 2R
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. WERKRIT2RRBAFAEFIRL -
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COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining compliance with statutory and
regulatory standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasizing transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness. The board and the senior management of the Company ensure that
effective self-regulatory practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders
of the Company. These include a board comprised of high calibre members,
board committees and effective internal systems and controls.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the CG Code throughout year
under review as contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, save for the
deviation discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term
(Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code) but are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

The following sections set out the principles in the CG Code as they have been
applied by the Company, including any deviation therefrom, for the year under
review.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2017, the board comprised twelve Directors (one executive
director, who is the managing director, seven non-executive directors and four
independent non-executive directors) who possess the skills, experience and
expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the management of the
business of the Group. The biographies of the directors are set out from pages 53
to 59 of this report under the “Directors and Management Executives” section.
There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among the members of the board.

The management and control of the business of the Company is vested in its
board. It is the duty of the board to create value for the shareholders of the
Company, establish the Company’s strategic direction, set the Company’s
objectives and plan in accordance therewith, and provide leadership and ensure
availability of resources in the attainment of such objectives. The board is bound
to manage the Company in a responsible and effective manner, and therefore
every director ensures that he carries out his duty in good faith and in compliance
with the standards of applicable laws and regulations, and acts in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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THE BOARD (Continued) EFgE W

The board and the executive management have clearly defined responsibilities
under various internal control and checks-and-balance mechanisms. The board
has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the executive management of the
Company. These responsibilities include: implementation of the decisions of the
board and organisation and direction of the day-to-day operation and
management of the Company in accordance with the management strategies and
plans approved by the board; preparation and monitoring of annual production
plans and operating budget, and control, supervision and monitoring of capital,
technical and human resources.

The board held four meetings during the year under review. The chief finance
officer and company secretary attended all the scheduled board meetings to
report matters arising from corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, accounting and finance, and kept detailed minutes of each meeting,
which are available for all directors. At the meetings, the directors discussed and
formulated overall strategies for the Company, monitored financial performance
and discussed the annual and interim results, as well as other significant matters.
Daily operational matters are delegated to management.

At least 14 days of notice of all board meetings was given to all directors, and all
directors were given the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the
agenda. An agenda and accompanying board papers are sent in full to all
directors at least three days before every board meeting.

The number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each
director during the year under review is set out in the following table. Figure in
brackets indicates the maximum number of meetings in the period in which the
individual was a board member or board committee member (as the case may
be).
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Scheduled Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
board committee committee committee General
Note meetings meetings meetings meetings Meeting
M HAEEZSeE ENZE99E FHZELeE REZECeE REBEAD
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta ©) 4/(4) 1(1) N/A 2/2) /(1)
DavidK.P. Li ZEE 0/(4) 0/2) 0/@2) 0/(3) 0/(1)
Ng Wai Sun ReEH ) 0/(1) 0/(1) N/A 0/(1) N/A
Carmelo L. Santiago i) 3/(4) 2/2) 12 2/(3) 0/(1)
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno 2/(4) N/A 2/Q2) 2/(3) 1/(1)
William C.M. Cheng AR (FHE>

(Alternate to David K.P. L) EHEZ) 4/(8) 2/2) 2/2) 3) 10)
Executive director HITES
Ramon G. Torralba (Managing Director) 1+ %1% (#1772 Z) 4/14) N/A N/A N/A 10
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang (Chairman) BREN(£/) 2/(8) N/A N/A N/A 0/(1)
Carlos Antonio M. Berba BR(FZE)

(Deputy Chairman) 4/(4) N/A 2/2) N/A 1/(1)
May (Michelle) W.M. Chan BEX 3/4) N/A N/A N/A 11(1)
Takashi Hayashi HEE 4/4) N/A N/A 3/3) 1/01)
Roberto N. Huang HER 2/(4) N/A 112) N/A 0/(1)
Katsuhiko Matsumoto NARE 6 111 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Fumiaki Ozawa NEER ) 30) N/A N/A N/A 110
Takeshi Wada AR ) 3/3) N/A N/A N/A 1(1)
Tomoki Yamauchi kS () 1/(1) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Notes: B 5E -

™ Appointed as independent non-executive director on 24 February 2017.

2 Resigned as independent non-executive director on 24 February 2017.

©) Resigned as non-executive director on 1 April 2017.

4) Appointed as non-executive director on 28 April 2017.

(5) Resigned as non-executive director on 1 October 2017.

(6) Appointed as non-executive director on 27 October 2017.
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THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman of the board is Mr. Ramon S. Ang. The chief executive officer (or
managing director, in the case of the Company) is Mr. Ramon G. Torralba. The
chairman'’s and the managing director’s roles are clearly defined to ensure their
independence, accountability and responsibility.

The chairman takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and policies of the
Company; ensures the effective performance by the board of its functions,
including compliance with good corporate governance practices, and encourages
and facilitates active contribution of directors in board activities and constructive
relations between executive and non-executive directors. The chairman also
ensures effective communication with shareholders of the Company and receipt
by the directors of adequate and complete information. The role of deputy
chairman is carried out by Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba.

The managing director, supported by other board members and the senior
management, is responsible for managing the day-to-day business of the
Company. He is also accountable to the board for the implementation of the
Company's overall strategies, and coordination of overall business operations.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the board consists of eleven non-executive directors
and one executive director. Four of the non-executive directors are independent.
Further details of the composition of the board can be found in the section
entitled “The Board” of this report.

All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term, but are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings.
Under the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the directors, including
the non-executive directors, are subject to retirement, rotation and re-election at
each annual general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors are expected to participate in the activities of the board,
particularly in the establishment of a selection process to ensure a mix of
competent directors and officers; adoption of a system of internal checks and
balances; scrutiny of the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of board authority is within
the powers conferred to the board under its Articles of Association, by-laws and
applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' INDEPENDENCE (Continued)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the fields of
accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and number in the board
ensure that strong independent views and judgment are brought in the board’s
deliberations and that such views and judgment carry weight in the board’s
decision-making process. Their presence and participation also enable the board
to maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other mandatory
reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of shareholders of the Company and the Company.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence. The Company considers such directors to be
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each director, upon reasonable request, is given access to independent
professional advice in circumstances he may deem appropriate and necessary for
the discharge of his duties to the Company, at the expense of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing all information and
representations contained in the financial statements of the Company for the year
under review. The directors consider that the financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting standards in Hong
Kong, and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and reasonable,
informed and prudent judgment of the board and management with an
appropriate consideration to materiality. As at 31 December 2017, the directors,
having made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have
prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial reporting are
set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 130 to 136.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company engaged an external professional firm to perform a High Level Risk
Assessment for the Group and enhance the Group’s framework for its risk
management and internal control system. Key business objectives and risk
parameters were updated and determined to assess the level of inherent risk.
Based on these business objectives and risk parameters, the key risks of the
Group and improvement opportunities to address these risks were identified. The
Group's internal controls in place were also tested and evaluated so as to
determine its effectiveness and the level of residual risk.

The Group’s risk management framework is based on the “Three Lines of
Defense” model.

1. The Management team is responsible for the ongoing identification,
assessment, monitoring and reporting of risks and opportunities in their
respective areas; the planning and implementation of actions to manage
these risks; and escalation of these risks to the Managing Director and
Business Control team that exceed the tolerance limits.

2. The Business Control team conducts periodic review and challenge of top
risks impacting the Group's strategic objectives; escalates the top risks to
senior management and through them, to the Audit Committee and the
board for their review; and facilitates the risk process.

3. The Group Internal Audit Function provides assurance over the
effectiveness of controls in place to manage risk.

For 2017, the board has conducted a review of the Company’s internal control
systems, including financial, operational and compliance control and risk
management functions and assessed the effectiveness of internal control by
considering reviews performed by the audit committee, executive management,
external advisor and internal auditors. It considered that the Group’s risk
management and internal control system was effective and adequate.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION (Continued)

The board acknowledges that it has the overall responsibility for maintaining
sound and effective risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing their
effectiveness. However, the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As a member of a group with multiple listed issuers, the Group shares with the
San Miguel group'’s resources in carrying out its internal audit function. Its internal
audit is performed by the internal audit function of its parent company, San
Miguel Brewery Inc. The internal audit function directly reports to the audit
committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES

The board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance
functions set out below:

Q] developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the board;

2 reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is fully cognizant of its disclosure obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Company has included in its
Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions and Dealings (“Code of Conduct”)
and staff handbook a strict prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information. The Company's Code of Conduct is further discussed in the
“Code Of Conduct On Directors’ Securities Transactions” section of this report.
The Board has also approved the Inside Information Policy of the Company,
effective from 28 April 2017.
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SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

To assist the directors in the discharge of their duties, the Company provides
every newly appointed director with a comprehensive induction program on the
first occasion of his appointment, where such directors are provided with
information on the Company's organization and business; the membership, duties
and responsibilities of the board, board committees and senior management;
corporate governance practices and procedures; and latest financial information
on the operations of the Company. Such information shall be supplemented with
visits to the Company’s key plant sites and meetings with key senior executives.

Throughout their tenure, the directors shall be provided with updates on the
business of the Company, latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, corporate social responsibility
matters and other changes affecting the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the CG Code A.6.5, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the
directors.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the CG Code on directors’
training. The Company had received from each of the directors their
confirmations on taking continuous professional training.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the audit committee comprised three independent
non-executive directors: Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta (appointed on 24 February 2017
to replace Mr. Ng Wai Sun who resigned as audit committee member on 24
February 2017), Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago and Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, who
acts as chairman of the committee. The audit committee met two times in 2017
with full minutes kept by the company secretary. Individual attendance of each
committee member at these meetings is shown in the table presented above.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee shall assist the board in fulfilling
its corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in relation to financial
reporting, internal control structure, risk management systems and internal and
external audit functions. The audit committee is further authorised by the board
to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and is tasked with
recommending to the board appropriate actions emanating from such
investigations. The audit committee has unrestricted access to personnel,
records, internal and external auditors, risk assessment and assurance and senior
management, as may be appropriate in the discharge of its functions.

In 2016, the audit committee’s oversight function with respect to risk
management systems was enhanced by including, as part of the specific
responsibilities of the audit committee in its terms of reference, the responsibility
to discuss risk management systems with management to ensure effectiveness
of the system and to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and management’s response to such findings.

In 2017, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by:

(1) making recommendations to the board on the reappointment of the
external auditor and approval of the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

2) monitoring the external auditor's independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards, and discussing with the external auditor the nature and scope
of the audit and reporting obligations;

3) implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

(4) reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s annual and interim reports and the auditors’
report to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced
assessment of the Company’s financial position;

(5) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management and internal

control systems to ensure that management has discharged its duty to
have effective systems,

44

EXSRAE )
EREER ()

RIEEBREE ECZEHPHEETRETHE
ERVBER NEZERE RREESE -
AR AEBRIMNEERZNENEEE A REREE -
EREZBENRETEREACEBRESRENK
EES YARBEEHENEETEERAE
MITE - BEREZESEBITEBALR A ERG
EBAEAL L8 AERIMSZEE - Bk
FHEMAGE RS REEAR

RZE-—RF ANBELZZESRAARER
EEMEEIE  CRERZE SR E M
ANEERENwmEAREERGABRERLAN
MES UHEAHRAREEEENEEREHER
LEEBHASHERNOEETHRNSEEE -

R-F—tF BRZBEERTEETIWT:

(1 BINEBERBEONERECRETSRME
o DA R HE /SN IS A BT 6 B B KBS R A6k

EZ
A

(2) RERNEEEFINEZBMIELSHILER
BRZBREFZEEN - EIMNSIZEE
WIZBME SRR EHEBREET:

@) WITARAFFRIMNS A RO BUR
TEHI UK

@) FBHARRWHMBERER FERTHBRS
NBUZEMRE  UEEETEL KU
MARBBEHNEEM FEMFHARBN
AR -

(5) R A RRIMP R BREEREE
ZHE - NEREEECETREZLSE
M) Z



EBENSHMER AT —B—LtEER
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT {t ¥ &38R &%
THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEEH
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued) EREES(H)

In 2017, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by: (Continued)

(©)

©

ensuring the coordination between the internal and external auditors and
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and monitoring
the effectiveness of the audit function;

reviewing the Company's financial and accounting policies and practices;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material queries
raised by the external auditor to the management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and the
management’s response to such queries; and

reporting to the board on the matters set out in the CG Code on the audit
committee.

The audit committee is authorised by the board to obtain external legal or other
independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with
relevant experience and expertise if it considers necessary in the performance of
its functions. The audit committee is provided with sufficient resources by the
Company to discharge its duties. The audit committee’'s specific terms of
reference are available on request to any shareholders of the Company and are
posted on the Company’s website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the total fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services (mainly tax advisory work and risk management advisory work) provided
to the Company and its subsidiaries by external auditors amounted to
HK$3,024,000 (2016: HK$3,779,000) and HKS$Nil (2016: HK$500,000), respectively.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the remuneration committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li,
Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, and two non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba and Mr. Roberto N. Huang. Mr. Ng
Wai Sun resigned as the chairman of the remuneration committee on 24 February
2017, and Mr. Reynato S. Puno was appointed as the chairman of the
remuneration committee on 24 February 2017. The remuneration committee met
twice in 2017 with full minutes kept by the company secretary. Individual
attendance of each committee member at these meetings is shown in the table
presented above.

The primary role of the remuneration committee under its terms of reference is to
support and advise the board in fulfilling the board’s responsibility to the
shareholders of the Company to:

(1) establish coherent remuneration policies and practices that will be
observed and enable the Company to attract and retain top caliber
executives and directors;

2) fairly and responsibly reward executives based on their performance and
the performance of the Company, and the general pay environment; and

3) comply with the CG Code Provisions on remuneration of directors, mainly
by:
o determining executive and director remuneration policy;
o determining the remuneration of executive directors upon

consultation with the chairman or managing director regarding
their proposals for such remuneration;

o reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executives who
directly report to the managing director, and as appropriate, other
senior management; and

o reviewing and approving all equity based plans.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEEH)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued) FTWEES (&)

The remuneration committee has the right to seek any information it considers
necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain appropriate
external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with sufficient
resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The remuneration committee’s
specific terms of reference are available on request to any shareholders of the
Company and are posted on the Company's website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee reviewed the
remuneration package of the managing director and key senior executives. As
recommended, no directors’ fees will be paid for the year 2017.

Details of the remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the year under review, the nomination committee comprised one
non-executive director, namely Mr. Takashi Hayashi and four independent
nonexecutive directors: Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta (appointed as nomination
committee member on 24 February 2017 to replace Mr. Ng Wai Sun who resigned
as nomination committee member on 24 February 2017), Dr. the Hon. Sir David
K.P. Li, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago. The nomination
committee is chaired by an independent non-executive director, Mr. Carmelo L.
Santiago. The nomination committee met three times in 2017 with full minutes
kept by the company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member
at the meeting is shown in the table presented above.

Under its terms of reference, proceedings and meetings of the committee will be
governed by the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association for regulating
the proceedings and meetings of the board of the Company in so far as they are
applicable and not inconsistent with the nomination committee’s terms of
reference. The primary purpose of the committee is to support and advise the
board in fulfilling their responsibilities to shareholders in ensuring that the board
comprises individuals who are best able to discharge the responsibilities of
directors having regard to the law and the highest standards of governance by:

(1 assessing the skills required on the board;

2 from time to time assessing the extent to which the required skills are
represented on the board;

(3) establishing the process for the review of the performance of individual
directors and the board as a whole;

(4) establishing the process for the identification of suitable candidates for
appointment to the board; and

(5) having oversight of matters relating to corporate governance by bringing
any issues to the attention of the board.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The nomination committee has the following responsibilities:

(1 review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the board regarding any proposed changes;

) identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

3) assess the independence of independent non-executive directors;

(4) make recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer;

(5) have oversight of all matters relating to corporate governance; and

(6) being entitled to employ, at the Company’s expense, the services of such
advisers as it deems necessary to fulfil its responsibilities.

The nomination committee has the right to seek any information it considers
necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain appropriate
external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with sufficient
resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The nomination committee’s
specific terms of reference are available on request to any shareholders of the
Company and are posted on the Company'’s website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

CODE OF CONDUCT ON DIRECTORS' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct based on the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The terms of the Code of Conduct are no less
exacting than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct applies
to all the relevant persons as defined in the Code, including the directors of the
Company, any employee of the Company, or a director or employee of a
subsidiary or holding company of the Company who, because of such office or
employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors of the Company who have

confirmed in writing their compliance with the required standards set out in the
Code of Conduct during the year under review.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective communications
with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance such communications,
the Company provides information relating to the Company and its business in its
annual report and also disseminates such information electronically through its
website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company also published its ESG Report on its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
It is the initial effort of the Company to communicate to our stakeholders in a
broad manner the relevant environmental, social and governance initiatives that
the Company has made in reference to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. The 2017
ESG Report will be published in the Company's website no later than three
months after the publication of the Company’s annual report.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event as it
provides an opportunity for direct communications between the board and its
shareholders. All directors and senior management make an effort to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to address shareholders’ queries. All the
shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of twenty business days’
notice of the date and venue of the annual general meeting of the Company. The
Company supports the CG Code’s principle to encourage shareholders’
participation.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To ensure that the business of the Group is conducted in the highest standards of
fairness, transparency and accountability, the Group has its Whistleblowing Policy,
which establishes procedures and channels through which the directors,
employees and other interested parties may communicate concerns, in
confidence, about any misconduct or improprieties affecting the Group. The
complete text of the Whistleblowing Policy has been posted on the Company
website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
CALLING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company, extraordinary
general meetings may also be convened on requisition as provided by Sections
566, 567 and 568 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The directors are
required to call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do so
from shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings. The
request must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the
meeting; and may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Requests may consist of several
documents in like form. The request may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form or in electronic form; and must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it. The directors must, within twenty-one days after the date on which
they become subject to the requirement, call an extraordinary general meeting
which must be held on a date not more than twenty-eight days after the date on
which the notice convening the meeting is given. If the directors fail to convene
the general meeting, the shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves call an extraordinary general meeting. The meeting must be called for
a date not more than three months after the date on which the directors become
subject to the requirement to call a meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a relevant right to vote; or not less than fifty shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote may:

- circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of a
general meeting, a statement of not more than 1000 words with respect
to (a) a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt with at that
meeting; or (b) other business to be dealt with at that meeting; or

- request the Company to give, to members of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the annual general meeting, notice of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting.

For further details on the shareholder qualifications, and the procedures and
timeline, in connection with the above, shareholders are kindly requested to refer
to Sections 580 and 615 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING (Continued)

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director of the
Company for election as a director at a general meeting at which elections to the
office of directors are to be considered. The following documents must be
submitted, no later than seven days before the date of the general meeting, to
the Company at its principal office at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit,
Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary: (a) the Director Nomination Form with the required
supporting documents; (b) the candidate’s resume; and (c) a written statement
signed by the candidate of his/her willingness to be elected together with (i) that
candidate’s information as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules; (i) the candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/her
personal data; and (iii) confirmation that there are no grounds for his/her
ineligibility and incompatibility to act as a director and that he/she satisfies the
integrity and, if applicable, independence requirements under the applicable
Listing Rules.

SENDING ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company's Registrar. Shareholders and the investment community may at any
time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that such
information is publicly available. Shareholders may also make enquiries to the
board by writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong
at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES EENRITHEEAE

DIRECTORS

Ramon S. ANG Chairman

Carlos Antonio M. BERBA Deputy Chairman
Ramon G. TORRALBA Managing Director

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

May (Michelle) CHAN Wen Mee
Takashi HAYASHI

Roberto N. HUANG

Fumiaki OZAWA

Tomoki YAMAUCHI

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Alonzo Q. ANCHETA

David LI Kwok-po GBwm, JP

Reynato S. PUNO

Carmelo L. SANTIAGO

William CHENG Chuk Man, Alternate to David LI Kwok-po GBwm, JP

Mr. Ramon S. ANG, aged 64, is the Chairman and a non-executive Director of
the Company. He has been appointed as the Chairman since 10 June 2005 and a
non-executive Director of the Company since 27 November 1998. He is the
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc., the ultimate parent company of the Company (the shares of which
are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and Petron Corporation (the shares of
which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), Vice Chairman, President and
Chief Operating Officer of San Miguel Corporation (“SMC”) (the shares of which
are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), Chairman and President of SMC
Global Power Holdings Corp. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing &
Exchange Corp.) and the Chairman of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed
on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). Mr. Ang also holds the following
positions: the President of Ginebra San Miguel Inc. (the shares of which are listed
on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and Vice Chairman of San Miguel Pure Foods
Company Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange),
and Chairman of Petron Malaysia Refining & Marketing Berhad (the shares of
which are listed on the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange). Mr. Ang is also the
Chairman, President and/or Director of various subsidiaries of SMC. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from Far Eastern
University.

Mr. Carlos Antonio M. BERBA, aged 53, was appointed as Deputy Chairman
and Remuneration Committee member of the Company on 27 August 2010.
Mr. Berba has been a Director of the Company since 16 April 2007. He is the
Managing Director of San Miguel Brewing International Limited, a Director of
Neptunia Corporation Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company), and a
Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing &
Exchange Corp.). He is also a Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Tbk (the shares
of which are listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange), a Director of San Miguel
Beer (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Ltd., San Miguel Marketing
(Thailand) Limited, and various other subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Berba has
over 30 years of experience in general management, finance, strategic planning,
and corporate structuring initiatives. Mr. Berba graduated from the University of
the Philippines with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering. He
later obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration (with distinction) from
the Wharton School of Business, University of Pennsylvania and a Master’s degree
in Japanese Business Studies from Japan America Institute of Management
Science & Chaminade University of Honolulu.
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Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, aged 61, was appointed as an executive Director
and Managing Director of the Company with effect from 15 January 2013.
Mr. Torralba was the Vice President and Manager for Export Development of San
Miguel Brewing International Limited (a subsidiary of San Miguel Brewery Inc.)
since 2007. He was also a Director of San Miguel (Thailand) Company, Ltd. from
2006 to 2007 and Vice President and Commercial Director of San Miguel
Marketing (Thailand) Ltd. from 2004 to 2007. He was also Assistant Vice
President-Consultant for Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Co. Ltd., San Miguel
(Guangdong) Brewery Co. Ltd. and San Miguel (Baoding) Brewery Co. Ltd. of the
Beer Division of San Miguel Corporation from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Torralba
graduated from Zamboanga A.E. Colleges with a degree of Bachelor of Science in
Commerce, major in Accounting. He also attended the Management Development
Program at the Asian Institute of Management (International School of Business
and Management) in the Philippines in 1991. Mr. Torralba is a Certified Public
Accountant and a member of the Philippine Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Alonzo Q. ANCHETA, aged 85, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 24 February 2017. He is currently an
independent director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is the President of Zobella & Co. (A.Q.
Ancheta & Partners): Trademark & Patent Attorneys and the Co-Founding Partner/
Senior Adviser of Quasha Ancheta Pefia & Nolasco Law Offices. He is also the
Chairman and President of Oglivy & Mather Philippines, Inc., the President of
Growe Investments Ltd., a Member of the Board of Trustees of St. Luke’s Medical
Center, and an Independent Director of PTFC Redevelopment Corporation (the
shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). Mr. Ancheta also
provided service for the Philippine Government as the Administrator of National
Tobacco Administration (1987-1990). Mr. Ancheta graduated from the University
of Manila with a Bachelor's degree in Arts (Magna cum Laude) in 1953 and a
Bachelor's degree in Laws (Cum laude) in 1957. He is a lawyer (A.B., LL.B) by
profession, with practice areas in intellectual property law and commercial/
corporate law. He is also a member of various organizations, including Intellectual
Property Association of the Philippines (Council Adviser, 1998-present),
International Trademark Association, LAWASIA, Inter-Pacific Bar Association,
ASEAN Law Association (Philippine National Committee, 1986-present; Vice Chair,
2001-present), ASEAN Intellectual Property Association, American Chamber of
Ccommerce of the Philippines, Canadian Chamber of Commerce of the Philippines,
Philippines-Japan Society, Inc., Jaycees International (Senator) and For Love of
Mother Earth, Inc.

Ms. May (Michelle) CHAN Wen Mee, aged 53, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 11 March 2011. Ms. Chan serves as Managing Director
of A.S. Watson Industries Limited. She served as Managing Director of Hutchison
Harbour Ring Limited from 1 February 2006 to 31 October 2010 and served as
Executive Deputy Managing Director of Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited from 18
May 2005 to 31 January 2006. Ms. Chan has extensive experience in managing
property development and investment businesses in mainland China. She also
holds directorships in certain companies controlled by Hutchison Whampoa
Limited. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.
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Mr. Takashi HAYASHI, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company on 25 April 2014. Mr. Hayashi is the Executive Financial Advisor and
a Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing
& Exchange Corp.). He is also a Director of San Miguel Brewing International
Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Beer (Thailand)
Limited, Iconic Beverages, Inc., Brewery Properties Inc. and Brewery
Landholdings, Inc. Mr. Hayashi served in the Kirin group of companies in various
capacities. Mr. Hayashi graduated from Keio University with a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics in 1989. He is a Chartered Member of the Securities Analysts
Association of Japan.

Mr. Roberto N. HUANG, aged 69, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director and a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect
from 8 November 2012. Mr. Huang is a Director and President of San Miguel
Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is
also a Director of San Miguel Brewing International Limited, and the Chairman and
President of Iconic Beverages, Inc., Brewery Properties Inc., and Brewery
Landholdings, Inc. Mr. Huang graduated from Mapua Institute of Technology with
a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering and completed academic
requirements for a Master’s degree in Business Administration from De La Salle
University. He also attended the Nagoya International Training Center, Japan
International Cooperation Agency Grant for Metal Works Engineering and
Numerical Control Machines course.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI KwoKk-po GBwm, GBS, OBE, JP, MA Cantab. (Economics &
Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh

Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon.
DLitt (Macquarie), Hon. DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP,
FCIArb, Officier de I'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian
Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans
I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur, aged 78, was appointed on 22 March 1991.
Sir David is an independent non-executive Director, Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is the Chairman and Chief Executive of The Bank
of East Asia, Limited (listed in Hong Kong), and is an independent non-executive
Director of Guangdong Investment Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas
Company Limited, The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited
and Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (all listed in Hong Kong). He is also a
Director of Hong Kong Interbank Clearing Limited. He was an independent
non-executive Director of SCMP Group Limited (now known as Great Wall Pan
Asia Holdings Limited). Sir David is a member of the Council of the Treasury
Markets Association. He is Founding Chairman of The Friends of Cambridge
University in Hong Kong Limited, Chairman of the Advisory Board of The Salvation
Army, Hong Kong and Macau Command and Chairman of the Executive
Committee of St. James' Settlement. He was a member of the Legislative Council
of Hong Kong from 1985 to 2012.
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Mr. Fumiaki OZAWA, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 April 2017. He is also a Director of San Miguel Brewing
International Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Beer
(Thailand) Limited and San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Limited. Mr. Ozawa was a
former Director and Executive Financial Advisor of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (a
company listed on the Philippine Dealings & Exchange Corp.), the Senior Manager
of Corporate Strategy Department of Kirin Holdings Company, Limited and Senior
Manager of Management Planning Department, Kirin Company, Limited. He was
also the Manager of Management Planning Department of Kirin Company, Limited
(2013-2015); Manager of Qverseas Sales Division, Kirin Techno-System Company,
Limited and Sales Representative of Off-premise Sales Section, Tohoku Regional
Head Office, Kirin Brewery Company, Limited (2004-2013). Mr. Ozawa graduated
from Waseda University with a bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1992.

Mr. Reynato S. PUNO, aged 77, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and Nomination Committee member of the Company from
8 November 2012 and as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee from
February 24, 2017. Mr. Puno is an independent Director of San Miguel Corporation
(the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), and Union Bank
of the Philippines, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange), and an Independent Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Thk (the
shares of which are listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange). He is also the
Chairman of the Environmental Heroes Foundation, Vice Chairman of World Vision
and GMA Kapuso Foundation, and a Director of The New Standard newspaper.
Mr. Puno served as the Chief Justice of the Philippine Supreme Court from 6
December 2006 until his retirement on 17 May 2010. He also served previously as
an Associate Justice of the Supreme Court, Associate Justice of the Court of
Appeals and Appellate Justice of the Intermediate Appellate Court, and as an
Independent Director of Marcventure Holdings, Inc. (the shares of which are listed
on the Philippine Stock Exchange). Mr. Puno completed his Bachelor of Laws from
the University of the Philippines in 1962, and has a Master of Laws degree from
the University of California in Berkeley (1968) and a Master in Comparative Law
degree from the Southern Methodist University, Dallas, Texas (1967).

Mr. Carmelo L. SANTIAGO, aged 75, is an independent non-executive Director,
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is an Independent Director
of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing &
Exchange Corp.) and San Miguel Pure Foods Company, Inc. (the shares of which
are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and a Director of the Aurora Pacific
Economic Zone Freeport Authority. Mr. Santiago is the founder and owner of
several branches of Melo’s restaurant in the Philippines and a Director of Terbo
concept, Inc., a Philippine company engaged in retail and food business. He was
a Director of the Company from 27 February 2003 to 23 February 2005 and was a
former independent director of Liberty Telecoms Holdings Inc. (@ company listed
in the Philippine Stock Exchange until its voluntary delisting in November 2016).
Having over 40 years of directorate positions in various companies in the
Philippines and Hong Kong, Mr. Santiago has extensive experience in foods,
beverages, publication, properties, power and banking industries.
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Mr. Tomoki YAMAUCHI, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company on 27 October 2017. Mr. Yamauchi is the Executive Financial
Advisor and Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is also a Director of San Miguel Brewing
International Limited and San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited. He was previously
the Senior Manager of Accounting Department of Kirin Company, Limited and the
Senior Manager of Planning Department of Kirin Beverage Company, Limited
(2016-September 2017). Mr. Yamauchi was also the Senior Manager of
Management Planning Department of Kirin Company, Limited and Senior Manager
of Accounting Unit Group Finance of Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (2013-2016);
Senior Manager of Finance and Accounting Department of Kirin Group Office
Company, Limited (2011-2013); Senior Manager of Finance and Accounting
Department of Kirin Business Expert Company, Limited (2010-2011); Manager of
J-SOX compliance integration of Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (2007-2010); and
Director and Treasurer of Coca-Cola Bottling Company of Northern New England,
Inc. (2003-2007). Mr. Yamauchi graduated from Keio University with a bachelor's
degree in Economics in 1992. He also completed a program for Management
Development in Harvard Business School in 2004.

Mr. William CHENG Chuk Man, aged 58, is Group Chief Financial Officer of The
Bank of East Asia, Limited. He is currently a Director of The Hong Kong Settlers
Housing Corporation Limited. He was previously a member of the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance) during the period from 1998 to 2007. Mr. Cheng holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of Sydney in
Australia, and a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) degree from the University
of Birmingham in Britain. He is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Ramon G. TORRALBA
Managing Director

John K.L. CHEUNG
Chief Finance Officer & Company Secretary

Richard W.K. CHAN
General Sales Manager

Eric P.K. LAM
Marketing Director

Ric W.T. YEUNG
Senior Manager — Logistics

CK.HO
Senior Manager — Operations

Steven CO
Senior Manager — Corporate Development

Edith Y.M. NG
Senior Manager — Human Resources & Administration

Eric W.M. CHEUNG
Senior Manager — Information Technology

Vincent K.M. KWOK
Managing Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited

Elisito A. LOCAYLOCAY
Assistant Vice President/Plant Manager/Brewmaster of San Miguel (Guangdong)
Brewery Company Limited

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, Managing Director. Please refer to the Directors
section on page 54 for details.

Mr. John K.L. CHEUNG, mBA, B8A, aged 54, Chief Finance Officer & Company
Secretary, joined the Company in 1997. Mr. Cheung is a member of the Institute
of Management Accountants. He has over 31-year solid experience in finance and
accounting in various industries. Mr. Cheung received a Master's degree and a
Bachelor’s degree, both in Business Administration, from Georgia State University,
USA.

Mr Richard W.K. CHAN, msc, aged 50, General Sales Manager, joined the
Company in 2016. Mr. Chan has over 31 years of sales experience from various
industries.

Mr. Eric P.K. LAM, MBA, BA, aged 53, Marketing Director, joined the Company in
2008. Mr. Lam has over 24 years of experience in marketing in various industries.

Mr. Ric W.T. YEUNG, B8A, aged 54, Senior Manager — Logistics, joined the
Company in 1983. Mr. Yeung has more than 34 years of extensive experience in
supply planning, procurement and physical distribution.
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Mr. C.K. HO, wmsc, pip, aged 59, Senior Manager — Operations, joined the
Company in 1988. Mr. Ho has over 29 years of service with the Company. He has
extensive experience in the operations of beer production.

Mr. Steven CO, B4, aged 48, Senior Manager — Corporate Development, joined
San Miguel Brewing Group of San Miguel Corporation in 1994. Mr. Co has more
than 23 years of experience in business planning, business research, corporate
affairs and quality management in the Company.

Ms. Edith Y.M. NG, vBA, DIp, aged 55, Senior Manager — Human Resources &
Administration, joined the Company in 1989. Ms. Ng has gained 31 years of
experience in the fields of marketing, sales and human resources.

Mr. Eric W.M. CHEUNG, DBA, MBA, MSc, BSc, aged 55, Senior Manager —
Information Technology, joined the Company in 1993. Mr. Cheung has gained 31
years of solid experience in the operations and management of the Information
Technology functions.

Mr. Vincent K.M. KWOK, vBA, BBA, aged 49, was appointed as the Managing
Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited on 1 January 2011.
Mr. Kwok joined the Company in 2003. He has more than 26 years of solid
experience in marketing in various industries.

Mr. Elisito A. LOCAYLOCAY, BschEe, aged 55, AVP/Plant Manager/Brewmaster
of San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited. Mr. Locaylocay joined San
Miguel Brewery Inc. in 1987. He has extensive working experience in both
Domestic and International Operations. Mr. Locaylocay graduated from University
of San Carlos with a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical Engineering.
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Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except
per share data and number of personnel

BET-_A=+—HIFE K8k
B BIE R E TABINIABE T Tt &

Ten Year Review + £ O
2017 2016 2015
—E—+tF —ZE—RF —ET—A0F
Revenue WA 565,785 541,427 569,502
Profit/(loss) from operations (2) rmERF (BB Q) 20,692 11,505 (11,555)
Profit/(loss) for the year (2) FEAF, (EE) Q2 15,219 6,705 (16,909)
Taxes paid, including beer tax ol 78 33 NS S A 13,432 10,494 15,984
Cash dividends attributable to the year FEEERSRE - - -
Cash dividends per share (cents) FRIFE SIS (L) - - -
Non-current tangible assets and projects ERBEREENERYTIER
under development 576,388 584,806 597,381
Net worth (1) EE (1) 584,811 558,084 544,986
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHEMEBT 121,606 116,014 118,421
Number of personnel (3) ETAZ Q) 516 539 549
(M Net worth for 2008 has been restated for a change in accounting policy for intangible assets.
()] Profit from operations and profit for 2012 have been restated for the change in accounting policy for employee benefits.
(3) Number of personnel represents actual headcount as of the last working day of the year.
]
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Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except

per share data and number of personnel

BET_A=+—HIFE K8k

B BIE R E TABIMNIABE T Tt &

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
— P4 —E—= —E—= —F—— —E—TF —ETRF —EENF
(restated) (restated)
(B&E%) (BE5)
728,640 687,093 686,362 683,879 589,322 696,824 753,375
41,635 28,674 243,428 (48,365) (770,605) (331,879) (301,033)
36,994 25,824 226,976 (68,638) (773,987) (343,052) (258,155)
20,670 19,614 26,683 36,009 42,020 68,877 102,485
7,472 3,736 - - - - -
2 1 - - - - -
621,309 635,893 654,678 389,671 398,011 1,087,198 1,379,561
571,949 543,678 511,836 297,223 391,474 1,169,484 1,490,925
116,888 106,631 104,724 101,023 96,719 99,341 91,656
566 587 606 635 732 766 766
) TEENFFECHREFREE 2 GTBR Eﬁz“iﬂ
2 CERANR - —F7RAANEREERMN I ETBURREET -
3) BIABERFERE —BAIEAZER %il%za o
I
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-Z—tF+-A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 8E)
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF

Note $'000 $'000

B EE Fr FT
Revenue A 3 565,785 541,427
Cost of sales SHE KA (314,210) (303,111)
Gross profit EF 251,575 238,316
Other net income s F58 4 38,509 42,443
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (184,772) (178,366)
Administrative expenses THAX (77,591) (82,849)
Other operating expenses H bR RS (7,029) (8,039)
Profit from operations LERR 20,692 11,505
Finance costs MEER 5(a) (6,292) (5,578)
Profit before taxation BR¥L AT 2 R 5 14,400 5,927
Income tax credit TIECE N 6 819 778
Profit for the year FEREF 15,219 6,705
Attributable to: BT :
Equity shareholders of the Company ARRERFTEA 12,480 8,654
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R 2,739 (1,949)
Profit for the year FEREF 15,219 6,705
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (cents) ER () 10(a) 3 2
Diluted (cents) B () 10(b) N/ATE A N/AT 36 A

The notes on pages 68 to 129 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #R& & H W &= &

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_ZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABBETE)
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Fr T
Profitfortheyear ~ FEEBN 15,219 ISRNGHCoN
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEKE (BRBIE)
for the year (after tax) 9

Items that may be reclassified subsequently HK 2 ERHIA a9 E A

to profit or l0ss
Exchange differences on translation of: PE N E%E
— financial statements of subsidiaries outside — B E G INHT B A R B SRR
Hong Kong FREEZEN =5 (23,091) 23,329
— monetary items that form part of the net —HE K & E A B A A
investment in subsidiaries outside ZIRENEEIBEMEEAZ
Hong Kong bE 5, =5 25,126 (24,490)
2,035 (1,161)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 0SS ##1& & # 5| A #8 75 #9718 H
Actuarial gains and losses of defined FEREBARKGE 2 BERT REE
benefit retirement plan 9,473 7,554
I 11,508 | 6378
Total comprehensive income for the year S£EZHEWFAEH 26,727 13,098
Attributable to: FERIT :
Equity shareholders of the Company AArIERFEEA 25,880 13,171
Non-controlling interests AR 847 73)
Total comprehensive income for the year S£EZHEWFAEH 26,727 13,098
The notes on pages 68 to 129 form part of these financial statements. TN FE6IE 1298 v R IBEW s AR BiRE 2 —
BB o
[ ]
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At 31 December 2017

R-F—tF+_H=1+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA M)
2017 2016
—E—+F —ZE—RF
Note $'000 $'000
b= Fr Tt
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment M IR RERE 1(@) 369,125 372,125
Investment properties AW 1(a) 130,206 134,923
Interests in leasehold land held for ERLEHETAAMES
own use under operating leases RS + S 11(a) 77,057 77,758
576,388 584,806
Intangible assets mRAE 12 4,781 5,139
581,169 589,945
Current assets mEEE
Inventories TE 14 47,708 49,247
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 Kk H A ARIA 15 51,846 57,843
Amounts due from holding companies il NG
and fellow subsidiaries ARG 16 21,977 15,167
Amount due from a related company FEWR A E N B BRIE 16 1,685 1,532
Bank deposits IRITER 17 39,197 46,602
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEEEER 17 130,146 111,117
292,559 281,508
current liabilities BB E
Trade and other payables ERE S REAMRIEA 18 (95,248) (88,578)
Loan from an intermediate holding company ANERARZER 19 (51,294) (25,448)
Amounts due to holding companies IR A A
and fellow subsidiaries ACEL NG 16 (8,524) (6,990)
Amounts due to related companies FES RAE N FIRRIA 16 (8,588) (6,130)
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ (163,654) (127.146)
Net current assets REBEERE 128,905 154,362
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %4

ﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ%‘%

At 31 December 2017

R_E—tF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AABEEE)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note $'000 $'000
B EE Frx Tt
Total assets less current liabilities ~~~ ##Z@g#nd&&® 710,074 RN
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Loan from an intermediate holding company FRMERR AR Z B 19 (115,412) (165,410)
Retirement benefit liabilities ﬁivk%%%uﬁaﬁ% 20(a) (5,799) (17,844)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRIEEE 21(a) (4,052) (2,969)
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ (125.263) | (186223
NET ASSETS EEFE 584,811 558,084
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R S
Share capital A% X 22(b) 252,524 252,524
Other reserves H At 358,567 332,687
Total equity attributable to equity AATEERFEAEBGESR
shareholders of the Company 611,091 585,211
Non-controlling interests FERER (26,280) (27,127
TOTAL EQUITY P 584,811 558,084

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 February 2018.

4

Ramon S. Ang
Director

EEX
BF

The notes on pages 68 to 129 form part of these financial statements.

RAEEEN
T -

Ramon G. Torralba

Director

—NFZ_RAZ+NBHAEREK

HER
EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &8 B 8 &

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-_T—tF+-A=+—HIEFE
(ABETE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARTREREARETS
Exchange Non-
Share Capital  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
RA ExGfE ENRDRE WEfE Bt FBRER BREE
Note $000 §1000 $000 $1000 000 $000 $1000
iR T T R T T T T
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZB-A%
-A-B&& 250524 112970 78907 127,639 572,040 (27,054) 544,986
Changes in equity for 2016; “E-REEERE.
Profit/loss) for the year EERF/ (BR) - - - 8,654 8654 (1,949) 6,705
Other comprehensive income A2k 9 - - (3037) 7554 4517 1876 6,393
Total comprehensive income EEREVAEE
for the year = - (3037) 16,208 13171 n3) 13,09
Balance at 31 December 2016 RoB-RE
and 1 January 2017 tZA=1-H
R=%-t§
[ CACRER Z524 VSN0 TSR0 wBBTsesam @) SSBOBA
Changes in equity for 2017: “E-LEERRE.
Profit for the year ERET - - - 12,480 12,480 2,739 15,219
Other comprehensive income Ep2Eks 9 - - 3,927 9,473 13,400 (1.892) 11,508
Total comprehensive income FE2AlGEE
e R S L S, 11 S . S, Mro_
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE-tF
tZA=t-B&8 252,524 112,970 79,797 165,800 611,091 (26,280) 584,811

The notes on pages 68 to 129 form part of these financial statements.
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EBENEERARAT —B—tEER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT Z4BE4£ T8k

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_Z—+tE+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A1)
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
Note $'000 $'000
B EE Fr T
Operating activities R
Cash generated from operations KEEBZBRERA 17(b) 52,637 27,219
Net cash generated from REEBZBHERA
operating activites ] i 52,637 27219
Investing activities REXEK
Payment for the purchase of non-current assets & IE R BN & B P 30 (14,471) (13,813)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets HEFEREHE Fﬁﬁ%%’( 2,253 2,036
Decrease in bank deposits RITFEFTORLD 7,405 4,280
Interest received B LA 1,279 829
Net cash used in investing activities = BREXBZRemmEE 0 3534 et |
Financing activities AEEE
Repayment of loan from an Intermediate BRTHRNERAF 2 ER
holding company 17(c) (25,649) =
Interest paid BAH 8 17(c) (6,181) (5,454)
Net cash used in financing activities =~ BEZEBZRemwFE®E (31.830) (6.454)
Net increase in cash RERZEEREEE
and cash equivalents Z BRI m 17,273 15,097
cash and cash equivalents R—BA—BzE£
at 1 January RERBLEHGERE 17(a) 111,117 97,718
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes ER&E) 8% 1,756 (1,698)
cash and cash equivalents RT=-—BA=+—HzZzHE=2
at 31 December RERRLEBERF 17(a) 130,146 111,117
The notes on pages 68 to 129 form part of these financial statements. IR EO8EI1298 v FIEM T AR B#REK 2 —
B1p o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHEETIN HEBETE)

1 significant accounting policies 1 FESHBK

(@) Statement of compliance (a) BrFEH
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all KM ERRDBIBEMERER 2 EBMER
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS”), which SR ([BBIBRELER] ) MiRE - [ &
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial BYBREERN —RAEEEELIHMA
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and SEM2AMEEANERNEEVBRESE
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public B - BESHEAN([EEST£E]]) kE
Accountants (“"HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong B EFEAReFRIEEACDIED)
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. ZHE - ZEVBRERNETEABAET
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure SMBRATES EMHRA (T EHmHAD
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock JEBEERTE AEEXRBZEEES
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Significant REBEWNT
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first EhetMAeRBAE T2 REEE]
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period TEBMERERED > WRALEE AL
of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting STHEE AN THIREERM - X
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the FERIEmBERAERZ #HETER 2| 2
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior REHRNEESHBEHZ AN ST EEE
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements. HER A EHRERARBE - BEERED

MsE1(C) ©

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) #mBEIBEHEKZER
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December B2 Z—+F+_-_A=+—HIEFEZ
2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as GRAEMBREBIEARTLENB AR (4
the “Group”). BAIAEE] -
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial WBHRRTIABR LR BREELE -
statements is the historical cost basis.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs BGOSR EMEREENNPERES
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions KEEBEH e ERRERBREE 8
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, B -WABEESTORESSER I - E
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated EBERORE -Het R BERKIDIREB
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors Bk EREEEEBEATESERN
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of EMRAEmMEL  HERK ASEEMNEK
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of B TBEAZENEEHEBERABED
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. VR ET - BR&ERI A ENZE R
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 5t
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing HEtREEBRE AR c HesH e
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in EITIBRTR BRI R EZHHE - AlE
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in e BT EAMEBRANER BBy
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both B YR R AR HARS - B TE(8 ET % ok 3K HA
current and future periods. fE R o
Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have IR A BB IS S E R T E L B9 H B
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of UREEE T —FEZHBERRBERNEKR
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2. FERR G mAREIN R M2 -

I
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B7 7% 3 3% Ffi 3£

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREEETIN HEBEFTE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1. FESHBE®

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) BFBENEH
The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first EHheHMAoEBhZ2ERAEERAS
effective for the current accounting period of the Group. None of these TR B R ERNE AN G IREEANSET
impact on the accounting policies of the Group. However, additional BB EENEIE - AT
disclosure has been included in note 17(c) to satisfy the new disclosure 177 () ERERINBEZRERAREE
requirements introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of BT ERBTRHE 2R EXFEENE
cash flows: Disclosure initiative, which require entities to provide SISl AT HREEZSK  WEFTEEREE
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes IR BR DA B A5 R A B BE AT 8
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising B EHELENaGE  RERERS RS
from cash flows and non-cash changes. MIER B MEENES
The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not AEBEWARKAERNRARBGETEHREE KR
yet effective for the current accounting period. ERBFERIS R RE -

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) HBLARRFERES

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

MBARRAEEMEG2ER - E48%
B RBA2EBERBIEBAMALELES
BHoORIEREENEAZED RS
BN AIAKREZEHZER -EFE
AEERDEZSHENE EEZ8 (A%
EMEMTAFHEN) BEER -

REBRARZRERFAEHERBHA
BAEBHRERAN BEEESIELILERIL -
EEBARRZHEZES RHRBEER
E URRGMELEZEMRBRAETN
TRREFEAVBHRRETEIEE - 8
MERE AEEARRZEZZZME
EZARBREE DUARERBFERZ
fiZeani NI

FERESEREIFERIRAEEBNAR
AWM EARELRE  MASBE REZER
HEEERETAMNGR R EEER
EHZERGELTAMBABERNE
EEG - BRBRELCEAH SEAREE
NAREBEINANEENBRARIHREE
FFE R PTG LL ) FERR IR 1R A i 25 -

FEEEREREMBERRRAN IR
@mAlR - BEABEN RERRER D o
FEEERGANEEFENARNHEE
HiIRAWRERADERIFFERES LA R
BRARBBRRESEAZH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHEETIN HEBETE)
1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1. FEEHBE®
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued) (d MEBELARRIFZERER(E)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss AEERKBRAREDR 2 EB R #BIE

of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments FIEELANZ S  EEZATZH AR

are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests RAEMEDZE N 2R R IEERFEZEER
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but PR RMAAEERESE - BTERIER -
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a MEAEEREWB QA 216 - %A

disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or RGBEREEZNB AR Z ST

loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former HERXZPERER - TR ASEAMRE
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and AIMB AR FgERRERIESER AR
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial BERER ZEATREEVRBERZIAN

asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an B RARBEARSIHERESERE 2

investment in an associate or joint venture. RITERA (REA) -

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a EARARBIZHBARAERA  WEBARER

subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j). VABK A RUR BB 18 (R M EE13)) IR -

(e) Property, plant and equipment () W% HIERRE

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost MEZIRENUKANREREEE (R

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)), with TNFIERIN - AT % - B LR EE

the exception of construction in progress which is stated at cost less any KA 2T E R BEEREYEE (R

impairment losses (see note 1(j)). 1)) -

- land classified as being held under finance leases and buildings — DEAMEHETN LM ERYE (R
thereon (see note 1(Q); M3E1(8)

- buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land - ENBEAKEHETH I M ENE
classified as held under operating leases (see note 1(g); and B (AHE1NR) s &

- other items of plant and equipment. - HAb i 2SR o

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of WEESKHEME - BERREEE 2AE

property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between DHEMGBRIBEFEUALEHEBEEREE

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are ZEE WHARENEEAEEEPER -
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant WETIEE - a3 Rk B AR E 5T

and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any, using the FerEBE (ME)  EHET MG {FERSF

straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows: ERHATR A B AR VA ST E i i eH -

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is - NEABEMRE T LA RERM
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease. THEHRMEITE -

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the - ERELH FHYERKRERHEE
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful H R BARETRIE A (M R+
lives, being no more than 50 years. F)MEPREGHAMTE -

- Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 4 10 50 years — s B MFEERTF

RMREE

- Motor vehicles 4 t0 7 years — Hif MEELF

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until EEIRERRBEETKMAIKRAERIITE

such time when the assets are substantially completed and ready for use. SHRITE -

[
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B7 7% 3 3% Ffi 3£

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREEETIN HEBEFTE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1. FESHBE®

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (e) W% HEkXEE
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different EEYE BMBERREZSBHETR
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis HafEREH kBB &3 2K A%
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the EREARSE  MEBBOHBIERBIITE -
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually. N FRBEEZAFERFEENEF

BREBE(NE) -

()  Investment properties fl ®rEWE
Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held EMERBRIESWAR & AEKNE
under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/or for EmMEAEXBEEE#EZ (RMEE1E) &
capital appreciation. BN REE -
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation WEERK AN EITE RFEEEY
and impairment losses (see note 1()). Depreciation is calculated to write BR(RMFE0) ~TE DB REMERK
off the cost of investment properties, less their estimated residual values, MEFSBE(WE)  ERAEMEESRK
if any, using the straight-line method over the shorter of the unexpired HEEFAERFHCMNEBRETF)MEF
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 BRHBAE S ETE MM -
years.
Both the useful lives of the investment properties and their residual KEENFERFHEREFGEE (M
values, if any, are reviewed annually. B)ERFEL B -
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described B Y KT & W AR IR B SE1(n i) BTt
in note 1(n(i. FREE -

(g) Leased assets (g) HEEE
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or WMAEEREZHEEERTHEANRB
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a YR —E—ZRWWZREmMERAE—FTE
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in EXZBEEZEMN BI%LHE (H—F
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is XHH—ERHRSEK) AEEXBER
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is & ZBEEIREBELREZ AR EmEL
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease. MERTHEREEBEHREZEZRER -

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) HEFEAEBZEENDE

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property is classified as investment
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a finance
lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, where the fair
value cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

HRAKEEUNRERANEE  MARME
EREAEENBAID R R ML HEE
EREE FHEAEFESIFRSUBEN
ERE -UARBHEAEEZMARBRMA
nHREIHEEE  NIRKEHEE N
TERSN

- NERENMEEENRLHEME
EWROBMEREME - MREDE
EREWE ZHEEUREEE
AR R

- RELLEEREAMBEN L
o BoR BEEHERIKE T
HUNEHELI EOEENDAE
BEOHNE SFRREREHEE
HEAR BRIEBHRBETBAR
BREMRORE - AERI® - 5L
mE HENHRKEALAEEE
RETSLAEAIES - S AT AR AT

B o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHEETIN HEBETE)
1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1. FEEHBE®
(8) Leased assets (Continued) (g) HEEE(H
(ii)  Operating lease charges (i) &KEHE
- Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating — MAEBREBELEHEFHREE
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or RIBEED 2 RIB IR B=mAP A
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by EHEHEHMEE 2 @A X
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit e TS E R BN a0 E AR
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments VEE’j%gg@ﬁEH?ﬁ%ﬁE’\]—%ﬁﬁE
made. BRPES
- The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is — DM E B ERE T MM KEER AN E
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease REGFERSHREN - RER
term. Impairment losses are recognised in accordance with the 18 & 3% B T 52 1() B0 & 51 B 3R 2K #E
accounting policy set out in note 1(i). A e
(h) Intangible assets (hy EBEEE
Intangible assets represent acquired trademarks and club debentures and BIZ R & T E A B AR AR = R E 1B 5
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i). AR (RBTEE3) -
These intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are ZEBWEEVESE RAAHUGERT
assessed to be indefinite and are tested annually for impairment (see note BT AT EE NS FEAERBENR (R
130). FEEE1G) ©
The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is HH/QFZTEFHEHHTTJE;EE’]%E@ZE
reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances FRIAUABCBEIARTEBESIEZEEY
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. THETE 5 A EEEZEW& “HR
(i) Impairment of assets (i) EERE
(i) Impairment of receivables (i) FE W TR 1B B R (B
Receivables that are stated at amortised cost or at cost are reviewed at 28 B K A7) BR ZJ%'H&EEIEH %% A
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective TR UWECESARERBIE AL
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes BRE RENETEERZIREATAER
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or B Em— I8 2 IE 18 L ETA M A B SR B i -
more of the following loss events:
- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - B AEKNK IR E
- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest — ERAL ﬁD%’@ﬁ(E}Z?@EﬁE%ﬁ%‘J
or principal payments; B A& KA
- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or — B ANETHESHE M EERG
other financial reorganisation; and BAgEER &
- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal — TERM -5 & ,E_jz;ﬂi@ﬁ% g
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor. WEBEBRNEHEBABTNTE
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREEETIN HEBEFTE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHBE®
(i)  Impairment of assets (Continued) (iy EERME®E

(i) Impairment of receivables (Continued) (i) FEWFRIENRE (&)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

- An impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets) for receivables carried at amortised
cost or discounted at the current market rate of return for similar
financial assets for receivables stated at cost, where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment 10ss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or 10ss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables included within trade and other receivables, the recovery of
which is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or 10ss.

WE T RERAELRRE  EARE
BRI EE MER

- MEBBRLRZEERTERMG R
XReREFREZEZHNE B
ERERMEEZ RTHERHE (A
BEEENRERR A EOERF
F)ETIRR (WBERFEBEN) -
BERBHEKAIIRZEREES
BEBURRED (MEINE S
AHER) FORB BB ERIE -
IR - M EREZE
BEENRRRSREDREZS
SERRMERUNEENBEIE

iR BB ERERAERD
i 75 BE R 4> A] 2 AR b B o 2R (B B
BRELZEMHABE  BIRES
BREDEO - AT SEHEE
ZARHEEBEHNBEFEL EE
RBZREBERREEE 225 -

R B 1R B R AR R R A MRS R
& UL B 55 Ko B At B 5K ) B UK R 53 R K
REBEEE  RREERBFED TP
STE - AMERIG - EULBR T - RIERD
MEBEEBRERLE  EXAEEEWN
U o] # = B S - BIHUR A AN ) & 58
SEERAERKE ZRKDME  MERD
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHEETIN HEBETE)
1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHBE®
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) EEREW®
(i)  Impairment of other assets (i) Ht#EERE
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of REELER BT RBRINEER - LA
each reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may AT EERGEDHBERER AR
be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists RZBERBE N FEIRD
or may have decreased:
- Property, plant and equipment; - ER T )&
- Investment properties; — "EYSE
- Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating — EREHETEAmEENEEL
leases; AR
- Intangible assets; and - mEEE R
- Investments in subsidiaries in the Company’'s statement of — AR B B 35 AR 5 3k RO BT B8 1 Bl 4
financial position. oo
If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. WEFEERAEETR IS HAEED
In addition, for intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the A EIEEE - W RS ERERFEASF
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any HHEFEEMS  AEBeFFHEtHE
indication of impairment. el &5 - LEEEREEMBAEDNR
- Calculation of recoverable amount - FrE A E SRR
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value BEZAkoOcEAEEBFEN
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, FHEEMERZ®SE - RaE
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present FRBERE  @F HBRBATALIR X
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market BEFTRRRBEREHEER
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to B ZMWAERRERERY TS SR
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely S EERHEBENZEE S
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount BRK - WEEXLRERERNBE L
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash REMEETHRIRRSRE A
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). BYBEBIReRE R EREE
(BNERERIR & By ) 2K EE E AT el &
B o
- Recognition of impairment losses - R EEE
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying BEEE(REFMBENRSELSE
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it ) MEEEERAEL T IESEE -
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses erlamXBRBERE -
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to MR B RN BEEE 2N
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of WA B (BB BEEMKE
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an B PIDEE  HEEEREIS
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs WAOEERRERT R EERE
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use. EXANFEREBECERETE) °
- Reversals of impairment losses — R EE 1A
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable WALET AT ESE 2 HetHER
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable EE - BB EREEE -
amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying e RERBEERNMATFEE
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss WABRREBEMEIICEEZ
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are FREE - BB 2R E R BT R R
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are BEzFEGAERmSP -
recognised.
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREEETIN HEBEFTE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHBE®

() Inventories () =&
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. BEDNERNARTER FEME 2REE

(ERER

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises AN LA DN#E R A LR E - W BRIERA
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in BEAAN MIKARBFEEBR R
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. SHERAR T E A Z B AR -
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of A EEAR B EK A EER AT
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs SERAA N EETEEKAK -
necessary to make the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is REEGFER ZEFECEAESRR
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is BRAWZHEIIERS - FEMBE &
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable R E 2 858 R P B 17 & 8 18 19 O MURL 3k
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the EREEYERSE - BA] &I EEEINm
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any 75 H [0 B 1 {r] 17 B ORUE & F1 R, 8 [E] 35 A4 HA
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of MFTRERMZH -
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
oceurs.

(k) Receivables (k) FEWkRE
Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at EMFIEZNR AR BEEER - EREIA
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for B R AR A B 8 AR AN R B B R IR BR &R
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except where the receivables BEBEYE (RWE0)  EWEaEE
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed WaIEAETEAEATBEYETFNETE
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such DHMN R B ER  BRIRTEETE
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of Al{ERIZ - A Z BN T @ FEW R IEIRAK
doubtful debts. R R ZREBEREER

(I)  Interest-bearing borrowings () MEMER
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less WEBEIRVIEAABERELRSER
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest- R NIERE - M B & TR HK AT
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference B KAHEBEREENTNEEZSEER
between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being HENEBRR R A EEmPER -
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(m) Payables (m) ENRIE
Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at EBNREENEALBERR E&AE
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in BESSRN R TI(E - MEMMBEIR S ER A - AR
which case they are stated at cost. BB {E o

(n) cash and cash equivalents (n) HekERKRLHEH

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

RekFRAESBEARRTEF R
RIT M H A A TS M 48 2 08 R SR I A8 B
BUESZKRE  MRFRERR A LHRK
CHNRceEABERBERR LA
BAR=MEARNIHZREER -
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1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHBE®

(0) Employee benefits (o) EE®A

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) EHEERAREEMEN
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined BRFEIZEHA TS  FRIEL  AHF
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are R~ TEEFTRKE 2R R ANEE
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by REZIESEGINONAEBREIZEHEA
employees. RS2 FERE -

(i)  Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (i) TEEBAEBRKTEZRIE
The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement plans AEFEEBETEENEKRSTZN FIAESR
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future B TR Eﬁ&;ﬁﬁﬁﬁ ] ﬁﬁhﬁﬁ'}ﬁﬁkﬁ
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the STEBEEARRWERTE ;%Eiﬁljtﬁﬁiﬁ
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the STEEBETHMRERGEEEN QA FE
present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The E-EH quitEE/\éi’zE’JF‘” Bl LAFE 5t B8
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit LLEQE/XL T Bt EERYAEETER
credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the Mz DHEREERNUEAAIBEEHKR
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits SRR R 3k i R A R IE R T 2 R A B
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in wIRME -
future contributions to the plan.
Service cost and net interest expense or income on the net defined TE R AR M) B E 2 E BEF R 60 AR 75 5K AN A R
benefit liability or asset are recognised in profit or loss and allocated by BEXHSI WA FHEERBIPRER  WiRE
function as part of “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses” or EREIBAIHERA]  [HE KD
“administrative expenses”. Current service cost is measured as the YIK[TTHEZIN—%5 - REREK
increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting AEERAHEENREMEEN EEE
from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a plan FaENREENESSE 207 %
are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed H IR & B 5 Jrzljﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁﬁ )@Qh HEBB®BE
benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or 10ss on REREE B S E 53 3k Bt 48 Rk 8%
curtailment, is recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier of BrER @12 Eﬁz “ﬂyﬁ*ﬁjﬁjﬁéiﬁ%ﬁi
when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and when related MERBEEAKX AKBFEBAE (UAKE
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised. Net interest EARE) REBZAERAIE - HAF
expense or income for the period is determined by applying the discount BYH —jzuﬁz)\g@ MEVERSBAVHE T
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of HEABEMEANTEEERANTESE
the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The MeaEEEFEMET - TAMNITHAX
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality EREAEDEAREBFAEEEERER
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the % HEENCEBEAFANREHARNWRRE
Group's obligations. JE °

(iii)  Termination benefits (iiiy ARLEEEEF
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can K LE R BB R 2 & A 5 [RSH IE LE AR A KO
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises RENETHERABEAKXABIESZ A&
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits. B ﬁ@ RUAREEHEBAE) -

(p) Income tax (p) FBH
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred RNEFZ 7 BB E AR 18 & IEIERE
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax BAERAGZEE - REHIEKELERIE
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent BERBEBEZE @jiﬁ{ﬂaﬁnqﬂ EEM i
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or BRREMEEK SR EE JNE e E&
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are MIEE @ BloRlEEMmEmE KSR EP
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, TR o
respectively.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the AEBIETRBEAFEEARBTBA - A
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the REEBMEIERABEIE2HEFEZ
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous TEHEMNTRIE  YRBEFECENHIE
years. YEH R -

I
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1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHBE®
(p) Income tax (Continued) (p) FABH A

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and all
deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination) and temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

ERERRAEERBEDIDHNRBEEEREA
ERERYBRERAZREEREREMN
EEZANRSAERMERER - RIT
MIRE B IR A] /5 R B A 2 B A S 1R R
ABBZHBIERPTEL

BETARZOIMER  MEEEREAR
BREEHREEE CABEER A EANK
HARERBGENERBR)IGE T IARER °
EXFAERAANRESERELEZE
JERRIAE EZ A RERTOGE N - B 7 FE B
CRBERMERERMMEL 2RI NRE
RERE HEZEZRAER-HEHE R
HFRERVERAR YRMNBEHED
AMBRERNER (A B EERELEN
HEEMES 2 HIARIE Z R — B R #
O - REERRERAREREZRA LI
ERARDAREBEMERAEL ZRIE
HREEERTRMBHERER  IZEE8E
HE-HEHEAIARERTERER
WEMA RS ABRAEBRKE L 2 KEH
B (—BRHZE) MEE - Bl T UAFTA -

BRRERREERABZDEHIIMER -
REREHEBELETAIHRBRIEA @ RRVHE
RUBTERTRERTEN ZEEXA
B(MEALIFRBEH 2 B0 ELE TR
ZHAR TMHRWBARZKRERHZ
ERZHE ERNEZEMS AEAEEA
1B B RS R AT R R R S AT B
CEZBERR - ABANREREMS AR
ARERRKEDERR -

BERB AR NZEERAGBZR
HEZERERIINER  RARGHE
BAFATESRAR LT E 2 HEGFE - RIT
MBEEENRBEIL AR -

RERBEEEZREEDNEEEBET
B MiHETBAIEA R ERBE
MAHINB A BRIRSE  EEHREE
EETURD - BB ESBEAERRHE
ARBEN B A RE IR D o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHEETIN HEBETE)
1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHBE®
(p) Income tax (Continued) (p) FREH ()
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, KEAMBEEMSHRESRMESE BT HH
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax PR W BT o ABAIRE RSB
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets BERGEARASANEB B EFEITERE
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally A EHEERHEANHMEHAaE -
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities W EBFENTHAEENBRT - A8
and the following additional conditions are met: DR A AELE TSR AE
- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or — AEFTSMEEMEE  XAAF K
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the AEEFERFHEAELEE
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or BEREZEEMBEZERE X
- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to - BEFEHREENBE : BLEE
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either: MEBEVANER —REEERAT
H - mET B :
- the same taxable entity; or - [l —FERTIHERE ¢ 3k
- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in - TR ERTIEE -G E
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or BEET S| TAER A REBIREFT
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to EHaEREFEIERLTRH
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax BREE R LAY E & & {E R
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle REAM - RFREEAEERA
simultaneously. HIFS A EMBEARAT
"HAaE  KRARFEZE
EMEEZARE -
(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities (q =E#ERIAEE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount IR R T RN B A B AR R
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation BEEAERHETEES AmMBEHSERES
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of LB M E RN - AR A AMEH AT 5§/
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable fHEtEE - AR A e AN & B E @ gt s% B [ sk
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, HETNFHAGBTIRER - MR G
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to BEEX - AREME I EORER Y E
settle the obligation. 1 o
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be MR EHEE R E RN A g 1
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is K sieE LN aEEEELTENE
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of FeEZEBEEALAEE  BERI
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will TR AL R ERIRBR AN c IMBEAREFEH
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more BEABRTERUAERAREGREELES
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the BEMTEA A NTeREAKAFEE
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. 1B & RSN K AT 88 1 AR K RIBR Hb o
(r)  Revenue recognition (n WAER
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or WA R A B U ER sk rT W ERSR BN B9 A A (B E
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to SE - WMESELSENEZNERITEERA
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured REE - A RKA (EA) gE s E
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows: ASEMETER BEAKRABERUTIRE
Wk AR
(i) Sale of goods (i) HEWA
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’ HEWRAEAMBEEM S N E RWED
premises or picked up by customers for domestic sales and when goods AR MR A5 e iR BX - /2 D SH &
are on board vessels for export sales which is taken to be the point in TR ERCHEL  ERESE S
time when the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks EARKETFTUAR - HERATBIELE
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax and ERLERT  YAENBRAEZE ST L
consumption tax and is after deduction of any trade discounts and HRE o
returns.
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREEETIN HEBEFTE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHBE®

() Revenue recognition (Continued) ( WARR @

(i)  Interest income (i) FEKA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest FEWATIZEBRFIRETE -
method.

(ili)  Rental income from operating leases (iii) ReFEMERZESKA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or BELLHEMEYR ZHBEWA » THASE
loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term. BERMEAMRE 2 s BEER - XHEHE
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral &M ﬁm)’ﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ’] BREFHENRE
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. B —E D LB R

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (s) HEH‘

(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) NEEERRERER
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s REBEWBATIZHBREFEEZE
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic B NRZMBARKEREZ T EKE
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The RIBZEE ([T Ag‘ﬁbﬂﬂ)ﬂri o IR A BT
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, WEUEBIT25] > MBTAEARTZINEE
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. RE2EWEE -

(ii)  Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign ~ (ii) FRNINEEFTZXZH > HUKHH 245
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and BEZTRE - IINEEECEBEERE
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign & BINEEFB 2N EERRE -EHIB
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains wmETABEREF -
and losses are recognised in profit or 10ss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of LASNEEIRE S AT ENIEEBEERE
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign BEARSBERINEE R EETINE -

exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that in
substance form part of the net investment in an operation outside Hong
Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified to equity on
consolidation.

BRI ERBHEETIIZER 5 A K E X
HENEXRBESEE - BB RKRNIA
AREEFANETREREBE - FEFEE’\]
BEE 3¢, 22 A B 93 1 2 M A1) BF 1) M e R

BEHEBRBANEBE  SEZEBEEM
BRARBANXEERNRITELZRG
I REFRER -

EWIBEEEEMNIINEEL B (BEAER

BERUINMEE R — ) BAERE 2 HIAE
REtREN DAY HIERBARRES
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHEETIN HEBETE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHBE®

(t) Borrowing costs (t)y B/BEARK
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, R e ESEREE (AIWA
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a ER—HEBEEE F'sﬁﬁﬂf’ﬁ%iiﬁﬁ HEHE
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are CEE)MBEEEGZEER AN EIEZ
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are EEBEZIMKA - HfEERK KRG EE
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. EH B SER X -

(u) Related parties (uy BEAZL
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to (i) BRAL KEEXFHENKEH

the Group if that person: REBREANEBMBEAL  HEZE
RIAT

©) has control or joint control over the Group; M PRI R I AR

() has significant influence over the Group; or 2 HAEBEERATES 3K

©) is @ member of the key management personnel of the (3) ABAREBIAEET AT E
Group or the Group's parent. ZEBABNEZ— -

(iN) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions (i) —EEENTE FA NI EE - 8l
applies: WREEAEEBEAL

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (1) ZEEMAEERZR £
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow WKB (EEREFEHER
subsidiary is related to the others). CIRE S =NGIDAEES SN

AIREERN) -

) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other 2) —EAERBES BB
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a RAIHEERE (H—EE
group of which the other entity is a member). BAEEX—SENEMNBER

AkaELE Mi—HE
RE—SBEZKE) -

®) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (3) METRERAE=-FTNEE

=k

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (4) —EERERE=EEENE
entity is an associate of the third entity. BEhE ME—EERBASE

ZEEREBE T -

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (5) ZEBERHTAEEL
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity HAEEE@AEATHERS
related to the Group. 1R B BB 16 B IS8

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (6) EZE“&E&‘ X(VFTIEm AT
identified in (). 7 1l ok £ IT? %‘J

@) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence over 7) NETHEAEBIA T8
the entity or is a member of the key management aZ ‘&Eﬁékﬁ/ BN BZ
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). ER(IZEBIAA) X

EEBABKEZ — -

(8) The entity or any member of a group of which it is a part (8) |‘1$‘i l&$'§ ERSTNCIE S
provides key management personnel services to the Group HEEEEXNERBCER
or to the Group's parent. &Eﬁﬁﬁ' EEZAEMKER

Ej °
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who BRIATHEREEKE VIEZEEKE
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their MEHREREE S SR [ AL S o S ) B
dealings with the entity. pCE -
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREEETIN HEBEFTE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHBE®

(v) Segment reporting (v) SDHERZH
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in KEapBENRIBRE A2 MEE DB
the financial statements, are identified from the financial information EeBacHRETAEERRITRER
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for AEMERDERFTHEAEBRNES ML
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance BEMGEHYBE BN ENRANTHG
of, the Group’s various geographical locations. ER AR R o
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial MU BE®RMS  BIED T EERUNL
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic EREBEEERMRGES - EEIFHT
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and . XPEERAGER - BESRE QIR
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of HERRFS Y T3k R EE IR IS 1y I T mE AR L -
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the DHSEERELED BT EITAE -
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating REEANKEL D MERFE Lt KEP
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they DR BIREITRE -
share a majority of these criteria.

2  Accounting judgements and estimates 2 EiAsRAER
Note 20 contains information about the assumptions and their risk factors BRI F20E B BEHEERENEGEZRE
relating to the retirement benefit liabilities. Other key sources of S A TR ETHREN S REXHE X
estimation uncertainty are as follows: fhEt:

(@) Impairment of non-current assets (@) FRBEEZRE
If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these assets may MEBRERNZEEENEE LKL &
not be recoverable, the assets may be considered “impaired” and an EfEKSAEIERE]  WaERBES2:T
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 ERIEIGHEBEEREIERBEEE R
Impairment of assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tested for BEBSTEREIH  ZEEEREMN
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that HERECERELH 2 REAEREEE
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a WeElhs - BIZEETRENR - RELIREH
decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable R BREEAERZ KBS EE o A
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs KEeEAFHEERFREAMNENR
of disposal and value in use. In determining the fair value less costs of SE - NEFTFLHEER EEEBeZ=E
disposal, management refer to the observable market prices for similar MHEESENTERMEBEER NETHEHR
assets. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by BERN OEREEEANTEHRR SRS
the asset are discounted to their present value, which requires significant BRIREIR(E - B2 i 3 K S48 2k Y A T8 8|
judgement relating to the revenue forecasts and estimations of future KGRI BERA BEXKANREBD
discounts, future variable costs and fixed costs as well as future inflation BEEEHEENEAGE - ANEEEM
in Hong Kong and long-term growth rates. The Group uses all readily FrERAEMUEETKRESERNE
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable oM BEERUWA T - EF KA -
approximation of the recoverable amount. However, actual revenue, EEkARBRY A RINERE - LAl
discount, variable costs, fixed costs and inflation may be different from REEHSFEEENERRBEELERAE -
assumptions which may result in a material adjustment to the carrying ERBEEMMEMERAESFEES BIAM
amount of the assets affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts 1112 IR ER -
of non-current assets are disclosed in notes 11 and 12.

(b) Depreciation or amortisation of non-current assets (b) *RBEEZHENHH

Property, plant and equipment, investment properties and leasehold land
(see note 11) are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual values, if any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and
the estimated residual values, if any, of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation or amortisation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets and
taking into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation or
amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

WX HBEREE REVELRBEE LI
Rz (RHTEE1) Rt R E M EFRSREE (1
B) &k EEGFAEBFRZEGEN
E-ASBEMHPEENGEAAERFR
KfAETRIREE (WB) FhRs - UEE
RIBEHAPFALEOTEREHF X -
AERFREFISEBEDRBEREELNER
LB B B0 B 1 48 5 8 B B 4 i ey TR B
BmMEL - MEBEMAAERRE K
KR ERATHE -
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2 Accounting judgements and estimates (continued) 2 @& RAER @)

(c) Impairment loss for doubtful debts (c) RERREEHE
The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for estimated losses AEEREBSABREXEL AN R
resulting from the inability of debtors to make required payments. The BYHMEFEERRERNREEISE -
Group bases the estimates of future cash flows on the ageing of the trade REFEZRBEERERAMTISFNERE R
receivable balance as disclosed in note 15, debtors’ credit-worthiness and REEHZER - BHEANEERBTME
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of debtors were to WES Y K RIS REELHET - HEBA
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated. N BRREE  BERMBREE A sEm R E

e .

(d) Useful lives of intangible assets (d EBEREEZUFERAFH
Intangible assets (see note 12) are not amortised as their useful lives are EBREE(RMF12) W rafesy a2
assessed to be indefinite. The conclusion that the useful life of an HAELEEZAIEAFHEERMETE
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether HEHRNUFRE  EEEENAFERFHS
events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life NEFEEMUETEWLIBIEERGEEY
assessment. The Group may need to amortise intangible assets in future SV EENFERAFHATHETE - WWRAE
periods or recognise impairment losses for intangible assets if events and KRREARBIE PO HEHARETE - 4N
circumstances indicate that the useful life is no longer indefinite. SE g HEREEEDEHEIERR

BEE -

(e) Deferred tax assets (e) EEBEEE
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and BREFBEENRADA 2 REBEBRLY
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can only BHREEER ARZEECHEEE
be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits K TERERR R R ERTL B R 0] B
will be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised, HABEmMAESAENHRKES  BEEA
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of being A ARRERB AR Z AT geM - ERGY
able to generate future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is MHEATEELTHEN  WARERRA
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it MagnsrlBRERIEEE - I GERAE
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax SNEIFIBEEE - BELEHBEEAEMMEN
assets to be recovered. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of BREEFIER 21 B2 58 o
deferred tax assets are disclosed in note 21.

()  write down of inventories f) WHREFEE
The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts of AEBEL2EFERRS T - BEHRKES
inventories as disclosed in note 14 with reference to aged inventories ENEEBZHE HEEZE@EET
analysis, expected future consumption and management judgement. FHIERN (BRFF14) - MiFE 2 Gt &
Based on these reviews, write down of inventories will be made when the BFEKZEAEEREE IXEESIR
estimated net realisable value of inventories decline below the carrying BEHZERMMREE Z2BE - AW
amount. However, actual consumption may be different from estimation EREREGEEGTTEMTR - M
and profit or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. Pz H AR e R -

[ ]
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3 Revenue and segment reporting 3 WBARSBEHER
(@) Revenue (@ WA
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution AEEZETEXEK AR EBERDHGE
of bottled, canned and draught beers. 2 N AR B R o
Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of discounts, WAIEFTHEE R 2B ZEEMBRITN
returns, value added tax and consumption tax. R[E - EBERREmR
(b) Segment reporting (b) SDEMEHEI;R
The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent AEEKRBREREER -  BEANITZ|
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s ERBAEERSEBITHEREABUES
most senior executive management for the purposes of resource RERAFHRBEFR B AEEE2R
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the WTHREAT2HDEP -
following two reportable segments:
- The Hong Kong operations mainly comprise the manufacture and — EREBRTEREETE LGN
distribution of own brewed beer products and distribution of HE SRR REERM Y HED
imported beer products in Hong Kong and overseas. 2 MEOHEE G o
- The Mainland China operations mainly comprise the manufacture — FEAMEBEIZRRAEREAR
and distribution of own brewed beer products in the southern part HAE ([ E]) R REIND B
of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and overseas. FEER 2 HE R -
All of the Group’s revenue is generated from the manufacture and AEEZBRAZHRRERHHIBE
distribution of bottled, canned and draught beers. TEHE R AR E R -
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) PHEE - BEERAEE

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and current
assets. Segment liabilities include trade creditors and accruals attributable
to the manufacture and distribution activities of the individual segments
and retirement benefit liabilities managed directly by the segment and
other current liabilities with the exception of deferred tax liabilities.

The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss is “adjusted EBIT”
i.e. "adjusted earnings before interest and taxes”, where “interest” is
regarded as including interest income from bank deposits and interest
expense on loan from an intermediate holding company. To arrive at
adjusted EBIT the Group's earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as net foreign
exchange losses. Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus a profit
margin.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 1.

MIEBLIHBRBESEDIBER  AEH
ZmFﬁﬁa@AaE&MTﬁwg%i
BATEMONEL2EE BERAE:

DHREEBEMBENEE EBILEER
RBEE - nHBEERS I ARERD
HEBEENENBEZRARGIZER -
DRV E B IR MR A B E A R E AR
BRE HEETCHBAGERIN -

TEAETERENRBEMRAZ LA
[T BRI AFE] B [AEREFE R
HAT 2 FE] - P EBERITHERF B UK
ARFBNMER AR ERF BT - JEAF#
Fﬂﬁ"ﬂ?}”“*ﬁﬂ'ﬂgﬁZZDER/?JEETE@Z“‘

BB ABREERAFE] - 232
FRSHE R AKRAINEZBEFBEIEEE -

HBEARL B RRAARE L &3
BoF CRM AT — 3 -
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(b)
0]
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Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
Segment reporting (Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of resource

(b)
(M

IMARDBEEE®H &)

DERER 2] (8

TEMER - BEERAEE)

HE-_ZT—+tE&ER_ZFT—XE+-A
=t+t—HI BERAREBETASERSET

allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years ended HEBABUDEBRNETEDILRIRZ
31 December 2017 and 2016 is set out below: BERETIIT
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
EB RE Rt ag
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tf T F ZE-tf —ZT-RF ZB-tfF C—T—F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Revenue from external customers SRR FEUA 393,781 389,394 172,004 152,033 565,785 541,427
Inter-segment revenue AEREKA 547 308 - - 547 308
Reportable segment revenue ~ EFZ2HAHUA 394,328 389,702 172,004 152,033 566,332 541,735
Reportable segment BAFERAPLE
profit/(loss) from operations BH/ (BR) (8RR
(adjusted EBIT) HA S A &) 1,108 (1,994) 19,205 12,702 20,313 10,708
Interest income from bank deposits  SR1TE A S YA 1,040 622 267 235 1,307 857
Interest expense on loans BT BT (6,181) (5,454) - - (6,181) (5,454)
Depreciation and amortisation FRTERAH
for the year (22,776) (21,253) (1,087) (2,520) (23,863) (23,773)
(Provision for)/reversal of EEnERERES R
Impairment losses recognised in HinfRE 2 (RESE
profit or loss in respect of trade BE) /R EEREEE
and other receivables (400) (320) 1 (11) (399) (331)
Reportable segment assets BFERIHEE 1,147,969 1,172,604 109,957 80424 1,257,926 1,253,028
Additions to non-current segment  ERIERE HBEE
assets during the year 0 9,008 11,289 5,491 2,500 14,499 13,789
Reportable segment liabilites ZAFE2HRABEE 228,032 261,095 441,031 430,880 669,063 691,975
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3
(b)
(i)

Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss,

3 WARDBEEHE®R &)

(b) ZHERZ®HRE

(i ATFEHIBURA -BHE BEREE

assets and liabilities Z ¥R
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue 2 F 23D BUA 566,332 541,735
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 8B 2 fE WA B8 (547) (308)
Consolidated revenue RaE WA 565,785 541,427
Profit |
Reportable segment profit from operations BT 2D PREE BT 20,313 10,708
Interest income from bank deposits RITIE R ZFEWA 1,307 857
Net foreign exchange losses & 57 &5 18 (1,039) (184)
Interest expense on loan from an intermediate R ERA R ERA B
holding company (6,181) (5,454)
Consolidated profit before taxation 4RE R TR & A 14,400 5,927
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BETEHRHBEE 1,257,926 1,253,028
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 2 EB 2 [ e Uk BR TE 18 (384,198) (381,575)
Consolidated total assets REBEE 873,728 871,453
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities BATERDIEME 669,063 691,975
Elimination of inter-segment payables 2 8B 2 [ FE A BR IE U8 (384,198) (381,575)
284,865 310,400
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 4,052 2,969
Consolidated total liabilities REBaE 288,917 313,369
[
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3  Revenue and segment reporting (continued 3 WBWARSHEHER®
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 2WBERZ2HREH
(iii)  Geographic information (iii) wEER
The following table sets out information about the geographic location of THEHINEFBOEAEFINRRT P WA K
(i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s non- REBEIRBEE ([ETHERDEE]) Z
current assets (“specified non-current assets”). The geographic location of WBMEEK B 2MIEMNEZRE
customers is based on the country of establishment of each customer. ZEERMMEFTAEBRRME ° I8EIER
The geographic location of the specified non-current assets is based on HEECHWEMERBBEEECERUE
the physical location of the assets, in the case of property, plant and (HEBME HENEXE REDENLE
equipment, investment properties and leasehold land, and the location of EXER) NESIBEREEZEEM
the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets. (HBEFEEE)MT °
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
IREFRA EEERBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF —ZE—tHF ZE—RF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr i
Hong Kong (place of domicile) 8 (B Eh) 288,274 289,605 551,261 565,033
Mainland China AR A 69,160 56,267 29,908 24,912
Philippines JEEE 201,023 188,076 - -
Others H MR 7,328 7,479 - -
277,511 251,822 29,908 24,912
565,785 541,427 581,169 589,945
[
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(c)

Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

Major customers

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes two customers
(2016: one customer), with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the

Group's revenues.

Revenue from sales to these customers during the reporting period are

WARDBEEHE®R &)

TEERF

AEBBERZ T2 TP AR EhEm
L (ZF—RN: ) BEPHNRZIEEE W

AHEHE10% °

UTRZEEFPRAFERAARENZ S

set out as below. P
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Largest customer (arose from both HEHRAEFE RREBEE R
Hong Kong and the Mainland China segments) R R A b 9 2B ) 199,787 190,291
— Percentage of total revenue —EERERABRDL 35% 35%
Second largest customer GHEEZARR
(arose from Hong Kong segment) ORREBEEDEL) 56,182 51,072
— Percentage of total revenue —EEERABRDLEL 10% 9%

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from these customers are set

KEZEEP 2FARFEER RSN E

out in note 23(a). 23(a) °
Other net income Htks B
2017 2016
—B—tF A
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Rental income from investment properties ‘EYENHES WA 20,817 18,028
Advertising and promotion subsidy (note 25(a)) B2 R Thi5 HE E M B (M1 3525(@0)) 16,084 21,038
Interest income from bank deposits RITFE R F B WA 1,307 857
Net gain on disposal of non-current assets HEERBEE 2 FAF 1,017 1,253
Net foreign exchange losses [E 5 )% B8 (1,039) (184)
Others Eph 323 1,451
38,509 42,443
[
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88

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

5 KRWERN

BRBEABRMEMER (FFA) 5|

(crediting): B :
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
$'000 $'000
Frx Fr
(a) Finance costs (a) B & A
Interest expense on loan from an AR AR A &)
intermediate holding company BERA BT 6,181 5,454
Bank charges RITEA 111 124
6,292 5,578
(b)  Staff costs (b) BEIHM
Retirement costs SN AN
— Defined contribution retirement plans —ERRHFGRIRET S 6,294 5,976
— Defined benefit retirement plan —EEEFERETE
(note 20(a)(v)) (P 7E20(@)(v)) 5,115 5,633
11,409 11,609
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHEMETR 121,606 116,014
133,015 127,623
(c) Other items (c) HiEH
Amortisation BGH
- Land lease premium (note 11(a)) —HE LA
(Mt=E11@)) 2,526 2,536
Depreciation neE
— Property, plant and equipment e ER Y S
(note 11(a)) (B sE11(0)) 16,620 16,505
— Investment properties (note 11(a)) — X BEWE (1)) 4,717 4,732
Cost of inventories (note 14) TFERA (FizE14) 312,200 301,248
Operating lease charges KEHEEA -
minimum lease payments SEBERRK
- Land and buildings —THREE 1,648 1,540
— Other assets —HMhEE 351 475
Rental receivable from investment wEYHE 2 e WA
properties less direct outgoings of H#EEF7,701,0007T
$7,701,000 (2016: $7,913,000) —EF—RF:
7,913,0007T) (13,116) (10,115)
Auditors’ remuneration 2% BX AT B
— Provision for the year —NF GRS 3,239 3,717
— (Over)/under-provision in respect of the — FFE (BERE),
prior year BT R (215) 62
Net impairment losses for trade and other B E S R EMIRRZ
receivables (note 15(b)) YE R 518 (PR EE15(0)) 399 331
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BB E)

(a)

(b)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement 6 GekRFZFRER
Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) HZEWZRZFIBHIE
represents:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Deferred tax (note 21) IEFERE (PEEE21)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences ~ # i Z %8 > H IR & # D 819 778

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company and other Hong Kong
subsidiaries was 16.5% (2016: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been made for the Company and other Hong Kong subsidiaries
either because the accumulated tax losses brought forward exceed the
estimated assessable profits for the year or the entities sustained losses

for taxation purposes.

The statutory tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established in the PRC
was 25% (2016: 25%). No provision for current taxation has been made for
the subsidiaries established in the PRC because the accumulated tax
losses brought forward exceed the estimated assessable profits for the
year or the entities sustained losses for taxation purposes.

RRABREMESEHBRRANEERE A
16.5% (ZZ —NF : 16.5%) - KR Fl R E
MEEBME AT BNER 25 HIEGIER
BAFEAERR AN R BREHEEERE -

RSB A E B L BE -

AR B AR S B B B A B A9E TE B R A25%
(ZZT—RF :25%) - RABIKIZHKHE
ARHAREEZFREBBBRARNTE
BT ERRAF KRB EEE ML E

FRANFE B IALE LB o

Reconciliation between income tax credit and (b) BREBEABERFTENFBSHFAHESE
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HEAZYEE:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
$'000 $'000
T T
Profit before taxation R % BT & A 14,400 5,927
Notional tax on profit before taxation BB BN IE AR 2 # A B X
calculated at the rates applicable to BRI AT BT E
the tax jurisdictions concerned ZIhET IR 3,987 2,085
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 BT E 1,515 1,262
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue SRR U A 2 Tt IE 5 2 (153) (103)
Tax effect of contributions to retirement RIR@FFTEERZFIETE
benefit plans (245) (237)
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary differences — RERIELEFIE 2 FiIH E 18
not recognised for deferred tax purposes MEREEE 2 HIETE 713 9,904
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and Ji& FA 55 B R FE R R 7% B5 18
temporary differences previously unrecognised RERHMERE 2 HIATE (6,636) (13,695)
Actual tax credit BERRIEFTA (819) (778)
[
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7 Directors’ emoluments 7 EFEM&
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong WIEE B RN T MEG E383(NE R A7) (K
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of EEEMNmER) B FE2E 2R TE M T
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows: BeEEMEOT
2017
ZE-tE
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors' benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind honuses contributions Total
#e 28R
Ezhe 4)-4 MiErL UG ag
$'000 000 $'000 $'000 $'000
r n r T n
Executive director BES
Ramon G. Torralba HER - 2,674 - - 2,674
Non-executive directors FES
Ramon S. Ang 2EY - - - - -
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SR - - - - -
May (Michelle) W.M. Chan REX - - - - -
Takashi Hayashi HES - - - - -
Roberto N. Huang #28K - - - - -
Katsuhiko Matsumoto BARE
(resigned on 1 April 2017) (R=F—+ERA-RET) - - - - -
Fumiaki Ozawa NELR
(appointed on 28 April 2017) (R=Z-tEMA-1+/\REZT) - - - - -
Takeshi Wada NEE
(resigned on 1 October 2017) (R=B—tE+A-REf) - - - - -
Tomoki Yamatchi RS
(appointed on 27 October 2017) (RZB-tETAZTLREZf) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Alonzo Q. Ancheta (appointed on Alonzo Q. Ancheta
24 February 2017) (R=Z-tF-A-THAEZH) - - - - -
DavidKP. Li ZEZ - - - - -
Ng Wai Sun (resigned on 24 February 2017) REF(RZF-tE-A-TRARA) - - - - -
Reynato S. Puno Reynato . Puno - - - - -
Camelo L. Santiago if - - - - -
Wiliam C.M. Cheng LS - - - - -
- 2,674 - - 2,674
The executive director waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All of HITEECWNEHBS - FTAERITES
the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors RBSIERITEESEMEEMBEME -

waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.
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7 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 7 EFEMenm
2016
“E-RF
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors' benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Total
& 2R
EEHD EMzE WL RINFERR e
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive director HITES
Ramon G. Torralba HER - 2875 - - 2,875
Non-executive directors FRTES
Ramon S. Ang 232974 = = - - _
Carlos Antonio M. Berba HES - - - - -
May (Michelle) W.M. Chan BREX - - - - -
Teruyuki Daino RERE(RZZ—1F
(resigned on 30 March 2016) =A=TH&ER) = = = = =
Takashi Hayashi WEL - - - - -
Roberto N. Huang #2R - - - - -
Katsuhiko Matsumoto BERE (RZZ—~F
(appointed on 29 April 2016) MAZThAEZF) = - - - -
Takeshi Wada M\E - - - - _
Independent non-executive directors BIYEHTES
David K.P. Li TEE = = = = =
Ng Wai Sun R - - - - -
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno - - - - -
Carmelo L. Santiago i 2] - - - - -
Wiliam C.M. Cheng BAR = = = = =
- 2875 - - 2875

The executive director waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All of
the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.

HITEFCHERERS - MEIFNTES

MBYFRTEECHEEMAME -
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BREEE)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments MemEmZAR
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2016: one) is a ESHERZLAEGR s —Z (2T —XF:
director whose emoluments are included in note 7. The aggregate of the —Z)VEEE (HMEERWE7HE) - &
emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2016: four) individuals are B (ZE—XRE NE)HEesEs2ZA
as follows: ExEMe@EMT
2017 2016
—ZE—tHF ZE—RF
$'000 $'000
Frx Tt
Salaries and other emoluments e RERM 6,989 6,522
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEI R 955 908
7,944 7,430
The emoluments of the four (2016: four) individuals with the highest ME(ZE—RF:OBZ)Memza2zAE
emoluments are within the following bands: ZMETT
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E-REF
Number of Number of
individuals Individuals
AEEE AB#H
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001t £2,000,0007T 2 2
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001t £2,500,0007T 2 2
9  oOther comprehensive income Htt2mik
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income Hth2EREZHONHBERE
2017 2016
“E—tF ZE-RF
Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Tax Net-0f-tax
amount effect amount amount effect amount
BRHAISE REFE KREASE Kiges BEpZ2 Rilked
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tr Tr T T T
(note 21(a)) (note 21(a))
(KH&E21(a) GEAR)
Exchange differences on EHERE:
translation of;
~financial statements of subsidiaries ~ — A EESNHBA A
outside Hong Kong HBRERMEE
ZERER (23,091) - (23,091) 23,329 - 23,329
-monetary items that form part of ~ — BB EERIE
the net investment in subsidiaries AAlZRENERR
outside Hong Kong ERMELZELESR 25,126 - 25,126 (24,490) - (24.490)
2,035 - 2,035 (1,161) - (1,167)
Actuarial gains and losses of TEERARRGTE
defined benefit retirement ZRERNRER
plan (note 20(a)(v) (HrEE20@))) 11,375 (1,902) 9,473 9,058 (1,504) 7,554
Other comprehensive income Hin2 M 13,410 (1,902) 11,508 7,897 (1,504) 6,393
10 Earnings per share 10 SEEH
(@) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXZRF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit SRERAZBFIIBEARNTEZRZE AL
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $12,480,000 (2016: 5 2 %)12,480,000c (=& — XN F -
$8,654,000) and on 373,570,560 (2016: 373,570,560) ordinary shares, being 8,654,0007t) R A FERNE ETZ
the number of ordinary shares in issue throughout the year. 373,570,560 @K (=T — N F -
373,570,560/% Ei@mA%) 5T & -
[ ]
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10 Earnings per share (Continued) 10 BWEERF»
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BHEERER
Diluted earnings per share is not presented as the Company did not have HMECEREFWARFHL  BAQAFTL
dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years presented. BEREBENECLBREFRE -
11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 11 PE - BREEH BREDER
propertles and leasehold land HEL
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) HREE%HK
Property, plant and gquipment
n% RERAR Interests in
Land and Machinery, leasehold land
buildings equipment, use under
held for furniture Motor  Construction Investment operating
ownuse  and fixtures vehicles in progress Sub-total properties leases Total
HEEHET
BRLH BB RE R _ . BRmSEH
REE BREZE 1] fRIE At RENE  HELHER &g
§000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §1000 $000
i i i i i i i i
Cost: B
At 1 lanuary 2016 RZE-75-F-A 973523 1665423 6470 - 2605416 149,963 120925 2916304
Exchange adjustments ERE% (27.088) (45,417) (220 - (72,885) - (3,140) (76,025)
Additions RE 3,804 8,608 - 1317 13789 - - 13,789
Transfer from construction in progress  EEEEZETR 105 1272 - (1377) = = = =
Transfer from land and buildings held EREARTHEEE
for own use (62,751) - - - (62,751) 62,751 - -
Disposals HE = (5183) (980) = 6129) = = 612)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+ZA=1-H 887,433 1624743 5210 - 2517446 212714 117,785 2847.945
Accumulated amortisation, RitBY NERAERE:
depreciation and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2016 R=F-~E-F-R 621,049 1,601,143 6,402 - 2,028,594 51,506 3,823 2,318,923
Bxchange adjustments B 3% (27,249) @5417) (220 - (72,889 - (1,332 {74217
Charge for the year (note 5(c) MR (F50) 1093 5,54 16 - 16,505 4732 253 B3
Transfer from land and buildings EROARTHEEE
held for own use (21,553) - - - (21559 21553 - -
Written back on disposals HERR = (4,360) 980) - (5,340) - - (5,340)
At 31 December 2016 R=F-~E+-A=1+-H 583,183 1,956,920 5218 = 2,145,321 TN 40027 2263139
Net hook value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2016 R=F-~"F+-A=1-A 304,250 67,823 Y - 312125 134,923 71798 584,806
Cost: B
At 1 January 2017 RZZ-t4§-F-A 887,433 1,624,743 5210 - 2,517,446 212,714 117,785 2,847,945
Exchange adjustments E 8% 28,126 47,013 28 - 75,367 - 3,246 78,613
Addtions HE 97 9,159 886 4,357 14,499 - - 14,499
Transfer from construction in progress ERAAETR 375 3,982 - (4,357) - - - -
Disposals rf - (8.937) (1,367) - (10,304) - - (10,304)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1-A 916,031 1,675,960 5017 - 2,597,008 212,714 121,031 2,930,753
Accumulated amortisation, 8% FERBEFA:
depreciation and impairment losses:
At 1 lanuary 2017 RZE—t%5-F-H 583,183 1,556,920 5218 - 2,145,321 7,791 40,027 2,263,139
Exchange adjustments B AR 28,184 46,959 28 - 75,371 - 1421 76,192
Charge for the year (note 5(c) Epms (350 10,860 5,609 151 - 16,620 477 2,526 23,863
Written back on disposals ERE - (8,062) (1,367) - (9,429) - - (9.429)
At 31 December 2017 RZF-+F+-A=1-H 622,221 1,601,426 4,230 - 2,227,883 82,508 43974 2,354,365
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tF+-A=1-H 293,804 74,534 787 - 369,125 130,206 71,057 576,388
]
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11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 1 PE - BRI|RDH BREDER
properties and leasehold land (continued) HELH @
(b) The analysis of net book value of properties is as (b) YEREFEZ2D2HWAT :
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+t#F —E-REF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Medium term leases HREIEE
- in Hong Kong —&BB 475,094 492,376
- outside Hong Kong — BB AN 25,973 24,555
501,067 516,931
Representing: DM :
Land and buildings held for own use BERtTHEREE 293,804 304,250
Investment properties wE Y 130,206 134,923
Interests in leasehold land held for own FEERETERAMES
use under operating leases MEE R 77,057 77,758
501,067 516,931
(c) Assets leased out under operating leases (c) KREHETZEEEE
The Group leases out investment properties which are located at Nos. AEBERBLEHEBFMLREBLHKE
9-11 Shing Wan Road, Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong under operating leases. R RRO-115% 2 = E WM - A F 5
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with an —RAEZE=F EERIHRBES
option to renew each lease upon expiry at which time all terms are MY ERSEFHNEGRK - BEHE
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. W BRERAES -
The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AEBERBETAMBLLEREMEBR 2K
operating leases are receivable as follows: REERBHT
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —ET-RF
$'000 $'000
T Fi
Investment properties REYHE
Within 1 year —FR 19,926 14,483
After 1 year but within 5 years —FENAFRN 17,494 9,925
37,420 24,408
——
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11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 11 PE BIRDH BREDER
properties and leasehold land (continued) HELH
(d)  The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2017 is (d) BEYER=—_Z—+F+-_A=+—802
$488,000,000 (2016: $432,620,000), which is based on a valuation using N # E A488,000,0000T (=T — XN F -
the investment approach which considers the capitalisation of net rental 432,620,0007T) * KB EETHE R
income receivable from existing tenancies and the reversionary value of BHSWAERBERNET RZEWE
the property after tenancies expire by reference to market sales XEBRAEE(REZATE FRERNXS)
transactions. The valuation was carried out by an independent firm of Z U A o {18 JY 38 S 8 2 Bl 1T R 88 7708
surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have among their EMMERATET EEREAEEEINE
staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with valuation MEEgNEXSE EMEEFENMRER
experience in the location and category of the property being valued. LIERAEBHELE -
The fair value measurements are categorised as Level 3 valuations under AREFERBEE BN B HREERF135
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value (A EEFEIMERZ=ZBANEER
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified BEMEAE=FHE BAnEBEFE
is determined with reference to the observability and significance of the DEZERTIEL2ENM T HEREATAR
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows: BeaBRUENEEHEBETE
- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs — B MikE EEES RN
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets EBRIRFTEERBEEXEER
or liabilities at the measurement date BTSRRI ABRRE)GFEL
NRE
- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. — F_MEE FERE R AR
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using (Bl kLR E—H 7o EBRE A
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for BB AFAERTAEREE
which market data are not available ABBRAEZ ARE T BREE
AR R ET IS 8B 2 A BUR
- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant — F-HMEHE RAEATATERY
unobservable inputs BRrEZ2ARE
The significant unobservable inputs in the fair value measurement are the STEARBEMRBZERTABREEA
discount rate, which ranged from 2.1% to 4.0% (2016: 3.1% to 4.1%) and WRE  HEAE21%E4.0% (ZZF—KF
adjustment factors on quality and location of the properties, which ranged R31%ZE4.1%) & AR W) F 89RO K B ER 4R
from 5.0% to 18.0% (2016: 1.0% t0 17.0%). FMAZERZ  #SEA5.0%E18% (ZF— X
F:AB1.0%E17.0%) °
(e)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had transferred part (@) EZERI[BHEBR T W REENFREREXR -

of the land and buildings held for own use to investment properties with
carrying amount of $31,198,000 due to the change of the purposes of land
and buildings. No transfer was made during the year ended 31 December
2017.

REBE_ZE—RE+-_A=+—HILEE -
AREBERHERLWREEEBIRE
¥ % (BR T B /A31,198,0007T) - REZE —
Z—+H&+-_A=Z+—BHIEE ~A£E
REELRBEEY -
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12 Intangible assets 12 HWEEE
Club
Trademarks debentures Total
[k BT EREE L
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fit Tt T
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2016 R-_ZE—AR"F—H—H 39,116 5,432 44,548
Exchange adjustments b X B = @) (GX))
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—AR"F+-_A=+—H 39,116 o531 44507
Accumulated impairment RItREEIE
losses:
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—RF—H—H 39,116 269 39,385
Exchange adjustments FE 5, % - (17) (17)
At 31 December 2016 R=_ZE—XR"F+=-—A=+—H 39,116 252 39,368
Net book value: REEE
At 31 December 2016 RZF—ARFE+ZA=+—H - 5,139 5,139
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2017 R—_ZE—+tF—H—H 39,116 5,391 44,507
Exchange adjustments & 5 A% - 5 5
Disposals HE - (615) (615)
At 31 December 2017 R—E—+tF+=-_A=+—H 39116 4781 . 43,897
Accumulated impairment ZitWEEE !
losses:
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+HF—F—H 39,116 252 39,368
Exchange adjustments [E 5§ - 2 2
Written back on disposals HE B o - (254) (254)
At 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—H 39116 - 39,116
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=-_A=+—H - 4,781 4,781
I
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13

Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

Ccompany:

13 MELRER

TREFIARBAEHBARIER

Place of Issued share Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Company Subsidiary activity
M CBITRAE, FrERET DL
NCIEE A i B EERIE PN AR FE Mt A Al FEEK
Best Investments British Virgin 50,000 100% - Investment
International Inc. Islands ordinary shares holding
of US$1 each
REBRABES 50,000% B
BiREE
1R R
60,000,000 100% =
preference shares
of US$1 each
60,000,000/%
BREE
1ETZEER
Hongkong Brewery Hong Kong 100 100% - Dormant
Limited (“HKBL") ordinary shares
(note (i) (F=E())
BB 1008% Tmex
AR
Ravelin Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 100% = Property
ordinary shares holding
B 10,000,000/% RAEME
AR
San Miguel (Guangdong) Hong Kong 18,000 92.989% = Investment
Limited class “A" shares holding
HENE(ER)GRAF B 18,000% REER
(A) I
1,000 100% =
class “B" shares
1,0008%
B) iz
Guangzhou San Miguel PRC Registered capital: - 70% Distribution
Brewery Company US$36,507,000 of beer
Limited (“GSMB")
(note (ii)
BN A 2R R A A Hh B EME : iz LT
(TR A7 1) (PR &EG) 36,507,0003 7T
San Miguel Shunde Holdings Hong Kong 200,000 92% - Investment
Limited ordinary shares holding
B 200,0000% B
TR
San Miguel (Guangdong) PRC Registered capital: - 100% Manufacture
Brewery Company Limited US$39,933,000 and sale of
("SMGB") (note (ii)) beer
EH(ER)SBEBRA A Y FEMER EEE K SHE 1R
(M A EER D) (M (i) 39,933,000% 7T
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHEETIN HEBETE)
13 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 13 MEBLAFER ®

Notes: B 5

(i) HKBL has not traded since incorporation but it established a joint (i) HKBLE s i A SZ LA - —E R B it
venture, Global Brews Hong Kong Limited, in Hong Kong on 18 THEARS BRZZT——F=A
March 2011. HKBL holds a 50% equity interest in this entity. As at +NA\BREBKI T — % AGlobal
the date of the approval of these financial statements, the joint Brews Hong Kong Limited®y & & 2
venture has not commenced operations. AleHKBLFBZESBBE S 2 A+ K

E-BEARBREMEZAD  &ZE
BRRIBHARIBEER-

(i) GSMB is an equity joint venture formed between the Company’s (i) BEMNEHEHER AR TR B ZH
subsidiary, San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited, and Guangzhou BRARIANE (BR) BRARHEE
Brewery. According to the joint venture agreement, GSMB has an MEEBK Y 2 EEEE QR - BIB
operating period of 30 years expiring on 29 November 2020. GEAEMRE RARZEENRR

=t+F R-ZZE-ZTF+—A=1+Ah
HEm e

(iif) SMGB is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise with an operating (iii) EN(BR)BBEBR AR AZINE

period of 50 years expiring on 4 August 2042. BELE BABLEHNA+E  R=
T F)\AEBEER °

The following table lists out the information relating to SMGB, the only TRV EBEENERZER £HESR

subsidiary of the Group which has material non-controlling interests RAEEM —HAEARIEIEREZDON B

("NCI"). The summarised financial information presented below represents NaEle FHREMNMEERBZHETAR

the amounts before any inter-company elimination. AIMEEAT 2 &8 -

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

NCI percentage EERERE DT 8% 8%

Current assets mEn & E 68,890 50,071

Non-current assets ERBEE 31,777 26,880

Current liabilities nEaE (40,191) (32,917)

Non-current liabilities FEnEBE (384,958) (390,973)

Net liabilities BfEFE (324,482) (346,939)

Carrying amount of NCI FEIEIRE R BREE (25,959) (27,755)

Revenue WA 124,712 115,060

Profit/(loss) for the year FEAF,(EE) 45,383 (8,520)

Total comprehensive income FEZEKEETE 45,383 (8,520)

Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DEEIEERESEF, (EE) 3,631 (682)

Cash generated from operating activities REEBE 2 BRERA 18,038 6,096

Cash used in investing activities REXEB 2R (4,351) (2,088)

Cash used in financing activities BMEESH 2RSSR (20) (20)
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14

15

Inventories 14 #8
2017 2016
—EB—+F —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T Fit
Products in hand and in process BEERNMERSR 25,757 30,965
Materials and supplies 21,951 18,282
47,708 49 247

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as

ERRBRRIZEESELIMMT

follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
$'000 $'000
Fx Fr
Carrying amount of inventories sold (note 5(c)) HEFEREE (FEE5(0) 312,200 301,248

Trade and other receivables 155 BRESZFRHEMIEER
2017 2016
—E—tF —T R
$'000 $'000
T T
Trade receivables B E 5 8R1E 39,122 48,253
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (note 15(b)) BT RIEBEREHE (M EE15(D)) (387) (3,168)
38,735 45,085
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments HihpEUER « 24 RTEN A 13,111 12,758
51,846 57,843

The amount of the deposits and prepayments expected to be recovered
or recognised as expenses after more than one year is $2,073,000 (2016:
$2,036,000). All of the other trade receivables, other debtors, deposits and
prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses

within one year.

The Group held collateral over trade receivables at the end of the

reporting period with attributable values as set out below:

REBMBFZR—FRAINE K ERES
B IE € MIE RIE SR D R /2,073,000
7T (ZZ— /N4 1 2,036,0007T) ° FTA H A
JEINE SRBEREMEIER - e MFER
BB E—FRATRESIIEER -

AEBESEEARBEESRBERENUT
A

2017 2016

—EB—+tF —E—RF

$'000 $'000

F A

Buildings 2,130 1,990
Cash deposits 2,532 2,397

Cash deposits disclosed above are included in the other creditors and
accrued charges and are expected to be settled after more than one year,

as disclosed in note 18.

A EFIRE RS TR INAREEBS 2
R—FRINOEMENRERIARER
I FE184% 5" ©
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15 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 15 BERESREMIEER®)
The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the trade receivables REERR DM ERmRETREE S
is mitigated by the collateral in the amounts indicated above. The value of BEWEERR - BERMEEERXRYER
the buildings collateral represents the estimated market value of the —E—+t+tHF+-_A=+—HHmME-
buildings as at 31 December 2017.
(@) Ageing analysis (@) BRERD
The ageing of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) at JEWE HERTA (MR RIBEREE) RNEER
the end of the reporting period is as follows: ZERERINT ¢
2017 2016
S —EAKE
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Current AR EIHA 31,732 39,055
Less than 1 month past due BHR DR —EA 4,504 3,100
1 to 3 months past due BEHAA—Z==(EA4 1,721 1,115
More than 3 months but less WEFH A =18 A
than 12 months past due =+_—f@A 693 927
More than 12 months past due BHEZR+=@A 85 888
38,735 45,085
According to the Group’s credit policy set out in note 23(a), the general RIBFEH IR E23@) A BN EERE
credit period is payment by the end of the month following the month in —REENIHEE AMDER A M TERDE] -
which sales take place. Therefore, all the current balances above are ES) T A 19 =1 NES B P 2 S o P g = T
within two months from the invoice date. EMEAR -
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) ERESHRBEZHREER
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an EREKE ZEENBEBIE S BEREE
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the FO8E - BRIEAR K E S N E W E EIE R
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against o UBRAT BEBEEETER
trade receivables directly (see note 1(i)()). B SRR MEE (B EE10)0) °
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as FARZRBENEHOT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
At 1 January R—A—A 3,168 3,474
Exchange adjustments BE 5, 58 2 169 (201)
Impairment loss recognised BEEEER 499 411
Impairment loss written back BEBER D (100) (80)
Uncollectible amounts written off bk RN R (3,349) (436)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 387 3,168
At 31 December 2017, trade receivables of $742,000 (2016: $4,277,000) RZZFE—tF+ZA=+—08 KTEEH
were individually determined to be impaired. The individually impaired JEUR B B BRI H742,0000T (ZF—7NF ¢
receivables were balances in dispute with customers or related to 4,277,0007T) ¥z & 5l 5 € &L (A& o &8 Bl A9 R
customers that were in financial difficulties and management assessed T?EJE%TEEEEEQEZ%FEMKJ:%% i R
that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. EREFNMG  RAEIHRIERAYE - W
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of $387,000 (2016: KEE 5 5 f’E387*,0007_5 (Z=2—R%F:
$3,168,000) were recognised. 3,168,0007T ) M) R SRR B4 o
[
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15 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 15 BEREZIREMER 2
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) REFEREFEZEKEZKRE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor BEERNSERBAESE EKRE SE
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: THEREC DT ¢
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Ne|therDaSt due nor impaired RENER R S ER 31,405 38,753
Less than 1 month past due BEIA DR *1!)% 4,478 3,100
1 to 3 months past due BEIR 7% =2=1@A 1,721 1,115
More than 3 months but less BEARA=MEA
than 12 months past due =+=-@A 691 870
More than 12 months past due BHBZN+ @A 85 138
[ —— 5975 52
38,380 43,976
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide RERTERG 2 BRIE S RIE - 58
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. %;Hg BB RERGDERNER - FTATE
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of BRETNMERE L BRNESERRSER
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. R4 38 5K =0 8% 19 1] AMEFEH j?)fx LA 5
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment 5 EEBC,HJD%?IHEKE’JE& : MIE
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been MEEARE LA {’Eﬁ BE - RRDR
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered %L%%KTAIET
fully recoverable.
16 Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, 16 Bl (B 2REBEAF  BARM
fellow subsidiaries and related companies BARIRMEAFIRIE
Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and related RT3E % HRIBERE SGERZATIN - FE
companies are unsecured, interest-free and recoverable/repayable on i,/ (JT'?fﬂ JERAT - RRWNEBAF &
demand except for the following trade-related amounts which are #E N ARIE ’J 2oy Tﬁﬁ R B REREK
repayable under normal trade terms: I @/i%’i
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Frx Tt
Amounts due from holding companies i Evezdi /NG|
and fellow subsidiaries KR ZHE A FRIE 21,973 15,148
Amounts due to holding companies FERHZEAEA R
and fellow subsidiaries RFRZKE A B RIE (995) (496)
Amounts due to related companies FEf B A IR (6,662) (2,544)
The trade-related balances were not past due as at 31 December 2017 HEBESHBZEFTR_ZE—LFRZF
and 2016. CRE+=A=+— B KIS -
Related companies included a non-controlling shareholder and BE N F BIEIEE Hxﬂx%&ﬁi\?ﬂ% /N
companies, the ultimate holding company of which has significant AHAREREATENR

influence over the Group.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHEETIN HEBETE)
17 cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 177 BeRSERSFEHRBITER
(@) cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits (a) B2RERRLEBRKRTERE
comprise: i
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Bank deposits within three months of GFHEFISBEA=MEAR
maturity when placed HIER1T1T 3K 54,792 58,851
Cash at banks and in hand RITEFTRES 75,354 52,266
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated e PR R
statement of financial position and Rz RERERTR
consolidated cash flow statement MRS RERREIEE 130,146 111,117
Bank deposits with more than three months to GFHREREAE ABR=1EA
maturity when placed KIERITIF 3K 39,197 46,602
Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits as at 31 December 2017 RZZE—tEF+=-A= -1— H-Rek
include $40,886,000 (2016: $25,206,000) placed with banks in Mainland ZERVBEARBITHERBEFTRFE
China, the remittance of which is subject to relevant rules and regulations A 3R 740,886,000 (=& — /N 4F -
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. 25,206,0007T) * [ /At B AT E
9 FE B 48 Bl SR SNEE SR AR BT il ©
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) KRBABANELEERZHESAA
generated from operations: FEIR -
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Note $'000 $'000
B 5E Fr Tt
Profit before taxation Br AT &7 14,400 5,927
Adjustments for: M THEBEEL AR
Interest income AEHA 4 (1,307) (857)
Net gain on disposal of non-current assets & 3k ik 818 & 2 % 2 7 4 (1,017) (1,253)
Interest expense B 5(a) 6,181 5,454
Amortisation of land lease premium FHE £ Hh 3R IE 2 5 5(c) 2,526 2,536
Depreciation of property, M WBEREBEZTE 5(c)
plant and equipment 16,620 16,505
Depreciation of investment properties KEMEZIE 5(c) 4,717 4,732
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses INE R (BF) /EiE (50) 2,478
Changes in working capital: BEEAR 2 BE) -
Decrease in inventories FEZ®RD 1,539 3,184
Decrease in trade and other receivables — FEUE 5 & E b BRI 7 R > 6,027 10,959
Increase in net amounts e NIV AEIESL )]
due from holding companies and NAEERIAFE L
fellow subsidiaries 340 (5,276) (6,395)
Increase in amounts due from related FE Y A& N R BR IR
companies Bl (153) (1,270)
Increase in amounts due to related BT EEE N RIERIA
companies il 2,458 1,114
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other FENE 5 R EABRIE Z 32400
payables CR ) 6,642 (15,858)
Decrease in retirement benefit liabilities  :RIKEF B EZFH D (670) 37)
Cash generated from operations BEXEBZBERA 52,637 27,219
[
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(BRARBETRIN  GEBEE)

17

(c)

18

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 17
(Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c)
activities:

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing activities.

BeRhFRRERERBITER

(#8)

HRETHEE 2EBRAB X

AEBRARETSMEE ZBEHNES
BRASKIFRACEDY SHINTR-
HEBELTHELNERY  DAREHBE
E#ROBAER RAEENGEAREN
EXT SRERREFBZEER -

Loan from
an intermediate
holding
company
RAERAT
ZEX
$'000
Tt
At 1 January 2017 R=-Z2—tF—H—H 190,858
Changes from financing cash flows: ®&EBE&HREH
Repayment of loan from an intermediate  BR TR NER AT 2 EX
holding company (25,649)
Interest paid [EENEESS (6,181)
Total changes from financing cash flows &R & mAEE S (31,830)
Exchange adjustments = EX®=® U2y
Other changes: Hih @ g
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) SR E)) 6,181
At 31 December 2017 R=-Z—tFE+=-HA=+—H 166,706
Trade and other payables 18 EFfEZREMIEER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Trade payables BB SRE 46,703 37,564
Other creditors and accrued charges H & AR IE 48,545 51,014
95,248 88,578

Other creditors and accrued charges include provisions for advertising
and promotion costs of $14,177,000 (2016: $11,638,000).

The amounts of other creditors and accrued charges expected to be
settled after more than one year are $5,620,000 (2016: $4,967,000). All of
the other trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one
year.

HuENEELBREABEESRER
BE D R A14,177,0007T (Z T — K&
11,638,0007T) °

FEARER—FRINNEMENERR
FEIRE A 9 Bl A5,620,0007T (ZF — /N F -
4,967,0007t) - FTBEEMENEZE S R EM
BRIBFERE—F RSN -
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18 Trade and other payables (continued) 18 EFNEZRHEMIRE @)
The ageing of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period is as ENESEENGEEI ZERNOT :
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Current and less than 1 month past due REBRBEHB PR —EA 43,294 34,716
1 to 3 months past due BEHAA—=={EH 3,270 2,493
3 to 6 months past due BB A=Z/EA 113 180
More than 6 months past due BEAZRNEA 26 175
46,703 37,564
The Group’s general payment terms are one to two months from the AEERN—BARGEREREZER BAE—
invoice date. Therefore, the current and less than one month past due ZWMEAREE - Bt - LA RB AR iR
balances above are mostly within two to three months from the invoice HALR—EANERKREHHEEERER
date. EME=MAR -
19 Loan from an intermediate holding company 19 HHERAFZER
At 31 December 2017, the loan from an intermediate holding company RZFE—+F+ZA=+—8 FNHZER
was repayable as follows: NAZEREBER T HREE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
$'000 $'000
Fi T
Within 1 year or on demand —FRRIERERKEER 51,294 25,448
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFER 51,294 50,895
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRENRN 64,118 114,515
[ . . nsaz . les AT |
166,706 190,858
Loan from an intermediate holding company is unsecured, repayable in FNERAFZERSERR IR _-F
fifteen equal instalments from September 2017 and bears interest at one —jtijl A E{’Jﬁ"ﬁ: ﬁﬁﬂféﬁ; AR PERF
year LIBOR plus 1.5% which ranged from 3.20% to 3.55% during the year ER—FHRIERTREN B N1.5% @ &
(2016: 2.01% t0 3.20%). A3.20%%3.55% (ZF—RNF N AE2.01%
£3.20%) °
——
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20 Employee retirement benefits 20 EREBH#hEEN
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (@) TEHEBFRIKETE

The Group makes contributions to a defined benefit retirement plan
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordnance
(Chapter 426 of the Laws of the Hong Kong), which covers 13% (2016:
13%) of the Group’s employees. The plan is administered by an
independent trustee, with the assets held separately from those of the
Group. The members’ benefits are determined based on the employees’
final remuneration and length of service.

Under the scheme, a retired employee is entitled to a benefit based on
their completed years of service and salary on the date of leaving service.

Contributions to the plan are made in accordance with the
recommendations of an independent actuary who values the retirement
plan at regular intervals. The latest independent actuarial valuations of the
plans were at 31 December 2017 and were prepared by qualified staff of
Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, who are the member of Chartered
Enterprise Risk Actuary, using the projected unit credit method. The
actuarial valuations indicate that the Group’s obligations under these
defined benefit retirement plan is 94% (2016: 82%) covered by the plan
assets held by the trustees.

The plans expose the Group to actuarial risk, such as interest rate risk,
investment risk and salary risk.

AEBEREBH (ZFT—RF :13%) 2B
BRMHERBMRINGE - ZFHE VA —
EEUIEAEE  WEAEECEESD
FBEEE - 58l 2 HADIRIE —RBL
BEM 2 ZHER  ZFEMEHRRRIK
FHEMELRTE - KERMINRER 2 R1&
P RRBFHTE -

RizZatE - RNREEAEERBRRE
HEXRNMEFENFLESRERN -

BIRGHEIZ AT IERBYBEM 25
METS o ZETEZRF 2 BLBEHEDR
—E—+E+-A=t+—BhaBHEHEY (S
HFOERBRONAMEE) 2HELAERKE
HMERABEEEMEEAET ARG E
BARAEEREZATRAEKRTEIFA
BIT2 BEEET% (ZFE—/54E - 82%)
ZEAAFEZAHEEERE -

ZAtgl e AR EAZIEERR WM XE
B wERREFZEAR -

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (i) RN AR 2 REBEHT -
position are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Present value of funded obligations ZEHEERIRE 101,298 95,980
Fair value of plan assets EEEZARE (95,499) (78,136)
Retirement benefit liabilities RARBEHNEE 5,799 17,844

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after more than
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from the
amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement benefit
payable to plan members and future contributions to plan assets will also
depend on staff revenue and future changes in actuarial assumptions. The
Group expects to pay $5,974,000 in contributions to the defined benefit
retirement plan in 2018.

LHF DB EERENER —FERMT -
AT B RRIE R ET IR B 2 AR
REFEEEZ RREFRAERTFBEERR

Xt—EAZENFESHERE AKHE

FEEE =T — \F F 145,974,000t & [ &
BAEF R 2 A FUE -
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20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 EREH#HEF 2
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEHEBFEBMAKE B
(i) Plan assets consist of the following: (ii) AEEERTE
2017 2016
—g—t# =
$'000 $'000
Frx Tt
Equity securities & 49,850 35,239
Bonds &5 41,447 39,928
Cash Re 4,202 2,969
95,499 78,136
An asset-liability matching study was performed by the trustees REEES REAGETEEABIR
periodically to analyse the outcome of the strategic investment policies. W WOMBERRRB 2 ER - 1RE
The investment portfolio targets a mix of 45% in equity securities across a HEBRR—RINTEZASRRZE F A
range of industries and 55% in government bonds (2016: 45% in equity G RESRHFE S o (ZF —I78F - 45%%
securities across a range of industries and 55% in government bonds). REHAE MSSRBIFES) -
(i) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations: iy EEEMNEENREZ
2017 2016
S =
$'000 $'000
Frx T
At 1 January R—H—H 95,980 99,080
Remeasurements: Hif ¢
— Actuarial losses arising from —AOREZREHEEN
changes in demographic assumptions BEER 3 13
— Actuarial gains arising from —BREEHELEN
changes in financial assumptions EE AT (492) (5,874)
— Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from —REBREFBEAR
changes in experience BEEER(&F) 1,200 (74)
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 717 _
Benefits paid by the plan a2 @R (1,607) (3,586)
Current service cost IR B AR TS B AR 4,643 5,085
Interestcost ... Megx . AS 183
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 101,298 95,980
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations is 5.7 EREEMNEBEZINEESFEHASIF (=
years (2016: 6.3 years). T— N 635F) -
——
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20 Employee retirement benefits (continued) 20 ERE#EEF (»)
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (@) ZEEBAEMKEE (®)
(v)  Movements in plan assets: (v, FEEEZZF:

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
$'000 $'000
Fr FIT
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 78,136 72,141
Contributions paid to the plan by the employer EEZ RGBT 5,785 5,670
Benefits paid by the plan FEISZ T 2 B A (1,607) (3,586)
Interest income FBUA 1,316 1,000
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income STEEE 2 BHR (TBREMEKA) 12,086 3,123
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets SEIBEZITHAY (217) (212)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 95,499 78,136
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive — (v) REFAEHRERBERZAZNOT
income are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tfF —T—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Current service cost 3B AR K AR 4,643 5,085
Net interest on net defined benefit liability ERBHFAEZMNEFE 255 336
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets FEBEEZITHRAX 217 212
Total amounts recognised in profit or l0ss REZEF RS 5,115 5,633
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEE/(BF) 711 (5,935)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income SHEEE R (TaEF S A) (12,086) (3,123)
Total amounts recognised in other REM 2 E R ER
comprehensive income (note 9) X (FTE9) (11,375) (9,058)
Total defined benefit income EREN A BE (6,260) (3,425)
The current service cost, net interest on net defined A A IR AR5 Ak 2N & T BB AR A
benefit liability and administrative expenses paid FEEZASFEIR
from plan assets are recognised in the following THERE W&k A
line items in the consolidated income statement: ZIEERER:
— Cost of sales —SHEKA 758 808
- Selling and distribution expenses —HERDHAX 2,606 2,934
- Administrative expenses —THAX 1,751 1,891
5,115 5,633
[
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20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 EREH#HEF 2
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEHEEMNEIKRFE (&)
(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions and a sensitivity analysis are as follows: (Vi) TEMNBERRMEZESTWOT :
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
Discount rate (p.a.) BRI R (FF) 1.70% 1.70%
Future salary increases (p.a.) ARGM 2 HRE(GF) 4.00%-5.00% 4.00%-5.00%
The analysis set out below shows how the defined benefit obligation as at h @ﬁ: AT 5t EA E B AR B R R0.25%.2 1L
31 December 2017 would have increased/(decreased) as a result of a HEBRRABAR=-F - L F+ =7
0.25% change in the significant actuarial assumptions: =+ B#8Em ORI
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
|ncrease Decrease InCI’ease Decrease
of 0.25% of 0.25% of 0.25% of 0.25%
#14n0.25% w40.25% #5n0.25% % 10.25%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Frx Fr Tt Tt
Discount rate BhHIH R (1,468) 1,507 (1,518) 1,559
Salary increase rate =B 1 R K 1,578 (1,546) 1,623 (1,588)
The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes in FHFRESTEREZBERR 2E(LE
actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does not take THE BESEEI T IEZERER
into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions. H2 EEEE N
(b) Defined contribution retirement plan (b) EHEMHFTERMNKRGE
0) Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong who are not members of the (i) RIBEBCGEHERAE SR - A%
above defined benefit retirement plan are required to join the Group's B 155 2 A i I £ A0 A kil E B8 AR R
mandatory provident fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident KEFEIMEE  AMAREERHRGIER
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a defined HEEFrE bR EEFE T —ERE
contribution retirement plan administered by an independent corporate VEBRTEAERERNERRIGRKRGE -
trustee. Under the plan, the Group and its employees are each required to BIEBRE  AEBLEEESEEAER
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, FTEER SR HEAEEEBALRN
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to 5% - T A BBEA R ZRE KT A30,000
the plan vest immediately. T EIEH R REN R RS o
(i) Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of pension (i) FEBEAREERTREBMEENPR
schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group is required to RARESFEIMNKE - AEBEBEH P LB
contribute 11.00% to 14.00% (2016: 11.00% to 14.00%) of employees’ TDEFEIHRIERBHBEMNEHES  BE
remuneration to these pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only AlE B £ 811.00%%14.00% (=& — <
obligation for the Group with respect to these pension schemes is the F 1 11.00%£14.00%) ° ANEE FH 7 HRE
required contribution under the central pension scheme. Contributions to KRetElnE—EBAREBRRRKESF
these schemes vest immediately. SRR R B A o Wt EED MHER
BIBF SRR o
——
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21

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during
the year are as follows:

21 HMBERREMINZHEREA

(a) ERABZELEBEEERAE:

REAHBRRNKRCERZELCHREE
RBBEZHAKESREFRNZBEBNT

Depreciation  Impairment
allowances losses for
inexcess of  receivables Retirement
the related and benefit
depreciation inventories liabilities Tax losses Total
FERHE e BRI
BRERNE kEE RIKER
ZHE ZREEBR Z8fE REER Fok
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Deferred tax arising from: EEBERE
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RE—H—H 55,102 (52) (4,445) (48,362) 2,243
(Credited)/charged to profit or REZF (GEA) /5 (FizE6a)
0ss (note 6(a)) (761) 19 (0] (29) (778)
Charged to equity (note 9) Pz AR (BEE9) = - 1,504 - 1,504
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE—"F+-A=+—A
1 January 2017 k=—Z—+F—HA—H 54,341 (33) (2,948) (48,391) 2,969
(Credited)/charged to profit or Bz (GHA) /05 (fizE6(a)
oss (note 6()) (841) (30) 85 (33) (819)
Charged to equity (note 9) g A (H79) - - 1,902 - 1,902
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+=A=1+—A 53,500 (63) (961) (48,424) 4,052
[ ]
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21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21 HMERARRIZFHAERNIE @)
financial position (Ccontinued)

(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (b) RERZEEBEEE:
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following AEBRPEMNE AR RARQBIL ARG
items, which pertain to the subsidiaries in the PRC and the Company: T3 %18 B ol Bl IR E B I8 & B i
é?\J\ :
2017 2016
—E—-+#E —ET-REF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Tax losses HiaEe 259,756 356,219
Deductible temporary differences AN EER 187,086 203,059
446,842 559,278
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(p), deferred tax RES AR 1) R AR REE
assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is not WEEMRBNEB AR ARIKEEFIES B HEZ
probable that the relevant entities will generate future taxable profits BEF AL MAEEY AER
against which the above items can be utilised. FHIERFBI B IEIEFIBEE -
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the PRC subsidiaries can be EHETERNB AR AERNNEEEAE
carried forward up to five years from the year in which the loss originated EHRREER BEINHERNOT :
and will expire in the following years:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
2017 —ZT—+F - 88,481
2018 —ZT-N\F 18,914 34,477
2019 —E—NF 43,598 40,746
2020 —E_THF 53,785 50,266
2021 —E-—F 40,549 37,896
2022 —E-_F 2,958 =
159,804 251,866
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the Company were $99,952,000 AN B R R RR B T 1B S 1B 599,952,000
(2016: $104,353,000) and do not expire under current tax legislation. (ZZ — /X :104,353,0007T) * WHIRTT

MIBEHROI T T2 RIE -

110



ERBENEEBMBRAR —E—tFFER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B7 7% 3 3% Ffi 3£

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREEETIN HEBEFTE)
22 capital and reserves 22 BE R G#iE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) HEEHIEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each REBZREEGTSHTONFETNRFR
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the FERERE Eﬁg@)% NS - RAF 2
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the ZEEEBINFENRFREEFIBERA
Company'’s individual components of equity between the beginning and TH & -
the end of the year are set out below:
Share Retained
capital profits Total
(&N Wi RE e
Note $'000 $000 $000
Bz T T T
Balance at 1 January 2016 R-Z—-RE—-A—B#&& 252,524 197,904 450,428
Changes in equity for 2016: —REESEE:
Actuarial gains and losses of defined ERRINRINGE 2 BERH
benefit retirement plan, net of tax REE (RTiR) - 7,554 7,554
Loss for the year FEBE = (4,949) (4,949)
Balance at 31 December 2016 and R=F—<&+=-A=+-—H
1 January 2017 R-ZE—t&E-F—B&& 26 252,524 200,509 453,033
Changes in equity for 2017: TE+EEGEE: -
Actuarial gains and losses of defined EREIRRE 2 BERR
benefit retirement plan, net of tax REB (BRHE) - 9,473 9,473
Loss for the year FEBE - (9,639) (9,639)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-EB-tE+-A=+—-R&H 26 252,524 200,343 452,867
(b) Share capital (b) B’
2017 2016
“E—tF ZE-RF
No. of No. of
shares shares
RAEE B
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
Fr T
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EER CRORMERE:
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+=A=+—A 373570 252,524 373,570 252,524

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to

the Company's residual assets.

RIEE B (R REDI) 13505 - RE kD

THEZ@EE-

EEEFEAAREDTREIRARE
WAIEARREIRE E&FAF — B & —
R -HRARAWFBEE AT RK
BMEBERSHES -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHEETIN HEBETE)

22 capital and reserves (Continued) 22 BEEXERGHEMEE

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) HEMHERAZR

(i) Capital reserve (i) BEXR#E
The capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the capitalisation BARGEDE—RBTPENBEARZRER
of retained profits of PRC subsidiaries. FERCTES 2R -

(i)  Exchange fluctuation reserve (i) ERESR#E
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange M H R B HEREEARET BN B
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of NAMBHRRELEZMBENY ZERER
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange differences EEBIEE (FB MK EBRINIE DT
arising from translation of monetary items that in substance form part of ZIERE) ZIER ERE o ZHEBIENE
the net investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt 10)FTE gt BUR MR -
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s).

(d) Distributability of reserves (d) 2IkfFE
At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves available for R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—8 RFHEH
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under (RGP BB 2 1R E - Al ft 5k
the provision of Part é of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was FETARARNREGEBEAZRERE L
$200,343,000 (2016: $200,509,000). 200,343,0007T (= Z — /X 4 : 200,509,000

JT) °

(e) capital management (e) EBEXRERE
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard AEEEEEANTEZEEREZRES
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue BEAIS B MBS AR ERIRH# DR
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by RAEMBIRMEERFERE AR KT
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing HERAEMTE URBRESSENR
access to finance at a reasonable cost. B ©
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure AREBERG R THHERERERBKRT &
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might EE DUERSBRER RGN T A aEHRE
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and RS EE KT R T8 E AN RN A R
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to BERREZEEGFE W EELER
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions. BEREHEREBEELAE -
Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure AEBUERFHEL R SERETHE
on the basis of an adjusted net-debt to equity ratio. For this purpose the EERE  BAITHEMER - B AE [
Group defines adjusted net-debt as loan from an intermediate holding B AEBTEHLARFABARTNE
company plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less bank deposits and AT 2 ER ARG RERRERRITHE
cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of HEBReRERBESEE - KARELRE
equity less unaccrued proposed dividends. FEE ARG IRBIRRE ©
During 2017, the Group’s strategy was to maintain the adjusted net-debt RZZB—+F ANEEZFEEEGEH
to equity ratio at a reasonable level, not exceeding 100%. In order to BERNFEELEM00%EEN - BT #
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may issue new shares or sell B FABRZL R AEESSEHITHR
assets to reduce debt. MRRFRER L EEEAREER -
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22 capital and reserves (Continued) 22 BEXERGHEME®
(e) capital management (Continued) (e) EXERE (&)
The net-(cash)/debt to equity ratio at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as RZE—tEFR_E—RF+A=+—
follows: BZERFRE) BELENAT :
2017 2016
—E—+t#F —E-RE
$'000 $'000
Fr it
Loan from an intermediate holding company RITEREFMERARZ
less bank deposits and cash and BRRIBITERERE R
cash equivalents LRIIRESIEE (2,637) 33,139
Adjusted net (cash)/debt KA (RS) BEFE (2,637) 33,139
Equity s 584,811 558,084
Adjusted capital KR E A 584,811 558,084
Adjusted net-(cash)/debt to equity ratio KRABERF(RE) ABH=R (0.5%) 6.0%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally AR B SRR T B A BB X B INMEE AR
imposed capital requirements. ZEk o
23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEABREERALAAME
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the REBE-—MELSBEPFEEE - RH
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's exposure to these BEd - FERRRIIMNERR - AEE@H
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the ZERBEERAEBEMRATEZER
Group to manage these risks are described below. % MBS BERBERES - SmmT -
(@) Credit risk (a) FERAK

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on
an ongoing basis.

AEENEERRIERAELE S RE
EBERRE N ERRESIER - ERER
BERERR MEERBEZEZERFEER

LA
oo
ZoN

o
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEARETEERERLOAERE®
(Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERR®E)
Credit limits are offered to customers following a financial assessment FEERBEIRETCYBIFHEERERDE
and an established payment record. The general credit period is payment UWMNRESENET - —REENHEEAR
by the end of the month following the month in which sales take place. MEM AN TERIE RNREEgEEL
Security in the form of mortgages, cash deposits or bank guarantees is EPHGikiE RITHERIIBITERIESR
obtained from certain customers. Customers who are considered to have KR -ERABRPERSERAR - B
higher credit risk are required to trade on a cash basis. Credit control staff ReETRS FEEEFAESEREW
monitor trade receivables and follow up collections. B 5508 I R WK -
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual AEEzFERBFEZZEMNEPHOUE
characteristics of each customer. At the end of the reporting period, 22% FE NEER 2% (T —XF
(2016: 25%) and 54% (2016: 77%) of the total trade and other receivables 25%) K54% (ZFE—XF 1 77%) W E
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers SRHEMEBSFREAEEZEATEF X
respectively. AREE °
The Group do not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group AEETERELEMERMEYSEER
to credit risk. B o
The Group’s bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are placed with AEEBMNRTHERME S RERRLER
financial institutions with sound credit ratings and the management BEHANEAFRE TN SRS - Bt -
considers the Group's exposure to credit risk is low. EREERRAEEBYMNERRERRK -
The Group's exposure to the credit risk and its policies for managing such AEBEAZHEERRLEEEREKE -
risk were unchanged from 2016. T—REFHEA -

(b)  Liquidity risk (b) RBELREME
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own Rl EREEEEAINRCERR
cash management. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity requirements ERASEBRTHERERDHESTE -
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate NEREEF AW A SHERETENHK
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions and related BEAEREEIHNESHE UWARHEE
parties to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. HERAZRBESTK -
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the end TRIAEEREEANBEBREZHGE
of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based WEIREFF @O - WIART O REBLIRIE &
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments nE(AERRITNEXRHEZMESZ S
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at SMBZEER  REEAERZBERR
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be BE2HMEEZH) RAEEAUHEERI&T
required to pay: ERBHEHITELE -

——
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEARETEEREROAERE®
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) HRBELER (&)
2017
“E—tF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHLABRNESRE

More than More than
Within 1yearbut 2 years but

1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—ER
REXKE —£& ME#H
E) EmMER BREER ik REE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Fr Tr Fr Fr
Trade and other payables FERE 5 R E AR 95,248 - - 95,248 95,248
Loan from an intermediate BN ERAE 2 ER
holding company 56,350 54,752 65,850 176,952 166,706
Amounts due to holding companies ERERARLRRZ
and fellow subsidiaries =N 8,524 - - 8,524 8,524
Amounts due to related companies EREERRRE 8,588 - - 8,588 8,588
168,710 54,752 65,850 289,312 279,066
2016
ZT-RE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AN LARERNALTRE
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5years Total amount
—FR%
RNEXE —F% MER
55 BREA BRFR Fok REE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Trade and other payables ERE S RAMEE 88,578 - - 88,578 88,578
Loan from an intermediate HNERARZERK
holding company 31,571 55,611 119,159 206,341 190,858
Amounts due to holding companies ERERARREZR
and fellow subsidiaries WBAREE 6990 - - 6,990 6,990
Amounts due to related companies FEftEE N RIRA 6,130 - - 6,130 6,130
133,269 55,611 119,159 308,039 292,556
[ ]
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEAREERLOAMEE®
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk () RNERER
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing AEBZHERARETFEHTBERELE -
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash REEGEETZHMNENEFTKTE - K&
flow interest rate risk. The Group monitors the level of its variable rate EREREEENFREBERNTX) -
borrowings. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FlZEEERE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's loan TRAAEEREEAZPNZERRAZ
from an intermediate holding company at the end of the reporting period: BRZMELERE
2017 2016
“B—tF ZE-RF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount
ERFE &8 BIRFE +8
% $'000 % $'000
% T % T
Variable rate borrowings: FEFEE -
- Loan from an intermediate ~FNERARZER
holding company 347 166,706 320 190,858
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) HBBEDHF
At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of RZE—+F+-_A=+—8 " HzF=x
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, A TH®—EETF o AHMASEFHREE
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after taxation and the REBETENBERLT  XEBAFERTE
Group's retained profits by approximately $1,667,000 (2016: $1,909,000). B & EZt BB 1 50491,667,000
The tax effect was assumed to be nil as the entity which has drawn down TC (ZZF— N4 ¢ 1,909,0007T) ° B AKEE
the loan had unrecognised tax losses for deferred tax purposes and it is TETE AR R BE S IE 1S B HU FE R A & A LAK 30
not probable that it will generate future taxable profits against which the TMEER  RBEQATAERHIEEIBR
tax losses can be utilised. BELEME EHBRITERESE -
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the A EBRESTBTIAEBE MR EZT
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits in respect of the B ZEEE L  TTHRAEER
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate HEHBENTESNEXRTAE 3 8AE
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting period. The EmEERSRANERERFTESL  c AEFEK
impact on the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits is MEEFEEAZFNZER UZEF X
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense of such a change BrEFEBERNEEZEERE -
in interest rates.
(d) currency risk (d) SHERR
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales, purchases, KEBTFTEREER S B35 £EB 2K
borrowings, expenses and recharges amongst group entities which give MEBEBANMEMEEUIINE (BIFEZZZM
rise to receivables, payables, loans and cash balances that are SWIHHEBEB 2INEERE) BB ZE
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the WEEF - ENBER  ERNBRL&F
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions relate. The ifn [ SN @ B o S| BN R bR 2 B E
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars, Euros EEEETT BMENRBIT
and Japanese Yen.
[
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BB E)

23

(d)

(M

Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars, all
sales and purchases are denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or
United States dollars, except for certain purchases from Europe or Japan.
Given that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar,
management do not expect that there will be any significant currency risk
associated with such United States dollar denominated transactions. For
transactions denominated in Euros and Japanese Yen, management
monitor the level of exposure closely and take actions such as an earlier
settlement considering movements in the exchange rate.

For group entities whose functional currency is Renminbi, except for
certain transactions amongst group entities that are denominated in either
Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars, most of other transactions are
denominated in Renminbi. For those transactions amongst group entities
denominated in United States dollars or Hong Kong dollars, management
consider the transaction amounts are not significant and the exposure to
currency risk is low.

The Group's exposure to currency risk and its policies for managing such
risk were unchanged from 2016.

Exposure to currency risk

The following tables detail the Group's significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot
rates at the year end date. Differences resulting from the translation of
the financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the
Group’s presentation currency and the exposure arising from the
borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of the net
investment in subsidiaries are excluded.

23

(d)

(0

eREREERAARE @

S L Bk ()

HNEBERABTHENEESSEER
BRRLEE s BNk B AN EITEREE SN - P
BHERBEAUBTHETIERHER -
MRBTTEXTHS  WAKBEBEEX
T/ BTEXTEEREEE - ZRURK
BB EZRS  BERETYIEGEEH
T 580 BB K F - 3 e R B R B R
B - ARERRIAE IR ©

HREBRNAAREEDEEENSEE
B BRTHEEAXZENBITHETIE
B  HWXZRIAAREIESM - BH
SEARETHETIFEMNNRS » B
ERARXHETRIEKN  AEENE B
PE R T

AEBAZIMNERB R HEEBREE —FT
—INEFAER e

AX 2z HERR

TERUAEEEE B WIEUBBE R
SR ENEEREELRBEMAZ ZIH
ERBREHFAIN TRAIEBHEEERN
HEMBEAREHER (ZERERAA
REH B AR B FREN— &) MEL
BWER - TROSEDREFAZEXRY
BRBEEZINZA - BEXFEAINM
BRARIZUBHRERAEENZINEEM
EENZERLIEEERN -

Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HNERR (RETTE)
2017 2016
ZE—tE —E-RE

United United
States Japanese States Japanese
dollars Euros Yen dollars Euros Yen
EY BE =p e B =b
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr T T T T
Trade and other receivables [EWE 5 R E A BRIE - - - = 1,220 -
Cash and cash equivalents BehERBELER 16,659 3 - 79 8 13
Trade and other payables FERB 5 R E iR (444) (1,950) - (441) (1,388) -

Amounts due to holding companies  FEfHER AR
and fellow subsidiaries EESEING (6,297) - - (5,:309) - -
Amounts due to related companies R EEEARIEE - - (652) = () (753)
Net exposure BB EEFE 9,918 (1,942) (652) (5,671) (165) (740)
[
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SMEARETERAAEE@
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) sMERBS (8
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) ®SBHEDIW
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's TRERAESERNEEARAEARRKBR
profit after taxation and retained profits that would have arisen if foreign INETE RN E B “*:@Jﬁzli‘% B REiER
exchange rates to which the group entities had significant exposure at the Rk REr 82 BT E - B HREE MR
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other REHIE UM E  ERZBTRE
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the yoed kol %%Efﬁ@lth%ER,ﬁ\ﬁﬂ
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar BB EEZHATZE - WH  ARKREE
would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value of W E AR R BE S IE 1T 2 B R B & I LA 30
the United States dollar against other currencies. Also, the tax effect was MEEE BRARERABVBEBMERZ
assumed to be nil for the entities which had unrecognised tax losses for EERIE - A BRYERIETE -
deferred tax purposes since it is not probable that they will generate
future taxable profits against which tax losses could be utilised.
2017 2016
“E-tf —E-RE
Decrease/ (Increase)
(increase) /decrease
Increase/ in profit Increase/ in profit
(decrease) after (decrease) after
in foreign taxation in foreign taxation
exchange and retained exchange and retained
rates profits rates profits
BRHART BB BRI
HEEE REEF HNERE = REZ AN
t#/ "D/ T/ (gm),/
(TH) (3 m) (T%) b
$'000 $'000
Tr T
United States dollars e 10% 992 10% (567)
(10)% (992) (10)% 567
Euros BrZ 10% 194 10% 16
(10)% (194) (10)% (16)
Japanese Yen A 10% 65 10% 74
(10)% (65) (10%) (74)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an Li‘%ﬁﬁz’iuz ST RIEA S E S EE S AER]
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities’ IhEe B2 (R2WE A E%;z ﬁ*ﬁ EI 2 I =&
profit or loss measured in the respective functional currencies, translated R%ﬁz%/’éx) CARFEBRZAEEHTE-
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates SRS TE RBINEE R 2 B E BN E T
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the 2 A& E 15 A WA 4 E B 5 4K & B m R M E &
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the ﬁMZ eRTE BREEBENTFEFXESZ
reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables within -~ It E¥EBE M B R EMRE - ItEHR K
the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the functional EEEBHEHE T —FELEHNERAEZEFHH
currency of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences & EFHE - DM T RIEHEEBNINFB R A Z
that would result from the translation of the financial statements of BTV EN AN EE 2 2V EEMELEZE5
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency BN TIRE =T — XFMRR 2 EEHETT -
and the borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of the
net investment in subsidiaries. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis as for 2016.
[ ]
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEAREERLOAEE®
(Continued)
(e) Fair value () 2AREME
Except for the loan from an intermediate holding company (note 19), other BN AT RRNE QR REEQRS
non-trade balances with holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and EESEEESRYAEEN LSS BIRE
related companies are unsecured, interest-free and recoverable/ kg @B RN R A B E (Y
repayment on demand. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose 19BN BRRERFR  BEEAR
their fair values. BEzEEIT K-
All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts FTEEMERXCREERAENREEE
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2017 and HEEN - E—+FRER TR F+-A
2016. =T -HNARBEITEERER -
(f)  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (f) sRMEERESMEMEKH
Provision for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives are either i EBEAREEERITIRE—RETARE
included in trade and other payables or offset against trade receivables NESZREMEE BEARAEFAEASEMR
when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised BRI RS TR FaEA LY
amounts and intends to settle on a net basis. B 2HERESEHERGEMBER IR
N E A o
The Group holds cash deposits as collateral over certain trade receivables, REBHERSKSEALE TEKE SEE
which are included in trade payables and not offset against trade B7EMR  ZERSTARNESER
receivables as the Group does not have a legally enforceable right to set o EEEWRE SRIBEEEE R
off the recognised amounts. BRAEEVWESERFBHZSEERS
B2MET -
The following tables set out the carrying amounts of recognised financial TREINZ LR LRI ZEBRESHT
instruments that are subject to the above arrangements. B ZHRMEE -
2017
“E-tf
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented  the statement
instruments in offset in the in the of financial
the statement statement of statement of  position - cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBRRE REBRRE RBBRRRER
ERRLMIA B#RESR REBHRR HHRE2FE-
k2 IEZEE ZEE  KEBRLEAR B8
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
fizr i r r T Fr
Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables BB S R EMhERE 15
- Trade receivables -EWEBFHR 65,128 (26,393 38,735 (2,532) 36,203
~ Financial assets not in the scope — £ AL
of offsetting disclosures LBREE 13,111 - 13,111 - 13,111
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and other payables ENESREMER 18
- Trade payables -EREZER 73,096 (26,393) 46,703 - 46,703
~Financial liabilities notinthe ~ — 2@ BETEEHE
scope of offsetting disclosures ~ ZHEEE 48,545 - 48,545 - 48,545
[ ]
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEARETEERERLOAERE®
(Continued)
(f)  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (fl cHMEERTEBEBEESEH)
(Continued)
2016
“E-RE
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the statement
instruments in offset in the inthe of financial
the statement statement of statement of position - cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
NIE REERRE REBRRERE
ERASBIE sy REBRRE  HEHRE A B
eHE I87%% JEE UDBLEAR 38
Note $000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
MizE T T Fr Fr i
Financial assets tREE
Trade and other receivables EKE 5 REMERIE 15
~Trade receivables -EWE %A 71,726 (26,641) 45,085 (2,397) 42,688
— Financial assets not in the scope — £ B AE T i
of offsetting disclosures LHREEE 12,758 - 12758 - 12,758
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and other payables BB S REMIRE 18
~Trade payables -ERE5ER 64,205 (26,641) 37,564 - 37,564
—Financial liabilities notinthe ~ — BB ETEEK
scope of offsetting disclosures ~ Z HEEE 51,014 - 51,014 - 51,014
The gross amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and their net LRMBEEBRUHHRRER T 252 /f
amounts as presented in the statement of financial position that are l""ﬂéﬁ:&% MAEDE  URRAER
disclosed in the above tables are measured in the statement of financial MR F BT R -
position at amortised cost.
The amounts in the above tables that are offset in the statement of ERMIIERABEMRR R FIEIHE 2 28T
financial position are measured on the same basis. ZAREES K -
24 commitments 24 KiE
(@) cCapital commitments outstanding at 31 December (@) R=-Z—tH+=ZA= -I-\— H %
2017 not provided for in the financial statements were EHBBRERFBEZIRNERERE
as follows: ES RN
2017 2016
—ZE—tHF A
$'000 $'000
T T
Contracted for B4 4,414 -
Authorised but not contracted for BEHEERETL 8,962 8,437
13,376 8,437
[
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24 Ccommitments (Continued) 24 KkiE®)

(b) At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease (b) HR=ZE—+tHFE+=—HB=+—-H: 18
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were BERAAHEELEHEMEN ZERRE
payable as follows: REEAEREWMT :

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Land and buildings THREE

Within 1 year —F R 286 1,231
The Group, as a lessee, leases a number of properties under operating AEBEAEFBMARBEEHEMNHES
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to two years BREE - ZEME—RUTRE—ZMF -
with an option to renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are WEBEREESETIHBERESR BNME
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. BRATEFETE SHELEHEL T

FEAHE -

25 Material related party transactions 25 EXHEALTZS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these PRAMBMESBRE 2 X REBIN -
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material related REEBERI VN TERBEALRS :
party transactions:

(@) Transactions with group companies (@) KEERFEBRERS

Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
x| Bl () FREE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—t& ZT—RF —E-tf ZT—RF
Note $'000 $000 $'000 $000
fiisx Tx T Fr T
Purchases from o= 0)
- intermediate holding companies —H R A 1,854 2,344 (156) (448)
~ fellow subsidiaries —AZRKBAR 5,693 369 (839) 48)
- related companies —BEANA 27,765 26,311 (6,662) (2,544)
Sales to £F 0)
-an intermediate holding company  —FMER A F] 199,695 190,031 21,956 15,135
— fellow subsidiaries S GEL NG 97 260 17 13
Royalty payments to XNEFEER (i
- intermediate holding companies —RNERAR 169 157 (12) (12)
- arelated company —BEAT 1,851 1,702 (1,926) (3,586)
Interest expense payable to FlEx
- an intermediate holding company ~ —H M ER A A (il 6,181 5,454 (487) (514)
Advertising and promotion subsidy YR M =R A F (iv)
from an intermediate holding EBERMEHEE
company faRL 16,084 21,038 - -
——
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(BRRBERIN

BREEE)

25 Material related party transactions (continued) 25 EXREALZS @
(@) Transactions with group companies (Continued) (a) KEERAFEHERZ (B

Notes: B EE -

(i) Sales to and purchases from group companies were carried out at (i) tt%i%?%ﬁﬁ%‘Z{ HEIT B
terms mutually agreed by both parties. The terms of the outstanding B E A8 2 RN M S 1651 R o
balances are set out in note 16.

Related companies are related to the Group as their ultimate holding BENRHEAEEGHERESKE
company has a significant influence over the Group. BRARHAEEEERNTE -

(i) Royalties are payable to intermediate holding companies and a (i) EREEIERBBETA RG]
minority shareholder for the use of certain trademarks pursuant to FRENEEI M FRNERAR KL
relevant licensing agreements. IEERBRRAER -

During the vyear, an intermediate holding company waived royalties RAFE BN ERDAHEARE

payable by the Group amounting to $546,000 (2016: $447,000), which B 2 F#E & B 4£546,0007T (=& — ,\

is not included in the amounts disclosed above. F :447,0007) - WS BALE R
EAEFBEBEHSTESR -

(iii) Interest expense was paid for the loan from an intermediate holding (iii) MELZHTDEFRNERARHER
company.

(iv) Advertising and promotion subsidy was received from an intermediate (iv) e AR A B U Y B S R T 35 HE
holding company for promotion of certain brands in the PRC. BB Ty AERL A T AR R R A o

These transactions also constitute connected transactions or continuing BIBEEMRAFEUAE - hERZ (BEH

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, BRI RSHERIN BHREER SR E

except for the purchases from related companies, which the directors do HERS HEABIEN  AAFESEY

not consider to be connected transactions under the Listing Rules. REBBEEAFRITEEABERS -
(b) Other transactions with group companies (b) SERAHMBAERS
Due from/(to)

Amounts balances at year end

o] Bl () FRER
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF ZE—ttHF —T—RF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Frx Tt

Expenses paid by the Group on behalf of g7 E K FE N &)
group companies K &R

- intermediate holding companies — RN R AT 198 458 - 8

— fellow subsidiaries —RIRME A A 6 16 4 11

- a related company —EE QA 6,997 6,308 1,685 1,532

Expenses paid by group companies HEEARNRAEER

on the Group’s behalf R &R
- intermediate holding companies —H NI A A 2,309 4,498 (6,717) (5,967)
— fellow subsidiaries —RZEME R A 312 = (313) (1
]
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25 Material related party transactions (Continued) 25 EXREAXEZZ®
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) TEEBEAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEEBFZEREAB ZEE (B IEMFE7RT
amounts paid to the Company'’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and the HERARNRNFEE I 2 I8 R8T
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: BERNETERFEEXN ZHIE) T
2017 2016
—E—+fF T—RF
$'000 $'000
F Tz
Short-term employee benefits EHES R 17,806 17,110
Post-employment benefits BRE% 1218 A 1,803 1,681
19,609 18,791

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5()).

B CFATETHM] A (RHESD) -

26 Company - level statement of financial position 26 *XAF-MBRAE
2017 2016
—B—tf —F-x
Note $'000 $'000
B 5E Fr Fr
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R KR 364,620 371,868
Interests in leasehold land held for FREHETEAM
own use under operating leases HAEMHEE LR 51,457 53,202
416,077 425,070
Intangible assets EREE 4,781 4,781
Investments in subsidiaries I EENGIE 612,336 624,192
1,033,194 1,054,043
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 27,062 33,470
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 K A A BRIR 42,904 48,902
Amounts due from holding companies ez NEIDN
and fellow subsidiaries B XMW B AR RE 11,614 8,390
Amount due from a related company e BasE N El BRI 1,685 1,532
Bank deposits BITTFR 39,197 46,602
Cash and cash equivalents ReEREFERKFSIEE 75,560 72,329
198,022 211,225
Current liabilities #REEE
Trade and other payables FEITE 5 R EAARIA (39.189) (41,354)
Loan from an intermediate holding ANMERARZER
company (51,294) (25,448)
Amounts due to holding companies FEfRIERR AT R
and fellow subsidiaries EEL =N (2,097) (1,586)
Amounts due to related companies FEfS & A E BRI (6,647) (2,604)
e 199.227) R e
Netcurrentassets =~~~ «w&#"E®@ == 98,795 . L0 25E |
[
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26 Company - level statement of financial 26 FLOF-MBRARK®
position (Continued)
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
Note $'000 $'000
P 5E Fr Tt
Total assets less current liabilities ~~ @#Z@A®HAMK 1,131,989 K
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Loan from an intermediate holding RN ERA R ZE R
company (115,412) (165,410)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHI B A R BRIA (557,911) (657,989)
Retirement benefit liabilities ERBENE G (5,799) (17,844)
___________________________________________________________________________________________ (679.122) BN
NET ASSETS BEEFE 452,867 453,033
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R f#EE 22(a)
Share capital % 7R 252,524 252,524
Other reserves H A 6 200,343 200,509
TOTAL EQUITY R 452,867 453,033
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 KREEEN_ZE—N\F_A=_+/)\Bi#
February 2018. R T
Ramon S. Ang 235 Ramon G. Torralba R
Director EF Director EBF
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27 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 27 EEREREERLT
At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the immediate parent and RZE—+F+_A=+—"8 EEFREA
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Neptunia Corporation Limited REBNEER AR RREER AT
and Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. respectively. Neptunia & oum M BB A A kTop Frontier
Corporation Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong while Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. o 32 3% F| & R A
Investment Holdings, Inc. is incorporated in the Republic of the AREBEMAKZMTop Frontier
Philippines. Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. produces financial Investment Holdings, Inc.Rl 7 JEEE AN
statements available for public use. it X 32 - Top Frontier Investment

Holdings, InC. 4R &I #E3 &z T ARER ©
28 Possible impact of amendments, new standards 28 B HEAEXRBE_ZT—+LtHF

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

1 January 2018

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property:
Transfers of investment property

1 January 2018

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

1 January 2018

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019

HK(FRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the new standards which may have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has not been substantially
completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of the standards may differ as the assessment completed to
date is based on the information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standards are initially applied
in the Group’s interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June
2018. The Group may also change its accounting policy elections,
including the transition options, until the standards are initially applied in
that financial report.
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ZEREZ
EREIEES:
BRMBREELFIR —E-)\F
[Z@TA] —HA—H
BRI EELF155 —E-)\F
[EF&#MHes ] —H—H
BAGTEAFBOWR (BF]) ZFT—/N\F
BREME  ERIREME —H—H
2R (AR BHREREZE —T—/\F
B)REBEFLFINER SR —H—H
BNRE
HEM IR EER 1657 —E-NF
[HHE —HA—H
R (BRMBRERE —T-NF
ZEg)REFERRNIER —H—H

BAEE M

AEBEFEZSFER  HENRBER
BREARBZEZE REAMAL AKHE
BRI B KRR A R & W A%
BomAaMBEREANEE BANFELZ
BRT - #ARANEEFEEBMBEHRS
ERER R EAV BT REERE1HRT
ARG - MAHERERNEEREN
BRMET BAEREZERTEEA
REEFAEAREE MEMTETEAER
AEBZBEZE T N\FRA=TRHIEX
BAZHHRERETHER - NEBE A
ESFXNEHRR BHRBEEEE B
EZFEUNERANZY BERE
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Possible impact of amendments, new standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for financial
instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement of financial assets, including the measurement of
impairment for financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand,
HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes the requirements of
HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 on a retrospective basis.

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group's financial
statements are as follows:

(@

Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI). The classification for debt
instruments is determined based on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is classified as
FVTOCI then interest revenue, impairment and gains/losses on
disposal will be recognised in profit or loss.

The Group has assessed that its financial assets currently
measured at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with their
classification and measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS 39,
except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a financial
liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes of that
financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other
comprehensive income (without reclassification to profit or 10ss).
The Group currently does not have any financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement will not
have any impact on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.
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Possible impact of amendments, new standards 28
and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(Continued)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model.
Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment 10ss is
recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure either a 12-month expected credit loss or a lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. The Group expects that the application of the
expected credit loss model may result in earlier recognition of
credit losses. Based on a preliminary assessment, the directors of
the Group anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 would not have
material impact on the results and financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the existing
revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction
contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has identified the
following areas which may be affected:
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Possible impact of amendments, new standards 28

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policies are disclosed in note 1(r).
Currently, revenue from the sale of goods is generally recognised
when the risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the
customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the contract.
HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of the promised
good or service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(ii) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced,

(ifi) When the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any
of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators that will be
considered in determining when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard is not
likely to have significant impact on how it recognises revenue from
sale of goods.
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Possible impact of amendments, new standards 28 B HEGERRBE_ZT—
and interpretations issued but not yet effective B
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return the Group’s
products, the Group estimates the level of expected returns and
makes an adjustment against revenue and cost of sales.

The Group has assessed that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
materially affect how the Group recognises revenue and cost of
sales when the customers have a right of return.

However, the new requirement to recognise separately a return
asset for the products expected to be returned will impact the
presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position as
the Group currently adjusts the carrying amounts of inventory for
the expected returns, instead of recognising a separate asset.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of San Miguel Brewery
Hong Kong Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on
pages 62 to 129, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment - Hong Kong brewery operations

AR MBERRE —SEEBERNEERAE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 72-74

FRHG A BIREN T 11 RFET2EZ74E ) 851 HE

The key audit matter
BREFEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREISEEEATERES X

In view of the loss incurred by the Group’s Hong Kong brewery
operations, management considered that indicators of
impairment of the Group’s property, plant and equipment used
in Hong Kong brewery operations existed at 31 December 2017.
EREEEEEBEEGESENER EEERRR_Z
—tF+_A=T—BESERNEHBEBBAEBOWE - #
BREBFEREDRR

Accordingly, management assessed whether there was any
impairment of the Group’s property, plant and equipment used
in the Hong Kong brewery operations, at 31 December 2017,
which was assessed by preparing a value in use calculation
based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

At EBEFER-_ZTE—tF+_A=+—RHEEEAR
EEBBEBNYE ERRBEESTFERE  TERE
AR RO MR EAEESE HEETE -

The discounted cash flow analysis used to assess the risk of
impairment was based on a number of assumptions, which
included revenue forecasts and estimations of future discounts,
future variable costs and fixed costs as well as future inflation in
Hong Kong and long-term growth rates. The determination of
these assumptions requires management to exercise significant
judgement and is subject to inherent uncertainty.
BREMERERBRNEMBERERSNMDERZERS &
FEUA TR B R AR AT Ak AT~ 2R 2R AT A AR I [ FE B AR DA
BEAEAKRBRERABERE ELEBRENECTETEEE
HERABHEZRREENTRERRE -

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment used in Hong Kong brewery operations
included the following:
BT EYE WS REH — BEEEZEBNETRENSE
ARFEENTH®E :

. engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
assessing the methodology applied by management in its
discounted cash flow analysis with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;
EERMOAIDEEM GBI RMELERITG R
BEHEEETHEMBERENONBEANFEET
B

o critically challenging the key assumptions and forecasts

adopted by management in its preparation of the
discounted cash flow analysis by referring to industry and
other available third party information, the recent financial
performance of the Hong Kong brewery operations and
management’s budgets and plans for the operations in
2018 and beyond,
DETERAMAUERNNE=FEF BBBEEKT
U BERBAREEEAR S \FREBEBHTH
BEEREE  BEIGEREENGRREURBESRS
AT R R A0 60 B SRR 5% S ORI

o engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us in

assessing the discount rate used by management in its
discounted cash flow analysis by recalculating an
appropriate discount rate with reference to available
financial information of other listed brewing companies in
Asia Pacific and considering region and industry specific
risk premiums;
EAERMOANEEERN  BOHEMER2EEARER
ftb |- 70 R E A R R R ER ) B TS B R I AT Rt [ BR 1T 3
HREEMEEBREFNAENEZURE  UHERE
MEDBIRIE MO I (£ B BE IR &7
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FREYE MBRERRFE - FEBEXBNETRE(E)

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment - Hong Kong brewery operations (Continued)

FRHGE A BIREAN T I RFET2E74E 4 851 HE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 72-74

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
HAREETSEHEERPEELE

We identified assessing potential impairment of property, plant
and equipment used in Hong Kong brewery operations as a key
audit matter because of the significant judgement and
estimation required to be exercised by management in
forecasting future revenue, future variable costs and future fixed
costs and in determining an appropriate discount rate and also
because of the magnitude of the assets under consideration and
the possibility of management bias in the selection of the key
assumptions.

BRI BERRE — BEBBXEBNEERE
BERBBESTEE  WIHREEEEARKEA - KK
FEEARKRKETREAARETEEMRERAFELSER
HE R s THRAEREENREREEEEEZHARER
RSB IR -

. comparing the actual performance and results of the Hong
Kong brewery operations for the current year with the key
assumptions and forecasts adopted by management in
the discounted cash flow analysis for the prior year to
assess the accuracy of management’s forecasting process
and making enquiries of management as to the reasons
for any significant variations identified and whether they
have been considered in the current year's key
assumptions and forecasts;
HEBBEEBERAVBFEFENERRAREERE
BENBTFENRHRBERESTRERMNOER
R RFEAETLEE U HEEERARTHER
ERFEHINEMEAZHNREARRAGBREFE
WEARBELABAEPEEGEEZERELAAZAEERERE
EEEH

o performing sensitivity analysis for the discount rate, sales
growth rate and operating costs in the discounted cash
flow analysis and considering in greater detail the
information used to derive the most sensitive assumptions
and whether there were any indicators of management
bias in their selection.
HEWRBEROMHOMRE HELRERKLEK
TETHBESN  UEREGHKRGURBEMAEAD
FHREN REEEMNEEESEMMRENTR
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Accounting for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives

i BEREREEAR

Refer to note 23(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 75

FRHE A BIREN 230 R E75H B8R

The key audit matter
BREFEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREISEEEATERES X

The Group offers a variety of discounts, rebates and promotional
incentives, including regular trade discounts, volume rebates and
price support, to its customers in the normal course of business.
These costs are accounted for as a deduction from revenue.
EEBE—MEGBRETRAETPREMSENN  BEXE
BES BETHAISITN  HERED REBERL - ELK
RIBWANBIENER ©

A large proportion of the discounts, rebates and promotional
incentives had not been paid or utilised at 31 December 2017 and
relevant accruals are either included in trade and other payables
or off-set against trade receivables when the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and intends to
settle on a net basis.

REBA - BEREEEER-_TE—tF+ZHA=+—H
MAZANEER RABBTRERURESEERES F58 1
B RS UHEFERELERTABRNEZ LA
fhBRIE S B E W E 5 BRIH B MBI 8H o

We identified accounting for discounts, rebates and promotional
incentives as a key audit matter because of the significance of the
amounts to the Group’s gross profit and because there are
different schemes and arrangements for each major customer,
some of which can be complex in nature, which increases the risk
of error in the calculation thereof.

BTN BERMEEEARERSBARESFIE 1
TDHREESBEEEEEEMNNBRABNRERESEAEXE
REERATRMNATRETH BB AEM - Mg mES
HERRERE

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for discounts,
rebates and promotional incentives included the following:
BAELESTH - BAREEEEARNEEFEEATIE:

. evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over recording
discounts, rebates and promotional incentives;
FEAH BEAMEEEENRBEIENEEANBE
PR AT - BAT RGEIER L

. analysing the Group’s historical data for discounts,
rebates and promotional incentives to determine an
expectation for the current year, based on the current
year’s sales amounts, comparing our expectation with
the actual figures recorded by the Group and
investigating unusual items or trends;
AMEEENHN ERELKEEEENBRTEIE MU
ERAMBFEENHEERECAVRFEMNEL 1

BETBYEA RSB

o comparing the accruals for discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives made by management as at 31
December 2016 with the actual discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives paid/payable to customers to
assess the accuracy of the prior year’'s accruals and
making enquiries of management as to the reasons for
any significant under or over provision and assessing
whether they have been considered in the current
year's accruals,
BERER_Z—"F+_A=+—8Edorn.
BARERERFREAEECN ERERPHNERT
n EEREEREEFSETLE  AFTHLFEAIRE
ARERE UHENERAEE SR EENREM
EREERLEARTEREEAVRFENIREAR
EREERI EMAE

° selecting a statistical sample of discounts, rebates and
promotion incentives for the year and comparing each
selected item with the relevant sales contract and
customer agreement, recalculating the expense
payable by the Group and assessing whether the
amounts had been recorded in the appropriate
accounting period,

HENFMN - BEREEEFTETHERESEMRE

BEEMEAEESHALEFRPHEELER  EFAEE
SEENERAURTMHRERSELERN G EN G
HAR

|
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- RAREEREEARE)

Accounting for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives (Continued)

FRHGE A BIREN 2300 R FE75H 8 B 5HEE

Refer to note 23(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 75

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEE BREASEEERTREES X

developing an expectation of the year end accruals for
major customers based on purchases for the year,
expenses paid during the year and the credit terms
agreed with respective customers, comparing the
actual accruals with our expectations, enquiring of
management as to the reasons for any significant
differences and assessing whether they have been
considered in the current year’s accruals;
ERFAREE FRENERANULREIEPHREN
:ffﬂ%%?x HETERPHNFRTREAELESR K
ERFIREBAERMOBHETLER  RELETAE
REFENREMEIRE LSRR EAE TR
BEEMNTIREANESEZEI LR E

comparing subsequent actual settlement of discounts,
rebates and promotional incentives with the
corresponding amounts accrued as at the year end to
assess the recording of accruals as at year end; and
BTN EEAREEEENEAEREAEEFRIBRE
SRS RETHE - UM FERTREANTE &

inspecting journals processed during the year relating
to discounts, rebates and promotional incentives and
selecting a sample of these based on pre-determined
risk based criteria the details of which were compared
with the relevant underlying documentation.
HFHRESFRRIBOES  OARERESHAN
By ARERFLAETHRBREERERE KK
FFIEE EAE R AR X ST -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

ﬁ‘“ﬁﬁ%iﬁi&ﬁﬁi&ﬁﬂiiﬁ%m%ﬂ@

1“ o

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information EFHHHMER B T - H i &8 215 TIBK F
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the AW EHER - BT BELE M@K LM

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

M iz BB R & o

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other HMI¥HGEMBHRENERE T NREEME R -

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,

ﬁf?ﬁ7T7r;Tgigrﬁﬁﬁéfﬂ?"i%ﬁcﬁﬁﬂﬁ’ﬂ%?é%
Ay ©

our MEEBMBLEETBEHRENERT %HFW\]EE%

responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether BIEEMER - ELBEF - ZEHMERZ
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial — B4R & M BB FZ KK MAEFTRIZF AT T R |E
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be RFAEEAREB K EUFFEERERBMAE

materially misstated.

e

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material ~ ERE M2 HITEH TIE - MR K MIR R H A E K
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We TFHEBRERRM  RMFTERELZFE - L&

have nothing to report in this regard.

—
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

EENGCMEBRAREOHRE

EFZRRAERBEREGHLGRMA(EENBR
SEAD REB(RARGIDREBEEEMREHNES
BBHRE UHARRRELEESHBRROEET
T 72 /7 HRRF 3 #8 AR T 2 SR e B8 K 8 AR Rt P 75 0
MEpEH B E -

AREGRAVBHRRE EFaAFHEERERS
mEMREN TEERBATRERASELEEH
MEE UREABEKZRSFTER KRIFES
BEBEEEBRAEFLEE  HARELBERD
BRAE-

EHZEEMNESETEEESEANIBRES
BOELE-

BHMRBHESMERRRIED
R

BFMER RUGANBRRERRSTAER
RIRAFL SR M G B BEAHE RIAMBARRE -
THABERMERNZBMBE - RMLKRE
(RG] FA0SIEMIRTE - EAREKE RS -
B Ut BASN - B AP 98 25 7 AT AR E A ARk o PR
TRABEHND  HEMLHATEERRLE
BRI -

EEREFLHKFHRE BETERELRR(EESE
FEADETHEN  EX - EAERRAGTERA
BeEE I - BRI W A B FF BRI MRS
EEHAEMEBRELRRAEZBEGERSUBRE
ERERBETERRAMEHNZFRTE - B ERM
R AJ R ARAEE K ©

ERB(EERFTERDETEANBRESD - &M
ERTERAL  RETERRREE - BT

. B M EEE RN IRFE IR M B B S RS
BRRGFEERERBANAR - R R
WITETIEFUEEELAR - U RER
FRMEENESER FERAMERN
HEft - ARNMAFAIRES RBER BE-F
BER O ERRL - EBRARESZ
£ R RRE IR A RRGE T 8 2 E A
REEHRBR SN REFRRFERMEN
B 8B A SRR R 10 L B

. THREERGT BN ARES  ARGHEE
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HOBREERER -

. AHEEEMEAEERENORE M RIEL
Gt AR MERREN AN -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheng Mei Yan Hilary.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

28 February 2018
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Details of the major property of the Group are as follows:

Location EXisting use

ith %6 BRRAZE

Major property held for investment
BERENETEYE

San Miguel Industrial Building Rental
Nos. 9-11 Shing Wan Road,
Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong

EEY B KERERK-1157 ith=1
ENTERE
|
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Term of lease
Eizh i

Medium-term

T
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Miguel, Dragon and Guang’s
brand groups.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY HFEREHFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A8 M3 5)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2t T F ZT-Af ZT-NF —T-=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Ft FT FIT Ft
Results £
Revenue A 565,785 541,427 569,502 728,640 687,093
Profit/(loss) before taxation B—?— %,r.: A&ER (ER) 14,400 5,927 (16,053) 37,227 22,283
Income tax credit/(charge) BEHAA(ZH) 819 778 (856) (233) 3,541
Profit/(loss) for the year FEARF(EE) 15,219 6,705 (16,909) 36,994 25,824
Attributable to: FEMHLNT
- Equity shareholders of the Company - RQAERFFA A 12,480 8,654 (16,074) 35,323 26,010
- Non-controlling interests - FEP RS 2,739 (1,949) (835) 1,671 (186)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREAFN(E8) 15,219 6,705 (16,909) 36,994 25,824
Earnings/(loss) per share gBRAEF (FEE)
- Basic (cents) — EA (L) 3 2 @ 9 7
Cash dividends per share (cents) BIR S B S (L) - - 2 1
Assets and liabilities EEHEE
Property, plant and equipment, M MBS RERE - RE

investment properties and leasehold land MEREE L 576,388 584,806 597,381 621,309 635,893
Intangible assets mEE 4,781 5,139 5,163 5,187 5,188
Net current assets MBEEFE 128,905 154,362 162,371 108,040 114,032
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBEE 710,074 744,307 764,915 734,536 755,113
Retirement benefit liabilities RREANEE (5,799) (17,844) (26,939) (20,115) (17,660)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEBIBEE (4,052) (2,969) (2,243) (2,487) (2,938)
Loan from an intermediate holding company & M\ #22i% A &) 2 B 3%

(Non-current portion) (GEREEB1) (115,412) (165,410) (190,747) (139,985) (190,837)
Net assets BEFE 584,811 558,084 544,986 571,949 543,678
Capital and reserves B R #E
Share capital: nominal value f& 7 EE - - - - 186,785
Other statutory capital reserves HE MR E & A - = = = 65,739

252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524
Other reserves E b 358,567 332,687 319,516 347,386 320,897
Total equity attributable to equity ARaEREREA

shareholders of the Company FE(GHE = 611,091 585,211 572,040 599,910 573,421
Non-controlling interests FEERR #E = (26,280) (27,127) (27,054) (27,961) (29,743)
Total equity B 584,811 558,084 544,986 571,949 543,678
Notes to the five year summary: EFEREREFS
The term “share capital” includes share premium account form the H-—Z=—mE="A=F NEBEQFIE H(%.i
commencement date of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of 3 sk |&e028 ) ik B 42 - [BR S | E,/‘—_] 0% 5 5 (B

March 2014. Prior to that date the share premium account is presented
separately in accordance with the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(Cap. 32).

I
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